Cambridge City Council

. . . CAMBRIDGE
Licensing Sub Committee CITY COUNCIL

Date: Friday, 16 May 2025
Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, CB2
3QJ [access the building via Peashill entrance]

Contact: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000

Agenda

1 Appointment of a Chair

2 Declarations of Interest

3 Meeting Procedure

4 Cambridge Rugby Club Hearing Report (Pages 7 - 116)




Licensing Sub Committee Members: Bick, Bird and Wade

Emergency Evacuation Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building
by way of the nearest escape route and proceed directly to the assembly
point in front St Mary’s Church. The duty Officer will assume overall control
during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the duty Officer is
unavailable, this responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Information for the public
The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open
to the public.

For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors
and the democratic process:

o Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk

e Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

e Phone: 01223 457000

Those wishing to address the meeting will be able to do by attending to speak
in person if you have completed an LRAL form to express your intention to
speak.

The form will have been sent to you from the Licensing Department



http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003 - Licensing Sub-Committee: Hearings Procedure

Preliminary Matters

1.

2.

The Chair will commence the hearing by introducing him/herself, the
other two members of the Sub-Committee and the officers present.
The Chair will ask the applicant(s)/the responsible authorities/the
interested parties present, and their representatives (if applicable), to
introduce themselves and identify their interest in the proceedings.

Failure of a party to attend the hearing

3.

If a party has informed the licensing authority that he/she does not
intend to attend or be represented at a hearing, the hearing may
proceed in his/her absence.
If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a
hearing, the Sub-Committee may —

(a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest,

adjourn the hearing to a specified date, or

(b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence.
Where the Sub-Committee holds the hearing in the absence of a party,
the Sub-Committee will consider at the hearing the application,
representations or notice made by that party.
The Chair will explain the procedure to be followed at the hearing and
will confirm whether the Sub-Committee must reach its decision at the
end of the hearing or within 5 workings days of the hearing, depending
on the application being heard.
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee will indicate whether any party has
requested permission for any other person(s) (other than his/her
representative) to appear at the hearing to assist the Sub-Committee in
relation to the application, representations or notice of the party making
the request. The Sub-Committee will decide whether to grant
permission to allow any other person(s) to appear at the hearing on
behalf of the party; such permission will not be unreasonably withheld.
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee will ask whether any party is seeking
to introduce any document(s) or other information not previously
disclosed to all the other parties to the hearing and the licensing
authority. If all the other parties consent, the previously undisclosed
document(s) or other information can be produced by a party in support
of their application, representations or notice (as applicable).
The hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Chair of the
Sub-Committee. Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the
Sub-Committee considers that cross-examination is required to




consider the representations, application or notice as the case may

require.

10.The Sub-Committee will consider any requests to permit cross-
examination on a case-by-case basis. When permission is given to
one party, it will also normally be extended to all other parties.

11.The Sub-Committee will decide the equal maximum period of time that

each party will have to present their case.

The Hearing
12.The Licensing Officer will present the report to the Sub-Committee.
13.Members may ask any relevant questions of the Licensing Officer.
14.The applicant, or the party who has initiated the hearing, will present
their case first.
15.The party shall be entitled to:

(a) give further information in support of their application,
representations or notice (as applicable) in response to a specific
request by the licensing authority prior to the hearing;

(b) question any other party (if permission has been given by the
Sub-Committee);

(c) address the Sub-Committee.

16.1f the Police are a party to the hearing, they will present their case. The
Police have the rights listed in paragraph 15 (a) — (c) above.

17.1f any other “responsible authority” are a party to the hearing, they will
present their case in turn after the Police and have the rights listed in
paragraph 15 (a) — (c) above.

18.Any other interested parties will then present their case in turn and
have the rights listed in paragraph 15 (a) — (c) above.

19.Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of the/each party or
any other person permitted to appear at the hearing in support of the
party.

20.The Chair will invite the applicant, or the party who has initiated the
hearing, and any parties making representations, to briefly summarise
their points if they wish.

21.The Chair will ask the applicant, or the party who has initiated the
hearing, and all parties making representations, that they are satisfied
that they have said all they wish to.

The Decision

22.In considering any representations or notice made by a party, the Sub-
Committee may take into account documentary or other information
produced by a party in support of their application, representations or
notice (as applicable) either before the hearing or, with the consent of
all the other parties, at the hearing.




23.In reaching its decision, the Sub-Committee will disregard any
information given by a party, or any person who has been permitted to
appear at the hearing, which is not relevant to —

(a) the application, representations or notice (as applicable) or in the
case of another person, the application, representations or notice
of the party requesting their appearance, and

(b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a
hearing to consider a notice given by the Police, the crime
prevention objective.

24.The Sub-Committee may consider its decision in private and may move
into private session where it considers that the public interest in so
doing outweighs the public interest in that part of the hearing taking
place in public. If the Sub-Committee do move into private session
then all the parties and their representatives, any other person
permitted to appear at the hearing, officers, the public and the press will
be asked to leave the room whilst the decision is made.

The Chair will tell those present at the meeting the decision taken by the
Sub-Committee and the reasons for the decision.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

Agenda Item & ™~
-

CITY COUNCIL

CONSIDERATION OF AN APPLICATION FOR A
PREMISES LICENCE TO BE GRANTED

CAMBRIDGE RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB, GRANTCHESTER
ROAD, NEWNHAM, CAMBRIDGE, CB3 9ED

To: Licensing Sub-Committee:

Report by: Wangari Njiiri

Environmental Health and Licensing Support Team Leader

Tel: 01223 458533
E-mail: Wangari.njiiri@cambridge.gov.uk

Wards affected: Newnham

INTRODUCTION

1.1 An application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 to apply for
a Premises Licence with respect to Cambridge Rugby Football Club has
been received from Cambridge Rugby Football Club Limited. The
application was served on Cambridge City Council (the Licensing
Authority) on 28 March 2025. A copy of the application was also
served on each responsible authority. The application and plan are
attached to the report at Appendix 1 and Appendix la.

1.2 The applicant is seeking to provide the following licensable activities:

e Provision of Plays (Indoors and outdoors)

Page 7

Report page no. 1 Agenda page no.



- Monday to Saturday 09:00 to 23:00
- Sunday 10:00 to 22:00
e Provision of films (Indoors and outdoors)
- Monday to Saturday 09:00 to 23:00
- Sunday 10:00 to 22:00
e Provision of Live Music (Indoors and outdoors), Recorded Music
(Indoors and outdoors) and Performance of Dance (Indoors and
Outdoors)
- Monday to Saturday 09:00 to 23:00
- Sunday 10:00 to 22:00
e Supply of alcohol (on the premises)
- Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 22:30
- Sunday 10:00 to 21:30

Events under the licence are proposed to take place predominately
between 1 April and 30 October. However, may also take place at
various times of year.

The applicant proposes the licence will cover two types of use, Rugby
use and Non- Rugby use.

Non-Rugby Use: Covers a variety of other events (e.g. charity events,
concerts, festivals, university balls), further divided by event size:

. Small: Up to 999 attendees
« Medium: 1,000-2,499 attendees
. Large: 2,500-4,999 attendees
The number of days per event types has been proposed in conditions:
« Rugby Use: Unlimited
« Small Events: Unlimited
. Medium Events: Up to 4 days per year
. Large Events: Up to 3 days per year

1.3 In accordance with the regulations of the Act, the application was
advertised on the premises and in a local newspaper on 1 April 2025
to invite representations from responsible authorities and other
persons. The last date for submitting representations was 25 April
2025.

Page 8

Report page no. 2 Agenda page no.



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Report page no. 3

Representations were received from 55 ‘Other Persons’. The
representations are attached to the report at Appendix 2.

No representations were received from any of the Responsible
Authorities.

All conditions that have been offered by applicant have been attached
to the report at Appendix 3. These conditions will appear on any
Premises Licence if granted and can be added to and/or amended by
members if they wish.

The application needs to be determined.

RECOMMENDATION

That Members determine the application on its individual merits having
reference to the statutory licensing objectives and Cambridge City
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

BACKGROUND

The proposed premises is not located within a Cumulative Impact Area
(CIA).

The location of the premises already has three separate
licences/certificates in operation. The Licensing Act 2003 does not limit
the number of premises licences that can be in effect at the same
premises.

A Club Premises Certificate, CLUBCAM 000026, has been in effect
since 15" December 2005. Part A of the Club Premises Certificate is
attached to the report as Appendix 4.

A Premises Licence, PRECAM 000926, has been in effect since 6"
January 2023. The licence holder is Live Tour Promotions Limited and
the licence permits two events to be held over one weekend, once a
year. Part A of the Premises Licence is attached to the report as
Appendix 5.

A more recent Premises Licence, PRECAM 000972 with effect from 27

Page 9 Agenda page no.


https://pp-greatercambridgeshire.idoxcloud.com/licences/index.html?area=Licence&fa=edit&id=288147

January 2025 was granted with additional conditions, following a Sub-
Committee meeting. The licence holder is London Road Event Hire
Services Limited and permits one event on 5" July 2025, with a
maximum capacity of 2,499. On 6 March 2025, a Minor variation was
applied to the licence, amending two conditions. Current Part A of the
Premises Licence is attached to the report as Appendix 6.

3.6 This application is for a new, separate premises licence from those
mentioned above and must be treated on its own merits. However, as
the application is for a premises that already has licence/certificates in
place, these have been included in the report as they are relevant to
the premises.

3.7 The applicant details that all other licences will be surrendered, should
this licence be granted. This licence will consolidate all other events
under a single licence.

3.8 In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority must have
regard to its Statement of Licensing Policy and additionally the statutory
guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. The
relevant sections from the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy are:

- Objectives, section 2

- Fundamental principles, section 4
- Licensing Hours, section 6

- Licence Conditions, section 8

4. CONSULTATIONS

4.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires applications made under section 17 of
the Act to be served on the Responsible Authorities and also advertised
on the premises and in a local newspaper circulating within the vicinity
of the premises. During the consultation period, Responsible Authorities
and Other Persons (any individual, body or business entitled to make
representations to licensing authorities) may make a representation in
respect of the application.

4.2 Statutory consultation has therefore taken place with Responsible
Authorities and interested parties in accordance with the procedures set
out in the Licensing Act 2003 and associated regulations made under
the Act.

Page 10

Report page no. 4 Agenda page no.



5. OPTIONS

5.1 Whilst having reference to the information provided by the applicant,
the information raised in the representations and also Cambridge City
Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy, the Sub-Committee’s
decision must be made with a view to promoting one or more of the
four licensing objectives, namely:

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder;
(b) public safety;

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and
(d) the protection of children from harm.

5.2 Members should take such steps that they consider are necessary
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee
may resolve:

(a) to grant the licence subject to the mandatory conditions and those
conditions offered by the applicant which may be modified to such
extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of
the licensing objectives;

(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable
activities to which the application relates;

(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises
supervisor;

(d) to reject the application.

5.3 Members must give reasons for their decision.

6. CONCLUSIONS

6.1 The Licensing Authority has a duty under the Licensing Act 2003 to
promote the Licensing Objectives. Each objective has equal
importance. In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing
Authority must also have regard to its Statement of Licensing Policy,
and the Statutory Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003, and it is
bound by the Human Rights Act 1998. The Council must also fulfill its
obligations under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in
Cambridge.

1. IMPLICATIONS

Page 11

Report page no. 5 Agenda page no.



(@)

(b)

(d)

(€)

Report page no. 6

Financial Implications

Cambridge City Council (the Licensing Authority) has a statutory duty
to determine applications made under the Licensing Act 2003. The
application fees associated with such applications are set by Central
Government and are intended to cover the cost of administering the
licensing regime.

There are no specific financial implications associated with this report.
Staffing Implications

There are no staffing implications associated with this report.

Equal Opportunities Implications

No Equality Impact Assessment has been conducted as the only
consideration in reaching a decision is whether the granting of the
application will undermine the statutory licensing objectives.

Environmental Implications

Any environmental implications that need to be considered must
specifically relate to the promotion of the statutory licensing objectives
and will be contained in the representations made by the responsible
authorities or interested parties.

Community Safety

Cambridge Constabulary, Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service,
Cambridge City Council’s Environmental Health Team, Cambridge City
Council’'s Planning Service, Cambridgeshire County Council’s Child
Protection & Review Unit, Cambridgeshire County Council’s Trading
Standards Department and the Public Health Director were consulted
as part of the application process and could have made representation
if it was considered that the granting of the application would undermine
one or more of the statutory licensing objectives.

Those making representations would have raised any relevant
community safety implications.

Page 12 Agenda page no.



8. BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers
that were used in the preparation of this report:

Licensing Act 2003
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club
premises certificates) Requlations 2005

Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003

Cambridge City Council's Statement of Licensing
Policy

Cambridge City Council's  Cumulative  Impact
Assessment

Appendix 1 — Application Form
Appendix la — Site plan
Appendix 2 - Representations
Appendix 3 — Conditions offered
Appendix 4 — CLUBCAM 000026
Appendix 5 - PRECAM 000926
Appendix 6 — PRECAM 000972

To inspect these documents either view the above hyperlinks or contact
the Commercial & Licensing Team at taxi@cambridge.gov.uk.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is
Wangari.njiiri@cambridge.gov.uk

Date originated: 6 May 2025
Last updated: 6 May 2025

Page 13

Report page no. 7 Agenda page no.


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/42/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/42/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/42/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/licensing-overview
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/licensing-overview

This page is intentionally left blank



Cambridge For help contact

% cameripce | Application for a premises licence taxifcambridge gov.uk
€ UTECOUNCL | jcensing Act 2003 Telephone: 01223 457000
* required informnation
Section 1 of 21

‘fou can save the form at any time and resume It later. You do not need to be logged In when you resume.

Thiz |= the unlque reference for thls

System reference Mot Currently In Use application generated by the system.

‘You can put what you want here to help you

Your reference track appllcatlons If you make lots of them. It

|z passed to the authorlty.
Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? Put "no” If you are applylng on your own
Dehalf or on Dehalf of a buslness you own or
" Yes * No work for.

Applicant Details

* First name Timothy

* Famlly name Hague

Maln telephone number | Include country code.

Other telephone number

(< Indlcate here If you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:
¢« Applylng as a business or organlsatlon, Including as a sole trader A zole trader Is a buslness owned by one
person wlthout any speclal legal structure.
" Applylng as an Indlvidual Applylng as an Indlvidual means you are

applylng so you can be employed, or for
zome other perzonal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Applicant Business

ls your buslness reglstered In (¢ Yes  No Mote: completing the Applicant Buslness
the UK wlith Companles zectlon s optlonal In this form.

House?

Reglstration number IP28330R

Buslness name Cambridge Rugby Football Club Limlted LLE?;LF;J;LT :ﬁn.lsf registered, use Its

VAT number : Put "none” If you are not reglstered for VAT.

Leqgal status Private Limlted Company

Page 15

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=



Continued from previous page...

‘Your posltlon In the buslness

Home country

Registered Address

Bullding number or name

Unlted Kingdom

Cambridge Rugby Club

The country where the headquarters of your
buslness Is located.

Address reglstered with Companles House.

Street Grantchester Road
Dlstrlct

Clty or town Cambridge
County or adminlstrative area |Cambridgeshire
Postcode CB3 9ED

Country Unlted Kingdom
Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

l/we, as named In sectlon 1, apply for a premlses licence under sectlon 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premilses

described In sectlon 2 below (the premlses) and |/we are making thl= appllcatlon to you as the relevant licensing authorlty
In accordance with sectlon 12 of the Llcensing Act 2003.

Premises Address

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or descriptlon of the premlses?

(v Address 05 map reference (  Description

Postal Address Of Premises
Bullding number or name
Street

District

Clty or town

County or adminlstratlve area
Postcode

Country

Further Details

Telephone number

Non-domestlc rateable
value of premlses (£)

Cambridge Rugby Football Club

Grantchester Road

Cambridge

Cambridgeshlre

CB3 9ED

Unlted Kingdom

= Crowm copyright

Page 16




Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capaclty are you applylng for the premlses llcence?

] AnIndlvidual or Individuals

A llmlted company / limlted llabllity partnership
A partnership (other than limlted llablllty)

An unincorporated assoclatlon

Other (for example a statutory corporatlon)

A recognlsed club

A charlty

The proprletor of an educational establlshment

A health service body

A person who s reglstered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) In respect of an Independent hospltal In Wales

O OO0O0O00D0O00XA

A person who |s reglstered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Soclal Care Act 2008 In respect of the carrylng on of a regulated
actlvity (wlthin the meaning of that Part) In an Independent hospltal In
England

-

[7] The chlef offlcer of police of a police force In England and Wales
Confirm The Following

I am carrylng on or propozing to carry on a buslness which Involves
the use of the premlses for licensable actlvitles

I

[7] |am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

| am maklng the applicatlon pursuant to a functlon discharged by

] virtue of Hls Malesty’s prerogative

Section 4 of 21

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provlde name and reglstered address of applicant In full. Where approprlate glve any reglstered number. In the case of a
partnershlp or other Jolnt venture (other than a body corporate), glve the name and address of each party concerned.

Non Individual Applicant's Name

MName Cambridge Rugby Football Club
Details

Reglstered number (where
applicable)

IP258330R

Descriptlon of appllcant (for example partnershlp, company, unincorporated assoclatlon etc)
Danno 17

| ug\. = = |

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

Address

Bullding number or name
Street

District

Clty or town

County or adminlstrative area
Postcode

Country

Contact Details

E-mall

Telephone number

Other telephone number

Cambridge Rugby Club

Grantchester Road

Cambridge

Cambridgeshlre

CB3 S9ED

Unlted Kingdom

* Date of birth
dd mm YVyYy
. Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
Natlonality _ work In the UK
Add another applicant
Section 5 of 21
OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the
premlses llcence to start?

IT you wlish the licence to be
valld only for a limlted perlod,
when do you want It to end

01 | /|06 | /| 2025

dd mm YYYy

dd mm YVyYy

Provlde a general descriptlon of the premlses

For example the type of premlzes, lts general sltuatlon and layout and any other Informatlon which could be relevant to the
licensing oblectlves. \Where your applicatlon Includes off-supplles of alcohol and you Intend to provide a place for
consumptlon of these off- supplles you must Include a descrlptlon of where the place wlll be and Its proximlity to the

premlses.
The proposed premilses Is the open green space located In the grounds of Cambrldge Rugby Football Club, south of central
Cambridge.

Pace-318

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

[T5.000 or more people are
expected to attend the
premlses at any one time,
ztate the number expected to
attend

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Wil you be providing plays?

(v Yes  No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Glve timings In 24 hour clock.

Start |09:00 End 12300 (e.g. 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
I of the week when you Intend the premlses

Start ] End to be used for the acthvity.

TUESDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End

WEDNESDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End ]

THURSDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End

FRIDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start | End

SATURDAY
Start (0900 | End [23:00
Start End

SUNDAY
Start [10:00 End [22:00
Start End

WIll the performance of a play take place Indoors or outdoors or both? \Where taking place In a bullding or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
 Indoors (  QOutdoors (« Both Include a tent

Page 19

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

State type of actlvity to be authorlsed, If not already stated, and glve relevant further detalls, for example (but not
excluslvely) whether or not muslc will be ampilifled or unamplifled.

Tradltlonal and contemporary plays, historlcal re-enactment, puppet shows, story telling, street theatre, chlldren’s activitles. |
The majorlty of Plays wlll be performed durlng the perlod Aprll 1st to 30th October, but plays may take place at other times
of year If seasonal conditlons permilt.

State any seasonal varlatlons for performing plays

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

Mon standard timiIngs. Where the premlses wlll be used for the performance of a play at different times from those listed In
the column on the left, llst Delow

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e g. Christmas Eve.

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Will you be providing flims?

(v Yes ¢ No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Glve timings In 24 hour clock.

Start |09:00 End |23:00 (e.g.. 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
of the week when you Intend the premlses

Start End to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY
Start |09:00 End |23:00
start | End

WEDNESDAY
Start |09:00 End |23:00
Start End

Page 20

= Crowm copyright



Continued from previous page...

THURSDAY
Start (0900 | End [23:00
Start End
FRIDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End
SATURDAY
Start [09:00 End [23.00 |
Start ] End
SUNDAY
Start [10:00 End [22:00
Start End
Wil the exhlbltlon of fllms take place Indoors or outdoors or both? \Where taking place In a bullding or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
" Indoors (" Qutdoors (« Both Include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorlsed, If not already stated, and glve relevant further detalls, for example (but not
excluslvely) whether or not muslc will be ampilifled or unamplifled.

Short fllms or art fllms as part of larger events, large screen outdoor fllm theatre. The malorlty of events wlll be taking place
durlng the perlod Aprll 1st to 30th October, but events may take place at other tlmes of year where seasonal condltlons
permlt.

State any seasonal varlatlons for the exhlbitlon of fllm

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

Mon standard timings. Where the premlses wlll be used for the exhlbltlon of fllm at different times from thoze llsted In the
column on the left, lIst below

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENT 5

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Y
Q
Q
@
N
[y

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

Will you be provilding Indoor sporting events?

™ Yes

« No

Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT 5

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Will you be provlding boxIng or wrestling entertalnments?

™ Yes

« Mo

Section 10 of 21

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Wil you be providing live muslc?

(v Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY Glve timings In 24 hour clock.
Start (09:00 End |23:00 (e.g., 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
of the week when you Intend the premlses
Start End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start (09:00 End [23:00
Start End
WEDNESDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End
THURSDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start | End
FRIDAY
Start (0900 | End [23:00
Start End
SATURDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End
Page 22

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Start |10:00 End |22:00

Start End

WIll the performance of live muslc take place Indoors or outdoors or both? ~ Where taking place In a bullding or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
 Indoors ¢ Qutdoors (+ Both Include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorlsed, If not already stated, and glve relevant further detalls, for example (but not
excluslvely) whether or not muslc will be ampilifled or unamplifled.

Amplifled and un-amplifled muslc to Include open alr concerts, buskers, bandstand style concerts, smaller concerts and
performances, concerts staged Inslde marguees, mllltary muslc, performances of church muslc etc. The majorlty of events
wlll be taking place durlng the perlod Aprll 1=t to 30th October, but events may take place at other times of year where
zeasonal condltlons permit.

State any seazonal varlatlons for the performance of live muslc

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

Mon-standard timings. Where the premlses wlll e used for the performance of llve muslc at different times from thoze llsted
In the column on the left, llst below

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e g. Christmas Eve.

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Wil you be providing recorded muslc?

(v ‘Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Glve timings In 24 hour clock.

Start |09:00 End |23:00 (e.g.. 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
— of the week when you Intend the premlses

Start End to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY
Start |09:00 End |23:00
Start End

Page 23

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

09:00

09:00

03:00

03:00

10:00

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

23:00

23:00

23.00

23.00

22:00

WIll the playlng of recorded muslc take place Indoors or outdoors or both?

"  Indoors

" Quitdoors

(» Both

\Where taking place In a bullding or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
Include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorlsed, If not already stated, and glve relevant further detalls, for example (but not

excluslvely) whether or not muslc wlll be amplifled or unamplifled.

Amplifled recorded muslc to Include open alr concerts, bandstand style concerts, smaller concerts and performances,
concerts staged Inslde marquees, mllltary muslc, performances of church muslc etc. The ma)orlty of events wlll be taking
place durlng the perlod Aprll 15t to 30th October, but events may take place at other times of year where seasonal

condltlons permit.

State any seasonal varlatlons for playlng recorded muslc

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

Mon-standard timings. Where the premlses wlll be used for the playlng of recorded muslc at different times from those listed

In the column on the left, list below

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Page 24

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

Section12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Wil you be provlding performances of dance?

(v Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Glve timings In 24 hour clock.

Start |09:00 End |23:00 (e.g.. 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
of the week when you Intend the premlses

Start End to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00 |
Start ] End

WEDNESDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End

THURSDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start | End

FRIDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End

SATURDAY
Start [09:00 End [23:00
Start End

SUNDAY
Start (1000 | End [22:00
Start End

WIll the performance of dance take place Indoors or outdoors or both? \Where taking place In a bullding or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
™ Indoors ¢ Qutdoors (+ Both Include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorlsed, If not already stated, and glve relevant further detalls, for example (but not
excluslvely) whether or not muslc will be ampilifled or unamplifled.

hls type of actlvity most llkely to take place at art workshops, muslc festlvals, communlty events, fetes, mllltary festlvals,
clrcus performance, re-enactments etc. The majorlty of events wlll be taking place durlng the perlod Aprll 1st to 30th
October, but events may take place at other tlmes of year where seasonal condltlons permlt

adge
S

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

State any seazonal varlatlons for the performance of dance

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

the column on the left, llst Delow

Mon-standard timings. Where the premlses wlll e used for the performance of dance at dlfferent times from those llsted In

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e g. Chrlstmas Eve.

Section13 of 21

DANCE

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MU SIC, RECORDED MU SIC OR PERFORMANCES OF

See guldance on regulated entertalnment

Wil you be provlding anything simllar to llve muslc, recorded muslc or
performances of dance?

 Yes (« No
Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Wil you be provlding late nlght refreshment?
" Yes (« No
Section 15 of 21
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Wil you be selllng or supplylng alcohol?
(v Yes — No
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY Glve timings In 24 hour clock.
Start (10:00 End |22:30 (e.g., 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
I of the week when you Intend the premlses
Start End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start |10:00 End |22:30
Start End

Page 26

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=



Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY
Start [10:00 | End [22:30
Start End
THURSDAY
Start [10:00 End [22:30
Start End
FRIDAY
Start [10:00 End [2230 |
Start ] End
SATURDAY
Start [10:00 End [22:30
Start End
SUNDAY
Start [10:00 End [21:30
Start End ]
WIll the sale of alcohol be for consumption: IT the sale of alcohol Is for consumptlon on
the premlses zelect on, If the sale of alcohol
(¢ Onthe premlses (" Offthe premlses ( Both Is for consumptlon away from the premlses

select off. If the sale of alcohol Is for
consumptlon on the premlses and away
from the premlses select both.

State any seazonal varlatlons

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

Mon-standard timings. Where the premlses wlll De used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed In the
column on the left, lIst below

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

State the name and detalls of the IndIvidual whom you wlzh to speclfy on the
licence as premlses supervisor

Page 27

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

Name

First name Steven

Famlly name Davles

Date of birth B

dd mm VyYy

Enter the contact's address

Bullding number or name _

Street

Dlstrict

Clty or town

County or admlinlstratlve area

Postcode

.
—

Personal Llcence number
(If known)

lssulng llcensing authorlty
(If known)

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How wlll the consent form of the proposed deslgnated premlses supervisor
De zupplled to the authorlty?

( Electronlcally, by the proposed deslgnated premlses supervisor

(¢ Asan attachment to thils applicatlon

Reference number for consent ' Ifthe consent form Is already submltted ask

form (If known) the proposed deslgnated premlses
supervlsor for Itz "system reference’ or 'your
reference’.

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highllght any adult entertalnment or services, actlvitles, or other entertalnment or matters anclllary to the use of the
premlses that may glve rlse to concern In respect of chlldren

Glve Informatlon about anything Intended to occur at the premlses or anclllary to the uze of the premlzes which may glve
rlse to concern In respect of chlldren, regardless of whether you Intend chlldren to have access to the premlses, for example
(but not excluslvely) nudlty or seml-nudlty, fllms for restricted age groups etc gambllng machines etc.

None

v

Qi
«
()
() )]
ap

LU
[#]
[#]

5
1]



Continued from previous page...

Section17 of 21
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start
Start
TUESDAY
Start
Start
WEDNESDAY
Start
Start
THURSDAY
Start
Start
FRIDAY
Start
Start
SATURDAY
Start
Start
SUNDAY
Start
Start

State any seazonal varlatlons

09:00

09:00

03:00

03:00

03:00

09:00

10:00

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

23:00

23:00

23.00

23.00

23.00

23.00

22:00

Glve timings In 24 hour clock.

(e.g., 16:00) and only glve detalls for the days
of the week when you Intend the premlses
to De uzed for the actlvity.

For example (but not excluslvely) where the actlvity will occur on addltlonal days durlng the summer months.

Mon standard timiIngs. Where you Intend to use the premlzes to be open to the members and guests at different times from

thoze llsted In the column on the left, list below

For example (but not excluslvely), where you wish the actlvity to go on longer on a partlcular day e g. Chrlstmas Eve.

Page 29

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Descrlbe the steps you Intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General - all four llcensing objectives (b,cd g

List here steps you willl take to promote all four licensing objectlves together.

1 - Usage of thls Premlses Llcense wlll be categorlsed as the followlng: Rugby Use & Non-Rugby Use.

2 — Rugby Use shall be classlfled as speclflcally Rugby-focussed buslness and events, Including but not limfted to Rugby
Matches, Tralnlng Sesslons, Toummaments.

3 — Non-Rugby Uzse shall be classlfled as non-rugby focussed business and events, Including but not limlted to Charlty

Events, Outdoor Clnemas, Historlcal Re-enactments, Muslc Events, Food & Drink Events, Art Festlvals, Unlverslty and slmllar
Balls.

3— Non-Rugby Use wlll be sub-categorlsed as the following:
Capaclty up to 959 persons — Small Event

Capaclty 1000-24595 persons — Medlum Event

Capaclty 2500-49595 persons — Large Event

4 — The number of days usage per annum Dy category:
Rugby Use — No limlt

Small Event — No limlt

Medlum Event — 4 days per annum

Large Event— 3 days per annum

5 — There wlll be no more than 3 consecutlve days use for Medlum & Large Events. These perlods will be at a maximum of 1
per calendar month, wlth a minlmum of 2 clear weeks In between.

b — All exlsting Premlses Licenses for events wlll be surrendered followlng the granting of this Premlses License.

7 - The Holder of the Premlzes Licence, The Deslgnated Premlses Supervlsor or responslble person over the age of 18 years
nominated by them In wrlting, hereby referred to as ‘Relevant Person’, shall be In charge of and remaln at the Licensed
Premlzes durlng any event where llcensable actlvitles take place. The person In charge shall not be engaged In any dutles
that wlll prevent them from exerclzing general supervislon of the premlses. They shall be responszlble for malntalning good
rule and order within the premlses under this licence, taking charge of emergency sltuatlons and the summoning of
emergency services.

6 — All Non-Rugby Use of the Premlzes License shall be notifled In writing to the Local Authorlty no less than 28 days prior to
use of the Premlses License.

The following conditlons wlll apply to all usage for Medlum & Large Events

9— All Medlum & Large Events shall submit no later than 2 months prlor, Ideally sooner, to usage dates a draft Event
Management Plan (EMP) to the Safety Advlsory Group (SAG) (or other body nominated by the Llcensing Authorlty) for
comment and dlscusslon. The Draft EMP shall contaln, but not be limlted to:

a. Event Management Structure
b. Event Rlsk Assessment

c. Operatlonal Management Plan
d. 5lte Plan

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

e Constructlon Phaze Plan, RIsK Assesaments and Method Statements
f. Flre Rlsk Assessment

g. Major Incldent Plan (Including Counter Terrorlsm Measures)

h. Securlty and Crowd Management Plan (Including Search Policy)
|. Medlcal Rlsk assessment and Plan

|. Adverse Weather Plan

k. Chlldren and Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding Pollcy

|. Trafflc and Tranzsport Management Plan

m. Alcohol Management Plan

n. Sanltatlon Plan

0. Waste Management Plan

p. Health & Safety Pollcy

g. Alcohol & Drug Use Pollcy

10 — The final draft of the EMP shall be submltted by the PLH, DPS or Relevant Person to the SAG for approval 28 days before
the relevant event day. Thereafter any further changes to the EMP must be approved by the Licensing Authorlty.

11 - Throughout an event the PLH, DP5 or Relevant Person shall establish an Event Control to Include the Event Llalson
Team (ELT) comprlsing representatives of the PLH, Securlty and nomlnated representatives of the Licensing Authorlty and
Responslble Authorltles. Durlng event days the ELT shall manage operatlon of the event. Any necessary changes to the EMP
may only De made wlth the consent of the ELT.

12 - The PLH, DPS or Relevant Perzon wlll Implement the flnal EMP for each event.

13 - Any authorlsed offlcer of the Licensing Authorlty and the Responsible Authorltles, shall have access to the licensed slte
at all reasonable times for the purposes of ensuring compllance with the Premlses Licence Conditlons and the promotlon of
the llcensing objectlves.

14 - The Pollce wlll be notlfled at the earllest opportunlty by the Head of Securlty In the case of any Incldents of serlous
crime and dlsorder where the victlm consents and where the victlm does not consent, where an Interventlon Is required to
malntaln wider public safety at the dlscretlon of the Head of Securlty or PLH, DPS or Relevant Person.

15 - All securlty and stewardIng staff wlll recelve a brleflng, which wlll Include sultable Informatlon and Instructlons relevant
to the event, from the appolnted securlty and crowd manager prlor to each event. All securlty and stewardlng staff will be
easlly Identlflable and reglstered Securlty Industry Securlty (SIA) shall wear vizlble SIA badges at all times when on duty. The
area to De uzed for the event, Including the public arena, and work areas wlll be enclosed by a secure permltter with deflned
and controlled entry polnts and exlts, Including emergency exlts. Detalls of the secure perlmeter shall be agreed with the
Licensing Authorlty and Responslble Authorltles via the SAG prlor to each event.

16 - All entry to the premlses for events wlll be controlled and managed by SIA securlty employed by the securlty
contractor. Securlty staff wlll be brlefed on the entry condltlons, search procedures and any other relevant policles,
procedures or requirements for each event.

17 - Entry condltlons wlll be dlsplayed at all entrances to the premises, Including entry to work areas. Patrons wlll not be
allowed to re-enter the premlses after they have left (unless at the dlscretlon of the Head of Securlty re-entry Is consldered
approprlate) or after they have been ejected.

18 - Patrons, contractors, workers, volunteers, artlzts and thelr guests may De searched on entry to the premlses In
accordance with the search pollcy and procedure contalned In the Securlty and Crowd Management Plan. Chlldren will be
accompanled by a respons|ble adult durlng any search.

19 - Detalls of prohlblted ltems wlll be Included In the condltlons of entry to the event, wlll be avallable on the event's
webslte and wlll De clearly displayed at all entry polnts. Patrons will not be allowed to bring glazs or open Dottles Into the
Licensed Premlses.

20 - Secure amnesty Dins will De provided at designated dRtagpoBds agreed with the Police. Items surrendered or

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

contlscated will be held and dlsposed of Dy the securlty and crowd manager In accordance w rocedures agreed w e
Pollce. A log wlll be malntalned of conflscatlon, selzures and dlsposals by the securlty and crowd manager and wlll be made
avallable for Inspectlon Dy the Licensing Authorlty and the Pollce on reasonable request.

21— Tempaorary CCTV wlll be Installed at entrance polnt(s) to record a clear faclal Image of every person enterlng. Footage
zhall be stored for a minlmum of 31 days. In the event that Images are requested from a constable or authorlzed offlcer of a
rezsponslble authorlty the management wlll ensure a staff member who ls conversant with the operatlon of the CCTV system
zhall be on the premlses at all tlmes the premlses are open to the public. This staff member shall glve technlcal asslstance to
them In the event that CCTV footage |s requested for the preventlon and detectlon of suspected or alleged crime, or
offence and be able to show a police offlcer or authorlsed Councll offlcer recent data or footage.

22 - Body worn vlideo cameras wlll be worn by deslgnated SIA securlty response teams when responding to alleged
Incldents.

23 - The PLH shall ensure adequate lighting Is provided throughout the premlzes and within the vicinlty of the premlses’
footprint Including public areas for entry, exlt and emergency egress routes detalls of which wlll be Included on the Slte
Plan.

24 - Lost Property wlll be retalned by Event Control and a log of tems wlll be kept. Where Informatlon about the owner Is
avallable, the customer services team wlll make attempts to contact the patron concerned and return thelr ltem(s). A
contact emall address for Informatlon about lost property will be provided by the PLH.

25 - A Major Incldent Plan wlll be Included within the EMP. The Major Incldent Plan wlll be agreed In advance with the
Licensing Authorlty and Responszlble Authorltles prlor to the flrst event of each year vla the SAG (or other body nominated
by the Licenslng Authorlty). The Major Incldent Plan will Include detalls of coordinatlon with the emergency services and
how the premlses wlll be evacuated. The EMP wlll contaln the contact detalls of thoze nominated by the PLH to manage any
major Incldent.

26 - The PLH wlll ensure the provislon of and malntaln sultable access to the site at all times durlng the bulld, break and live
events, for emergency services Including the Pollce, ambulance and flre and a rescue, Including durlng the departure and
arrlval of patrons and adverse weather. Detalls of the emergency access routes, Including thelr specificatlon, shall be
contalned In the Major Incldent Plan within the EMP. Theze routes wlll De deslgnated as the ‘Blue Routes’.

2T - The PLH wlll agree Emergency Services Rendezvous Polnts with the emergency services. Detalls of the Blue Routes and
Emergency Services Rendezvous Polnts will be detalled within the EMP and on the Slte Plan.

26 - A Safeguarding of Chlldren and Vulnerable Adults Pollcy wlll be Included In the EMP and agreed with the Licensing
Authorlty and ResponzIble Authorltles prlor to each event vla the SAG. All members of the Event Llalzon Team wlll be
brlefed on the safeguarding measures and all operatlonal staff wlll follow the procedures set out In the Pollcy.

29 - The welfare service provider wlll be provlded for chlldren, Including lost and unaccompanled chlldren and vulnerable
adults. Welfare provider and those wlth slgnlflcant access to chlldren and vulnerable adults with be subject to a Dlsclosure
and Barrlng check. A Lost Chlldren pollcy wlll De Included In the EMP and agreed with the Licensing Authorlty and
Responslble Authorltles prlor to each event vla the SAG.

30 - All planning for the event wlll be In line with recommendatlons lald out In the onllne Purple Gulde’ and H5G154
Managlng Crowds Safely and wlll be planned In strong conzultatlon wlth local authorltles and licensing staff vla regular
meetings starting no less than 3 months before the propozed start date of any actlvltles on the sle.

31 - The final zlte layout shall be as agreed wlth the event health and safety advlsor and Securlty consultant and all statutory
authorltles (which Includes but Is not limlted to members of the councll events department, licensing, highways, parking,
and Dlue light services )

32 - There shall De at leazt one personal llcence holder In the Dar present whllst the Dars s In operatlon. Furthermaore,
whenever the premlses are open to the public the Deslgnated Premlses Supervilsor shall be present within the licensed
premlses.

33 - Plastlc glasses or cans wlll be used at the bar. Where Pdripd B2 a bottle and this Is not plastic, the contents of sald

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

orte W e deCanted Into a plastic glass.

34 - The boundarles of the llcensed premlses wlll De clearly fenced and marked so that staff, Interested partles, pollce and
members of the publlc can clearly see what areas are belng used for licenzable actlvitles.

35 - No event shall take place untll an Event Management Plan has Deen submitted to and approved by all other relevant
statutory bodles.

36 - All core event staff and personnel wlll be lssued with a radlo and wlll be In contact with event control.

37 - All licensed door staff wlll uze radlos to contact each other and wlll wear hl-vislbllity arm bands with thelr 51A badge
clearly on display. They wlll also be In high vizIbllity Jackets or simllar and should be clearly Identlflable as securlty.

38 - All stewards wlll wear high visibllity Jackets or zslmllar and should De clearly ldentiflable as stewards.

D) The preventlon of crime and disorder

39— For all events, the appolnted securlty contractor wlll provide 5IA reglstered securlty staff provizlon, Including the mlx of
male/female staff wlll be bazed on a rlsk assessment carrled out no less than one month before any event.

40 - OQutzlde the permltted hours for alcehol, all alcohollc drinks shall be secured safely to prevent thelr sale or theft
41 - Any patrons displayIng slgns of drunkenness or use of drugs wlll be e|ected from the premlses where It Is safe to do so
or admitted to onslte welfare facllitles untll they are deemed safe to be e|ected. Where antl-soclal behavlour = observed In

connectlon wlth alcohol or drugs, the patron wlll be eJected when safe to do so.

42 - Refuzal log books wlll be completed for any refusal of the sale of alcohol. There wlll be one book at every bar and wlll be
made avallable upon request to offlcers from Cambrldge Clty Councll, Trading Standards or Cambridgeshlre Constabulary.

c) Public safety

43 - Adequate medIcal provizlon wlll be made avallable In line with calculatlons from the "Purple Gulde” and followling a rlsk
assessment carrled out by the PLH/medlcal provider.

44 - An Incldent book will be completed for any Incldent that takes place within the llcensed premlses. The book will be
made avallable upon request to offlcers from the Licensing Authorlty, Tradlng Standards and Cambrldgeshire Constabulary.

45 - Waste management teams, alongslde event staff wlll De engaged to ensure the event slte Is cleaned and returned to lis
previous condltlon.

The followlng wlll be valld for Medlum & Large Events

46 - Securlty wlll be posted at key locatlons, as Identifled within the EMP and agreed with all relevant statutory authorltles,
around the event shte to ensure the protectlon of adjolning resldencles and buslnesses.

47 - All drugs or llliclt substances found or conflscated on slte wlll be logged vla radlo at the polnt of conflscatlon and then
returned to the event HQ where It wlll be securely stored and logged In a drugs book which shall be made avallable upon
request to Offlcers from Cambrldgeshlre Constabulary. All contraband along with selzure records wlll be handed to
Cambrldgeshlire Constabulary at the end of the event.

43 - A dedicated area In the shte, ad|acent to the First Ald sectlon, wlll be provlided for welfare provislon to treat and ensure
the zafety of any vulnerable patrons In the premises.

d) The preventlon of public nulsance Page 33

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

49 — All non-rugby use wlll be communlcated wlth the local communlty, by way of letter drop, electronlc mall, through
rezldent representatives or any other sultable means of communlcatlon.

The followlng wlll be valld for Medlum & Large Events

50 - Attendees wlll be remiInded of the resldentlal locatlon vla digltal medla In advance of the event and clear slgnage
throughout the event shte wlll be used to remind and Inform attendees of the proxImlty of resldentlal areas.

51 - Nolse limlts wlll be agreed wlth local authorlty nolse management agents and adhered to vigorously. All resldents
wlthin the area wlll De advised, by way of a letter drop, of any use of the premlses, no less than one month before any event.
A contact number wlll be provided In this letter drop for resldents to be able to contact the nolse management staff to
ensure any complalnts can be dealt with In a timely fashlon.

52 - Sufflclent sanltary facllitles will be made avallable within the premilses to prevent public urlnatlon (as per the Event
Management Plan).

53 - Followlng dlscusslon with Cambrldge Clty Councll Environmental Protectlon team, nolse limlts will be set In advance.
These limlts wlll be Implemented throughout the course of the bulld, de-rlg and live dates.

54 - The organlsers wlll monltor on-slte dB nolse levels and ensure that set nolze limlts wlill be adhered to, wilth regular
readlng to be taken and recorded.

55 - A dedlcated communlty "hotline’ wlll be In place for local resldents to contact the festlval organlsers, enabling them to
respond to nolse dlsturbance concerns and react accordingly.

56 — At least 3 months prlor to a Medlum or Large Event, the PLH, DP5S or Relevant Person shall employ a sultably qualifled
Molse Management Consultant.

57 — The appolnted nolze consultant shall produce a Nolse Management Plan (NMP) to De submltted at least 3 months prior
to the event for approval by the licenzing authorlty. The NMP shall propose off-slte Muslc Nolse Level (MNL) limhs, to
Include low-frequency criterla (expressed as LCeq,T)

5& - The event organlser & appolnted nolse consultant shall engage and work closely with the Local Authorlty
Environmental Health Team In all phases of the event to ensure compllance to the Nolse Management Plan. This Includes
pre, during and post event, Including sharlng any relevant documents and nolse monltoring records upon request.

59 — The PLH wlll provide a dlrect contact number for a named manager, who wlll always be on duty at the Premlses during
an event and contactable when the Premlses Is open (Communlty Hotline). All complaints will be logged and those relating
to nolse wlll Immedlately be relayed to the Nolse Management Consultant with detalls, where provided, of the
complalnant’s name, address and postcode, telephone number and a descriptlon of the disturbance. The Molse
Management Consultant wlll vislt the complalnant's address as zoon as reasonably practlcable and take a measurement. If
Muslc Nolze Levels (MNL) are measured to be above the limlt, Immedlate actlon wlll be taken on-slte to reduce the level
from the event

60 — The communlty hotline contact number wlll be displayed on the Premlse’s webslte, provided to the Licensing
Authorlty and displayed clearly and prominently at the entrance to the Premlses.

61— The PLH, DP5 or Relevant Person wlll undertake an assessment and provide a plan with regards to Trafflc Management,
thils wlll Include but not be limlted to: Applylng for a Temporary Trafflc Restriction Order (TTRO), Implementing a one way
zystem on Grantchester Road, Implementing Mo Parklng Slgnage on Grantchester, Fulbrooke and Selwyn Roads, Managing
a dedlcated Plck Up/Drop Off area.

Page 34

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

e) The protectlon of chlldren from harm

62 — The premises will adopt a 'Challenge 25" pollcy whereby any person attempting to buy alcohol who appears to be
under 25 wlll be asked for photographlc |D as proof of thelr age. The only ID that wlll accepted are valld pazsports and UK
driving llcenses with a photograph, or proof of age cards bearlng the PASS mark hologram. The llst of approved D may be
amended or revlsed with the prlor agreement of Cambrldgeshire Constabulary and the Licensing Authorlty without the

need to amend the actual llcense.

63 - All age restricted sales tralnlng undertaken by staff members wlll be fully documented and recorded prior to belng
allowed to sell alcohol.

The followlng wlll be valld for Medlum & Large events:

64 - Depending on the speclflc event, the slte wlll elther De restricted to people who are 18 years or older or It wlll be open
to all ages. When applicable, anyone under the age of 18 wlll need to be accompanled by an adult. 2 people under 18 years
of age can be accompanled by one adult (exceptlons due to clrcumstances wlll be made e.g. single guardlans and large
famlly groups). Vlgorous |D checks wlll be carrled out at the polnt of entry and sale for any age restricted products. The age
policy of each event wlll be speclfled within the EMP.

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 35

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A llcence may not be held by an Indlvidual or an Indlvidual In a partnershlp who Is resldent In the UK who:

- does not have the right to llve and work In the UK; or
- Iz sublect to a condltlon preventing him or her from dolng work relating to the carrylng on of a licensable
activity.

Any premlzes llcence lssued In respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 wlll become Invalld If the holder
ceases to De entltled to work In the UK

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entltlement to work In the UK and are not sublect to a condltlon preventing
them from dolng work relating to the carrylng on of a llcenzable actlvity. They do thls In one of two ways: 1) by providing
wlth thils applicatlon coples or scanned coples of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certlfled), or 2) by
provilding thelr ‘share code’ to enable the llcensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Offlce online right to work
checklng service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

- An explred or current passport showling the holder, or a person named In the passport as the chlld of the
holder, Is A Britlsh cltlzen or a cltlzen of the UK and Colonles having the right of abode In the UK [please see
note below about which sectlons of the passport to copy].

= An explred or current passport or natlonal ldentlty card showlng the holder, or a person named In the passport
as the chlld of the holder, Is a natlonal of a European Economic Area country or Swhzerland.

- A Reglstratlon Certlficate or document certlfylng permanent resldence lssued by the Home Offlce to a natlonal
of a European Economlc Area country or Switzerland.

- A Permanent Resldence Card lssued by the Home Office to the famlly member of a natlonal of a European
Economlc Area country or Swhzerland.

- A current Blometrlc Immigratlon Document (Blometrlc Resldence Permlt) lzsued by the Home Offlce to the
holder Indlcatlng that the person named I= allowed to stay Indefinltely In the UK or has no time limlt on thelr
stay In the UK.

- A current passport endorsed to show that the holder Is exempt from Immlgratlon control, l= allowed to stay
Indefinltely In the UK, has the right of abode In the UK. or has no time limlt on thelr stay In the UK

- A current Immilgratlon Status Document lssued by the Home Offlce to the holder whth an endorsement

Indlcating that the named person |s allowed to stay Indefinltely In the UK or has no time limlt on thelr stay In
the UK, when produced in combination with an offlclal document glving the person’s permanent Natlonal
Insurance number and thelr name Issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

- A birth or adoptlon certlflcate lzsued In the UK, when produced in combination with an offlclal document
glving the person’s permanent Matlonal Insurance number and thelr name lssued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

- A birth or adoptlon certiflcate lssued In the Channel Islands, the |sle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an offlclal document glving the person’s permanent Matlonal Insurance number and thelr
name lssued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

- A certlflcate of reglstratlon or naturallsatlon as a Britlsh cltlzen, when produced in combination with an
offlclal document glving the person’s permanent Natlonal Insurance number and thelr name lssued by a
Government agency or a prevlious employer.

Page 36

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

- A current passport endorsed to show that the holder Is allowed to stay In the UK and = currently allowed to
work and Is not sublect to a condltlon preventing the holder from dolng work relating to the carrylng on of a
licensable activity.

- A current Blometrlc Immigratlon Document (Blometrlc Resldence Permlt) lssued by the Home Offlce to the
holder which Indlcates that the named person can currently stay In the UK and Is allowed to work relatlon to
the carrylng on of a licensable actlvity.

- A current Resldence Card lssued by the Home Offlce to a perzon who |5 not a natlonal of a European Economlc
Area state or Switzerland but who Is a famlly member of such a natlonal or who has derlvative rights or
resldence.

- A current Immilgratlon Status Document contalnlng a photograph lssued by the Home Office to the holder

wlth an endorsement Indlcating that the named person may stay In the UK, and Is allowed to work and s not
sublect to a condltlon preventing the holder from dolng work relatlng to the camrylng on of a licensable actlvity
when produced in combination with an offlclal document glving the person’s permanent Natlonal Insurance
number and thelr name lssued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

- A Certlflcate of Applicatlon, less than 6 months old, lssued by the Home Offlce under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immlgratlon (European Economlic Area) Regulatlons 2016, to a person who |s not a natlonal of a
European Economlc Area state or Switzerland but who Is a famlly member of such a natlonal or who has
derlvative rlghts of resldence.

- Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary thelr permisslon to De In the UK
wlth the Home Offlce such as the Home Offlce acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evlidence that the person has an appeal or adminlstrative revlew pending on an Immilgratlon
decklon, such as an appeal or adminlstrative review reference number.

- Reasonable evidence that a person who Is not a natlonal of a European Economilc Area state or Swltzerland but
who s a famlly member of such a natlonal or who has derlvatlve rights of resldence In exerclzslng treaty rights In
the UK Including-

- evldence of the applicant’s own Identlty — such as a passport,
= evldence of thelr relatlonshlp with the European Economlc Area famlly member —e.g. a marrlage
certlflcate, clvll partnershlp certlflcate or birth certificate, and
- evldence that the European Economlc Area natlonal has a right of permanent resldence In the UK or |s one
of the followlIng If they have been In the UK for more than 3 months:
(I) worklng e.g. employment contract, wage sllps, letter from the employer,
() self-employed e.g. contracts, Involces, or audlted accounts wlth a bank,
(1) studylng e.g. letter from the school, college or unlversity and evidence of sufficlent funds; or
() self-sufflclent e g. bank statements.

Famlly members of European Economlc Area natlonals who are studying or financlally Independent must also provide
evldence that the European Economlc Area natlonal and any famlly members hold comprehensive slckness Insurance In the
UK. This can Include a private medlcal Insurance pollcy, an EHIC card or an 51, 52 or 53 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. |f the document copled Is a passport, a copy of the
followlng pages should be provided:-

(I) any page contalning the holder's personal detalls Including natlonallty;

(I} any page contalning the holder's photograph;

(lll) any page contalning the holder's slgnature;

(Iv) any page contalning the date of explry; and

(v) any page contalning Informatlon Indlcating the holder has permlsslon to enter or remaln In the UK and s permlited to
wark.

Page 37

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

|If the document |z not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

‘Your right to work wlll be checked as part of your licensing application and thls could Invalve us checklng your Immigration
status with the Home Offlce. We may otherwlse share Informatlon with the Home Offlce. Your licence applicatlon will not be
determined untll you have complled with thls guldance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternatlve to provlding a copy of the documents llsted above, appllcants may demonstrate thelr right to work by
allowlng the licensing authorlty to carry out a check wlth the Home Offlce online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate thelr right to work vla the Home Office onllne right to work checklng service, appllcants should Include In
this applicatlon thelr 9-diglt share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at hitps.//'www.gov uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant’s date of birth (provided within thls application), wlll allow the licensing authorlty
to carry out the check.

In order to establish the appllcant’s right to work, the check wlll need to Indlcate that the applicant Is allowed to work In the
Unlted Kingdom and Is not subject to a condltlon preventing them from dolng work relating to the carrylng on of a
licensable activity.

An onllne check wlll not be poszlble In all clrcumstances because not all applicants wlll have an Immlgratlon status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checklng service sets out what Informatlon and/or documentatlon
applicants wlll need In order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtaln a share code from the service
should submlt copy documents as zet out above.

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 38

=

= Crowm copyright




Continued from previous page...

In terms of speclflc regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence s requlred for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audlence
does not exceed 500.

Fllms: no licence |s requlred for ‘not-for-profit’ flim exhlbltlon held In communlity premlses between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provlded that the audlence does not exceed 500 and the organlser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who Is responslble for the premlses; and (b) ensures that each such screening abldes
by age clazsiflcatlon ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence Is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audlence does not exceed 1000.

BoxIng or Wrestling Entertalnment: no licence Is requlred for a contest, exhlbltlon or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audlence does not
exceed 1000. Comblned flghting sports — deflned as a contest, exhlbltlon or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martlal arts — are licensable as a boxIng or wrestling entertalnment rather than an
Indoor sportlng event.

Live muslc: no licence permlsslon Is required for:
a performance of unamplified llve muslc between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premlses.

a performance of amplifled llve muslc between 05.00 and 23.00 on any day on premlses authorlsed to sell
alcohol for consumptlon on those premlses, provlided that the audlence does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplifled llve muslc between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, In a workplace that Is not
llcensed to sell alcohol on those premlses, provlided that the audlence does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplifled llve muslc beteween 06.00 and 23.00 on any day, In a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other simllar community premlses, that |s not llcensed by a premises licence to zell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audlence does not exceed 500, and (b) the organlser gets consent for the
performance from a person who Is responslble for the premlses.

a performance of ampllifled llve muslc between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-resldentlal premlses
of {I) a local authorlty, or (I} a school, or (lll) a hospltal, provided that (a) the audlence does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organlser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (I} the local
authorlty concemed, or (ll) the school or (lll) the health care provider for the hospltal.

Recorded Muslc: no llcence permlsslon Is required for:

any playlng of recorded muslc between 06.00 and 23.00 on any day on premlses authorlsed to zell alcohol
for consumptlon on those premlses, provided that the audlence does not exceed 500.

any playlng of recorded muslc between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, In a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other simllar communlty premises, that |s not llcensed by a premlses licence to zell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audlence does not exceed 500, and (b) the organlser gets consent for the
performance from a person who Is responsible for the premlses.

any playlng of recorded muslc between 06.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-resldentlal premlses of (l) a
local authorlty, or {ll) a school, or (lll) a hospltal, provided that (a) the audlence does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organlser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premlses from: (l) the local authorlty
concerned, or (ll) the school proprletor or (lll) the health care provider for the hospltal.

=

Page 39

reiT e e i
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

- Dance: no licence Is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audlence does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertalnment remalns
llcenzable.

- Cross actlvity exemptlons: no llcence Is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no llmlt on
audlence slze for:

0 any entertalnment taking place on the premlses of the local authorlty where the entertalnment Is provided
by or on behalf of the local authorlty;

0 any entertalnment taking place on the hospltal premlses of the health care provider where the
entertalnment Iz provided Dy or on behalf of the health care provider;

0 any entertalnment taking place on the premlses of the school where the entertalnment Is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

0 any entertalnment (excluding flims and a boxlng or wrestling entertalnment) taking place at a travelling
clrcus, provided that (a) It takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audlence, and
(D) that the travelling clrcus has not been located on the same slte for more than 26 consecutlve days.

Section 21 of 21

PAYMENT DETAILS

Thiz fee must be pald to the authorlty. [T you complete the applicatlon online, you must pay It by deblt or credlt card.

Premlzes Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premlses. To find out a
premlses non domestlc rateable value go to the Valuatlon Offlce Agency slte at http//www voa.gov.uk/business rates/
Index htm

The natlonal scale of fees Is set out below and also avallable on our webslte: http://wew cambrldge gov.uk/ccm/content/
ehws/licensing/fees.en Pleaze enter and pay the appropriate fee. [T you are uncertaln of the fee enter 0 In the amount fleld
and the Clty Councll wlll contact you to advlse you of the fee. Please note the appllcatlon wlll not be processed untll the
correct fee haz Deen pald.

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £150.00

Band C - £33001 to £87000 £315.00

Band D -£87001 to £125000 £450.00"

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

*If the premizes rateable value Is In Bands D or E and the premises Is primarlly used for the consumptlon of alcohol on the
premlses then your are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £67001 to £125000 £900.00

Band E-£125001 and over £1,905.00

There Is an exemptlon from the payment of fees In relatlon to the provislon of regulated entertalnment at church halls,
chapel halls or premlses of a simllar nature, village halls, parlsh or communilty halls, or other premlses of a simllar nature. The
costs assoclated with theze llcences wlill be met by central Government. If, however, the llcence also authorlzes the use of
the premlses for the supply of alcohol or the provislon of late night refreshment, a fee wlll be required.

Schools and slxth form colleges are exempt from the fees assoclated with the authorlzatlon of regulated entertalnment
where the entertalnment Iz provided by and at the =chool or college and for the purposes of the =chool or college.

IT you operate a large event you are sublect to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number In attendance at any one time
Capaclty 5000-9995 £1,000.00

Capaclty 10000 -14999 £2 000.00

Capaclty 15000-19599 £4,000.00

Capaclty 20000-29599 £5,000.00

Capaclty 30000-39999 £16,000.00

Capaclty 40000-49599 £24 000.00

Capaclty 50000-59999 £32 000.00

Capaclty 60000-69599 £40,000.00

Capaclty 70000-79599 £45,000.00

Capaclty 80000-89999 £56,000.00

Capaclty 30000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00 Page 40

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




Continued from previous page...

DECLARATION

. l/we understand It Is an offence, llable on convlictlon to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under sectlon 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement In or In connectlon with this application.

[Applicable to Indlvidual applicants only, Including those In a partnershlp which s not a limlted llabllity partnership] |

. understand | am not entltled to be lssued with a llcence If| do not have the entltlement to llve and work In the UK (or If|
am subject to a condltlon preventlng me from dolng work relating to the carrylng on of a llcensable actlvity) and that my
licence will become Invalld If | cease to be entltled to llve and work In the UK (pleaze read guldance note 15).

The DPS named In this application form Is entltled to work In the UK (and Is not sublect to condltlons preventing him or
* her from dolng work relating to a licensable actlvity) and | have seen a copy of hls or her proof of entltlement to work, If
approprlate (please see note 15).

B Ticking thls box Indlcates you have read and understood the above declaratlon

Thlz sectlon should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the appllcant?™

* Full name TIm Hague
* Capaclty Applicant
* Date 28 | J |03 [ 2025
dd mm VyYy
Add another signatory

Once you're finlshed you need to do the followlng:

1. Save thls form to your computer by clicklng flle/save as...

2. Go back to https//www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-llcence/premlses-licence/cambridge/apply-1 to upload thls flle and contlnue
wlth your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentatlon to hand.

ITISAN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

ITIS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 248 OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING 50 BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSEWHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO 15 SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS ASTO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCEWHERE THEY DO 50 IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
15 DISQUALIFIED

Page 41

=
= e oo e
= LA W CA Ly I

=




OFFICE USE ONLY

Appllcant reference number

Fee pald

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorlsatlon code

Payment authorlsatlon date

Date and tlme submltted

Approval deadline

Error message

sDigitallyslgned [ B

| Y 3 i o [2 L1 2 g ] Ll Ji
= I

2 DIdus|IA 218u6g L

ELLOL Wez29de

wbbloag| geaqpiue

D96 9Uq [IWe 2npuif[sq

LIMWEUS SNEUOLIZZfIOU QIf6

LaMWBUf SN{UOLIZfIoL Coge

LIALIGL 2[2[nz2

Er2 b9Mwsuf gelslslUcs

LaAweUf bLoaIgeL LelsLEUCE

k66 baiq

whbIcauf LelsLsUCcs UNWpsL
OEEICE N2E OUT'A

Page 42

= Crowm copyright



http://www.tcpdf.org

S
2 g
§ 3
a3
G

20

iy 8
134 N 2
48 e +
FuLBro
0 e OKE Roap B
[ ?;)
L
(| :
»
-/ i N [
Car Park
Sports
Pavilion

Cambridge Rugby

Football Ground

O

Cambridge University
pquet and Lawn Tennis Club

O

@
2

O g

Bath (4, )

L Twr
.

8
L TV\{I’
3

1.22m Ry

City: Cambridge
Site: Rugby Club
Scale: 1:1250 @A3 Page 43

] License Line

GRANTCHESTER ROAD




This page is intentionally left blank



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

S s

The events have been very noisy with heavy traffic on our small road, vehicle
driving to the events far too fast ignoring speed limits and very dangerous!!! Loud
music and shouting. Several days in a row should not be allowed. Weekday should
not be allowed to go beyond 8pm. We have to get up for work and there are small
children here who can't sleep due to the noise and traffic. This is a residential area
and these events should be outside residential areas if run so often and so late.
Rugby clubs for rugby only.

2- Hugh Parker — EIm Coftage, Tideford, Saltash, Cornwall, PL12 SHN

| am shortly to purchase number 47 Fulbrooke Road. The ground upon which |
object is the likelinood of significant noise nuisance in what is otherwise a quiet
residential area. Noise from present activities travels very widely and the increase
in the number and frequency of event would cause a significant increase in
disturbance.

< - Karen Sherlock — 45 Selwyn Road, Cambridge, CB3 9EA

Prevention of public nuisance: 1. the site is in a quiet residential area; this
application has no limit on the number of days per annum that events upto 999
persons capacity could be held. As the application is for seven days a week, hours
effectively all day, the impact on residents could be excessive. 2. noise - the
application is for outdoor and indoor live and recorded music, seven days a week,
hours effectively all day. Even with sound levels and monitoring noise would be
very intrusive - the open green spaces allow the noise to travel and make sleeping
particularly for young children in the summer when windows are open very difficult.
3. the application states that existing licences will be surrendered if this application
Is granted. There are existing premises licences granted to private companies for
the premises for large events | believe 2 x weekend and 1x single day will they
continue? 4. traffic and volume of additional people in the area - people leaving the
venue either on foot, by taxi or driving will often exit through residential areas,
noise and disturbance to local residents is likely.

| dread the level of noise from these events, especially the underlying beat of the
music which infiltrates every room of the house and is impossible to get away
from. As a resident of over 20 years | despair of finding a way of coping while

these events are taking place. | submit this under objective 3-the prevention of
Fublic Nuisance. DO NOT publish on the Cambridge City Council website.

Page 45



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

5 - Jane LaniIEi -77 SEIHH Road, Newnham, Cambridge, CBJ3 9EA

Reasons for objection: Newnham is a quiet residential area wholly unsuited to
public events. Previously, we have experienced severe nuisance from very loud
noise, unregulated crowds, drunkenness and fouling of local gardens. The streets
cannot sustain a large volume of traffic. These events pose a serious risk.

6 - Lynn Hieatt - 16 Grantchester Road, CBJ 9ED

| am a local resident and generally support the sporting and social events held at
the Cambridge Rugby Club.

However, | OBJECT to this particular application on Public Nuisance grounds.

It represents an unreasonable escalation in the proposed number and type of
events. As | understand it, if granted it effectively will allow a wide range of
entertainment and events (plays, films, live music, recorded music, dance) along
with the sale of alcohol on Monday-Saturday 09:00-23:00 (Sunday 10:00 — 22:00),
anywhere on the whole of the Rugby Club field.

For Rugby and Rugby-related activities, the application seems to have absolutely
no limit on the number or size of the events. And for non-Rugby-related events,
there appears to be no limit to events with fewer than 1,000 attendees; for larger
events apparently 7 of these would be allowed each year.

All of these provisions seem to me to be excessive and a strain on the local
residents’ good temper and the peace and calm of the neighbourhood. Already the
events that are held there are generally tolerated but this escalation would cause
further problems such as noise from the events themselves and the nuisance of
crowds of cars and walkers, plus the seemingly inevitable litter along our road that
OCCUTS.

Surely some compromise would be possible to allow the Club to hold revenue-
enhancing events without going to the excessive extent that this application seeks
to do.

7 - Lorraine Cunningham — 27 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB2 SEE

| hereby object to the proposed licence application 28669581 on the grounds that it
will cause public nuisance to local residents in terms of noise and traffic
congestion. | am particularly concerned that the licence application includes the
option to hold non-sporting events at any time - and as often as desired - including
music events and balls, which are highly disruptive to local residents in terms of
noise and traffic. | would draw the Licence Officers attention to points 4 and 5 of
the Licence application. ‘4 — The number of days usage per annum by category:
Rugby Use — No limit Small Event — No limit” No limit on small events means that

Page 46



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

there could potentially be hundreds of events throughout the year of up to 1000
people, which would clearly have a negative impact on local residents. As a
sporting venue, CRUFC is a great amenity for the community and sporting events
should be welcomed. Frequent small non-sporting events - especially those with
loud music and the sale of alcohol - are not appropriate for this quiet residential
area. Residents in Fulbrooke Road and neighbouring streets choose to live here
because it is a quiet, semi-rural area. Music events cause a great disturbance to
our quality of life, particularly in the summer when trying to enjoy the garden or the
quiet of indoors. Windows often need to be open for ventilation in the summer, but
even with windows closed, the vibration from low frequency beats inherent in pop
and dance music can still be heard and is often disturbing and unsettling,
especially when played for an extended period of time. In recognition of this, the
Licensing panel in January requested that additional measurements of low
frequency sounds were added to the noise control measurements. Of further
concem to local residents is the proposed increase in medium (up to 2500 people)
and large (up to 5000 people) music events from the 3 currently licensed to 7 per
year. ‘4 — The number of days usage per annum by category: Medium Event — 4
days per annum Large Event — 3 days per annum In January 2025, a licensing
application for a 2-day medium event in July (initially 2,500 people with the option
to increase to 5000 from 2026) was reduced to one day by the licensing panel in
recognition of the negative effect it would have on local residents. Many objections
were heard at the licence hearing from a number of concerned residents and the
panel took these into account when reaching a decision to grant just one day for
2025 only. A line from the report reads: "Granting the application, as amended,
would provide a balance between the commercial interests of the Applicant, the
rugby club and the rights of residents.” The panel was also mindful of the widely
accepted Pop Code (Code of Practice for Outdoor music events) which sets
guidelines of between 1 and 3 Music events in any one year for semi-urban/rural
locations because of the negative cumulative effect of such events on local
residents. Granting a licence for further such events not only goes against the
guidelines in the CoP but would also be detrimental to the quality of life of local
residents. 5 — There will be no more than 3 consecutive days use for Medium &
Large Events. These periods will be at a maximum of 1 per calendar month, with a
minimum of 2 clear weeks in between. Three consecutive days of loud, relentless
music in June, potentially followed by another three days in July - especially pop
and dance music, with its heavy bass beat - will be distressing and unpleasant for
local residents during the summer months, at a time when people should be able
to relax in their homes and gardens. Some context is useful here: (1) CRUFC fields
Is a designated sporting venue: the land was initially leased, then bought from
Kings College to provide a venue for Rugby practices, matches and events. Over
recent years, the club has raised funds in a number of ways beyond rugby events,
including business conferences, other sporting events such as volleyball
tournaments and even a Motor bike stunt event. It also continues to be a base for
film crews. (ii) CRUFC is located on green belt at the edge of Newnham, adjacent
to residential housing one side and flat, open fields that stretch to Grantchester on
the other sides. The only access to and from the grounds is via Grantchester
Road, running from Barton Road, a main road in and out of the city (to the AB03
and the M11) and Grantchester, a small village, popular with locals and tourists.
Grantchester Road is narrow, with parked cars reducing the traffic to single file at
the Barton Road end becoming a winding country lane as it passes the Rugby

Page 47




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

ground on the way to Grantchester. In recognition of the problems inherent in
terms of traffic in and out of the CRUFC grounds, the panel in January explicitly
requested a ‘Temporary Traffic Restriction Order for access roads into the
premises’ and ‘a 1-way traffic control system for the event.” (lii) There is an existing
licence for 2 days to allow Live Tour Promotions (LTP) to host music festivals for
5000 people per day (Ibiza Experience and the Sausage and Cider Festival) at
CRUFC grounds in June. These two days have caused very real distress for some
local residents, as heard by the Licensing panel in January. (iv)Tickets for a third
LTP day (Nashville) have been sold online for several months, despite no
application for a Licence being applied for. (v) At least two representatives of the
large music festivals run by LTP also have an interest in the medium music festival
in July and, in fact, spoke on behalf of the applicant (London Road) for the
proposed event at the Licence hearing in January. With this context in mind, it
appears that CRUFC is seeking to secure a licence to not only replicate the
current licenses for 2 days of large music events in June and one medium music
event in July, but to expand them by adding one further large and three further
medium festivals. Approving this licence would in effect circumvent the need for
either LTP or London Road to apply for a licence for the extra days for their
events, namely: - a third day for the LTP “Nashville’ event in June which has been
selling tickets for months without applying for a licence - a second day for the July
Cambridge Festival event (London Road was only granted a license for one day in
2025) in clear contravention of the decision of the Licence hearing panel in
January who were mindful of the impact on local residents and of the CoP
recommendation for no more than 3 such events per year. Approval of this licence
would also negate the requirement for further applications for a licence for the
Cambridge Festival beyond 2025, again, a requirement explicit in the decision
made by the Licensing panel in January. In conclusion, | ask you to consider the
very real negative impact on residents in this semi-rural, quiet neighbourhood of
four more medium to large Music festivals and unlimited smaller events. We have
no objection to the Club using its grounds to raise funds, providing it does so
without causing unnecessary discomfort and disturbance to local residents; we
recognise that the club has to fund its sporting activities, but we ask that they
restrict these events to those which are in keeping with the intended use of the
grounds and mindful of the impact on neighbours. Consideration of the impact on
local residents — such as that given by the panel in January - would be very much
appreciated.

8 - Ratna Beresford — 41 Selwyn Road, Cambridge CBJ 39EA

| would like to object on the grounds of public nuisance and protection of children
from harm. We found the events held last August extremely noisy. | think they
were at MNL of 65dB. It was not possible to concentrate on anything or spend time
in the garden or for my children to settle in the evening. The equivalent events
have been moved to the 13th and 14th of June this year and my daughter has a
GCSE physics paper on the Monday after that and other exams after that. So, | am
desperately trying to think how to protect her from these events while she needs to
be revising. | haven't been able to come up with a good solution yet. For the 5th of
July event, my son will be in the middle of exams. As it seems like the rugby club
Is proposing to hold more than 3 events per year, it seems from the Code of

Page 48




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

Practice on Environmental Noise Control at

hitps://democracy.cambridge. gov.uk/documents/s67880/Code%200f%20FP ratice%
20Noise%20Control%20at%20Concerts. pdf that the MNL should not exceed the
background noise level by more than 15 dB(A) over a 15 minute period for any of
the events. In my garden, the background noise is 30dB as measured by the
Decibel Meter app. | am not sure whether more than 3 events at 45dB is better
than 3 events at MNL 65dB. | think both are very bad. | would like the rugby club to
provide evidence of what 12dB over the background noise level would sound like
before this application is considered. Also, there are events organised by
Cambridge university students in the playing fields to consider. The Code of
Practice above states "In locations where individuals may be affected by more
than one venue, the impact of all the events should be considered.” | would like the
rugby club to consider this. In any case, as the rugby club have asked for unlimited
small events where music can be played, it seems this is off the charts of the Code
of practice as the chart in there only goes up to 12 events.. | feel this application is
extremely audacious. The rugby club may have been emboldened by the
application that was partially granted at the beginning of this year and | hope that
the council will see this application for what it is. | understand that the rugby club
might be facing financial pressures and would wish to diversify their activities. |
sympathise as my family are also facing financial pressures but the difference is
that we are trying to work through those without causing public nuisance. | am not
aware of any attempt to advise us as residents of the intention to submit this
licensing application. Our community contact was not approached by Tim Hague,
Rugby Club Chairman. This appears to be completely contrary to Tim Hague's
previously stated intention of engaging with residents. It is just a matter of luck that
| was made aware of this on the 15th. The deadline for submitting representation is
the 25th of April. | feel many residents won't be aware of this application. On my
road, there many elderly, renting and young families, who even if made aware
haven't got the time or knowledge of how to make a representation. There are also
a few unoccupied properties. We are a small and guiet community very
unprepared in dealing with what the rugby club is doing to us.

9 - Mai Hemiski 15 Fulbrooke Ftnadl Cambridge CB3 9EE

| strongly object to a licence being granted to Cambridge Rugby Club for small
events with no limit, medium events for 4 days per annum and large events for 3
days per annum. This Licence application is an enormous escalation of events
taking place in a totally unsuitable location. 1. Disorder has been evident at
previous events. With 5000 people leaving the event along narrow unsuitable
roads this is sadly inevitable. The disorderly behaviour, noise and threatening
numbers is very intimidating for residents, who cannot access their properties
during this time. Crime has been an issue in the past with cars having their wing
mirrors damaged. There is no police presence only stewards who have no powers.
2. Public 3afety is a worrying problem where two way traffic on small roads is
restricted s0 that emergency vehicles would not be able to reach an accident
quickly enough. With cars being allowed to park in the Rugby Club this is an
additional hazard to public safety. 3. With so many events possibly taking place in
the year residents would be constantly impacted on weekends, with some of them

Page 49




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

lasting all day and into the night. This means quiet summer days in the garden are
totally out of the question. The noise not only comes from the events but also from
cars parking, thousands of people arriving and leaving throughout the day. The
Rugby Club is an unsuitable venue for these events in a residential area where
there are many old people living who definitely feel threatened by the crowds and
the bad behaviour. The loud noise of the music, even if kept to noise level
boundaries, is invasive in the house and garden and normal life cannot continue
when these events are happening. 4. There are many children who live near the
Rugby Club. It is often exam time for older children and younger ones are kept
awake by the loud noise of music.

10 - Andrew Whitaker - Brook Lodge, 113 Grantchester meadows,
Cambridge CB3 9JN

| object to the granting of this licence application. | live at the junction of South
Green Road and Grantchester Meadows and living where | do, | have found the
volume of noise from previous live and recorded music events held by the rugby
club to be excessive and therefore object on the grounds of the events
representing a Public Nuisance. The sound of the events comes directly across
the fields, and if the noise of the rugby club's events is excessibve for me, it must
be impossible for residents of Fulbrooke Road, Grantchester Road and Selwyn
Road. | am supportive of the rugby club holding occasional music events to
support their finances, but the scope of this application is excessive and
unacceptable. It proposes no limit to the number of small non-rugby events/year
(up to 999 people) which may be held each year, with no limit to the decibel
volume of the music run from 9am to 11pm, & days/week and 10am to 10pm on
Sundays, and with alcohol available for consumption from 10am to 10.30pm &
days/week and from10am 9.30pm on Sundays. Likewise, the frequency of 4
medium sized non-rugby events/year for1,000-2.499 people and 3 large sized non-
rugby events/year for 2,500-4,999 people is excessive and unacceptable. The
scope of this application, if approved, makes it possible for the rugby club to hold
events throughout the spring/summerfautumn months and prevent residents from
the quiet enjoyment of their gardens throughout this period. | think that the granting
of a licence should be restricted to 2 or 3 medium/large 1-day events, or one
medium/large 2-day event, with no small non-rugby music events. The applicant is
a rugby club, not a music promoter, and is located in the Green Belt adjacent to
residential areas, where the volume and duration of live or recorded music for 14
hours is a Public Nuisance. While residents will tolerate 2-3 days of such
events/year, more than this is neither reasonable nor acceptable.

11 - Piers Brendon — 4B Millington Road, Cambridge CBJ 9HP

My wife Vyvyen and | object strongly to the Rugby Club's application on grounds of
the prevention of a public nuisance. Cur house in Millington Road is some distance
away from from the Rugby Club but when it puts on events at which amplified
music is played the noise indoors is intolerable. The insistent repetitive drumbeats
hammer at one's mind, making thought difficult and rest impossible. We are all for

Page 50



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

rugby and we obviously don't object to people enjoying themselves provided they
do not interfere with the enjoyment of others. Unfortunately the Rugby Club's
musical events do just than, making life unbearable for the residents of an
otherwise peaceful neighbourhood.

12 - Richard Mountford - 35 Selwyn Road Cambridge CE2 SEA

Having witnessed the Council discussions for the Rugby Club's previous
application to expand its portfolio of music events, | am surprised that a further
application has been put forward by the club which could result in up to 7 events
per year with at least 2,499 atiendees. | think a reasonable compromise was
previously agreed when allowing the club to run no more than 3 music events of
any significant size per year. Two things were made clear to the Council. Firstly,
that the venue does not lend itself to such events, due to the narmowness of the

single access road and the inability for crowds to disperse quickly and safely, by a
reasonable end-time. Secondly, noise levels are a serious public nuisance to
residents. The fields provide no protection from the high volumes and at recent
events the noise has been difficult to cope with. As the events tend to be in the
summer when windows are open, there is no escaping the disruption and the
levels reaching the residential areas are equivalent to being at the event itself.
Whether the event is small, medium or large, if there is amplified music involved, it
15 highly likely that the public nuisance from the noise will be unacceptable. |
believe that the previously agreed compromise of a maximum of 3 music events
per year is a fair and reasonable solution.

13 -

| am emailing to object to the application by Cambridge Rugby Football Club
Limited (CRUFC) dated 29™ March 25 for a Premises Licence to hold licensed
events at their grounds at Grantchester Road.

As a resident of Fulbrooke Road, which is adjacent to the Cambridge Rugby
Football Club, my strong objection is made on the following grounds:

Creation of unacceptable public nuisance
LUinacceptable risk to public safety
Amplifying the risk of crime and disorder to an unacceptable level

VWhen (even the existing) large-scale events have been on in the last couple of
years, we have experienced:

)] Being unable to sit in our garden thanks to excessive
noise levels, therefore trapped in our houses

i) Our children unable to sleep in the house due to excessive
noise levels, even with windows closed

i) Antisocial behaviour from event attendees

Page 51



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

V) Difficulty driving in and out of Fulbrooke Road due to traffic
congestion

This Is a clear and significant public nuisance, and also a public safety issue.

As an overall observation, the Cambridge Rugby Football Club is not a suitable
venue for the types of events being contemplated by this application due to the
Club being situated adjacent to a dense residential area, with narrow and
unsuitable transport links.

We have not received any consultation documents from the Club in relation to this
application.

14 - Michael Rycroft — 35 Millington Road, Cambridge CB3 9HW

| wish to comment on the Application in terms of non-Rugby Use.

1. My view is that the location of the Rugby Club on Grantchester Road and the
facilities there are not suitable for anything other than a Small event (< 999
people), in order to maintain public safety, i.e. to maintain local road traffic - and
parking - at a reasonable level.

2. In my opinion, the location is unsuitable for Outdoors Cinema, Historical Re-
enactments, or Major Festivals.

3. For all events at which loudspeakers are used to play recorded or live "music",
their maximum power should be constrained to a reasonable - legal, 65 dB - level,
in order to prevent public nuisance and harm to children. Local residents like to
enjoy time in their gardens during the summer days and evenings, without being

overwhelmed by excessive noise, or a sirong bass beat, which may go on for
hours.

| therefore object to the extension of the licence.

15 - Julia Allen- Manheim - 31 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge CBJ3 9EE

My back garden backs on to CRUFC's ground and | am alarmed about the club’'s
application to more than double medium (2300) to large (5000) events involving
music and the sale of alcohol from 3 to 7 per year. | understand that there is an
additional request for unlimited events involving up to 1000 people with no
information about what form these events might take, nor how often they might
actually be held, but were a licence to be granted, CRUFC could hold events for
up to 1000 people with impunity as often as it wished.

These events impact on residents in various ways. The noise of amplified music
Is, perhaps, the worst inconvenience, because the thump, thump of the bass notes
penetrates closed doors and windows and can actually be felt in the body
triggering headaches or migraines, in addition to being extremely intrusive.

Page 52



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

Excessive alcohol consumption fuels antisocial behaviour, we have had
participants vomiting and urinating in our gardens.

Last years Sausages & Cider event created serious crowd and traffic congestion
when the ground was emptying: there was some dangerous driving and even
instances of residents not being able to retumn to their homes. This is not an area
suitable for accommodating large crowds; in case of an emergency ambulances,
fire engines or police vehicles would not be able to get to the scene.

| wish the Rugby Club well and understand their need to generate income but |
very much hope they can do this in a way that does not have a negative impact on
their near neighbours

16 -

In principal, | support the Rugby Club's ambitions to find ways to supplement their
income, and was appreciative of the free tickets offered to locals for last year's
Ibiza event. It made an otherwise very noisy weekend a bit more pleasant. That
said, | would like to object to the current licensing application on the following
grounds: 3, prevention of public nuisance: The volume / noisiness of previous
events has been at times unbearable. Sound travels unrestricted across the open
fields into our homes and gardens. And volume is not connected to event size. |
appreciate the commitment to control volume of large events, but the club is also
applying for an unlimited number of small events, which can be outside, with
amplified music. And these events have no obligation to keep within a specific
volume. At previous events there was chaos on the streets at closing time. Cars
were ignoring the stewards. Taxis were backup up for ages. Our roads were
entirely blocked off. This application proposes even larger numbers, and suggest
on-site parking which will make this far worse 1. prevention of crime and disorder
Most of the previous larger events | am aware of at the club caused spillover
Issues with large, rowdy crowds filling the otherwise quiet side streets in
Newnham, with reports of public urination, nuisance vandalism, and an increased
risk of petty bike theft as people try to get home. This is a much bigger problem
than can be addressed by adding extra urinals in the venue. It's just too small a
suburb to cope with such large scale events, so close to s0 many family homes

| object to the licence application. Grounds for objection: - the prevention of crime
and disorder. - public safety. - the prevention of public nuisance. - the protection of
children (and elderly)from harm. Only small rugby events should take place.
Accommodating film crews are also suitable. Any other events are unsuitable
especially with music and alcohol. This is a quiet residential area, housing many
vulnerable elderly and children, who need a safe environment as well as eminent
academics, writers and artists who require quiet for their work, in the house and
garden, working in peace and quiet and going to bed early. The streets are narrow,
even an event of 999 people would block the streets. If such events are allowed to
occur they will inevitably result in death, from the stress of noise of loud music |

Page 53



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

drunken crowds and inability for emergency services to access homes in time. |
personally am an artist, working from home, | go to bed at 9pm, and if I'm stressed
and my sleep is disrupted | become very ill. This house has been my permanent
home since 1974, my family choosing it because it is a quiet area. Not only would
the planned events greatly distress the local residents but will impact the work of
academics, writers and artists, whose home is here. | am shocked and deeply
distressed that this licence application should even be considered. This is no
Soho, or some entertaining district but is a world famous academic area. | trust
that the committee will make a sensible decision, not approve the application and
keep residents safe, preserve the academic excellence, and not succumb to the
financial greed such selfish persons who are behind this application.

18 -

Although there has not been any official consultation of those who live in the
northern part of Grantchester, along The Broadway, | write to object to the
proposed licence on grounds 2 and 3 (public safety and prevention of public
nuisance). My wife and | live a couple of fields away from the Rugby ground and
the disturbing sound of a low-frequency, heavy beat readily travels to our terraced
cottage on The Broadway, and so we support our neighbours of Newnham in their
objections on the ground of public nuisance. Of particular concern to us is the
obstruction of the country lane that links us to the centre of Cambridge. It is the
route of our sole bus semvice, the no. 18. When large events at the Rugby Club
happen, patrons park for several hundred yards along the narrow verge of
Grantchester Rd beyond the City limits. Since the verge is narrow, the parked cars
constrain the metalled carriage way. It may be possible for two cars, moving
cautiously, to pass one another, but it is not possible for a bus and a car to pass in
opposite directions. When an event is taking place and there is continuous traffic
into and out of the Rugby field, then traffic in opposite directions readily builds up
behind and in front of a bus and the jam cannot be untangled without a great deal
of shouting, anger and delay. At such times, it would not be possible for an
emergency vehicle to access the Rugby field. In sum, the Rugby field is not
suitable for large events of the kind envisaged. The access road is narrow. It
opens in one direction on to suburban streets and in the other on to a narrow
country lane. Above all, | emphasise that emergency vehicles, either attending an
incident at the Rugby Club, or attempting to travel between Cambridge and
Grantchester, could easily be trapped for 30 minutes.

19 -

The application for further licensing for events at the rugby club will seriously
adversely impact the community creating a public nuisance. The events they
already hold are a public nuisance causing serious noise pollution, huge amounts
of traffic and air pollution and crowds of people travelling through Newnham. An
application for further events will increase this public nuisance.

10
Page 54



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

20 -

too much noise litter and cars everywhere some people getting in cars when drunk
to possibly drive very dangerous, litter left in our front garden beer cans etc, no
respect for residents.

21 - Sarah Payne — 65 Selwyn Road, Cambridge CE2 9EA

Limits on number of evenis and decibel levels need to be imposed. Past events

have been very loud. Local residents need to have an opportunity to consult on
any changes to licensing conditions.

22 - Lewis Petersen — 29 Granchester Road, Newnham, CB3 9ED

As a resident of Grantchester Road | object to the licence application by the
Cambridge Rugby Club for potential events seven days a week extending over the
hours 9.00am-23.00pm except Sunday when the hours are 10.00am-22.00pm,
with the sale of alcohol each day 10.00am-22_30pm Monday-Saturday and
10.00am-21.30pm Sunday. | object to this application on the grounds of prevention
of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance. | rely on the following
evidential basis for my objection: 1. Noise nuisance from amplified music at high
volume: amplified music impacts the entire neighbourhood but particularly the
residents of Fulbrooke Road and the westemn end of Grantchester Road
throughout the whole time of such event on the basis of past experience. Giving
the Rugby Club the ability to mount such events on each day of the week is
unreasonable and will severely impact the amenity of those living in the
neighbourhood, particularly Fulbrooke Road and Grantchester Road. There is no
mention of permissible noise levels for any event. 2. Traffic congestion and
disruption result from the sheer volume of private vehicles and taxis trying to
access the venue via Grantchester Road, a residential road and the only access to
the site. 3. Anti-social behaviour and lack of respect shown to residents and private
property (which | accept cannot be attributed to the organisers): it was reported
that a resident was assaulted during an event at this venue in 2023 and that some
attendees at the 2024 event were relieving themselves in local gardens. | myself
observed this happening at the entrance to a neighbour’s garden across the road
from my home. | note further that there is no limit on the number or size of rugby
events and for non-rugby events there is no limit on the number of events provided
attendees are less than 1000. For these reasons | object to this application for a
licence.

23 - Ross Harrison = 21 Millington Road, Cambridge CB3 SHW

| wish to add support to the concern that this granting this license should be
resisted on grounds of public nuisance. In doing so, | am not objecting to the

11
Page 55



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

Rugby Club holding special events to raise funds. The objection, rather, is to the
frequency and scale of the events included in the present application. The reason |
write in addition to objections from nearer residents (whose views should be
particularly respected) is that even from our house in Millington Road, which is
further away, the noise of the event last summer was disruptive and disturbing. As
an annual event in a good cause, this might be accepted. But to do it much more
frequently at the scale suggested would take it too far to tolerate. If it was
disruptive from this distance last summer, it must have been seriously unpleasant
for the inhabitants in the nearer roads. | would therefore wish, on the basis of last
summer's experience, to object particularly on their behalf.

=

| wish to object to this application on grounds of Public Safety and Prevention of
Public Muisance. The key point in terms of Public Safety is that no matter what
arrangements the organizers put in place - | do not at all doubt their good faith in
this matter - the geography of the approach to the ground makes it impossible
ensure public safety when this large number of people are involved. The very
narrow funnel of this stretch of Grantchester Road cannot, whatever traffic
management system is put in place, cope with this influx of people and vehicles. |
had a rather scary experience (and | am a former rugby player, not easily
intimidated physically) attempting to get into Fulbrooke Road during one of the
previous events, with crowds and vehicles backed up down Selwyn Road and
Grantchester Road, and it will only be a matter of time before there is a serious
accident. When that happens, the emergency services may well not be able to
access the incident. In terms of Public Nuisance, it is difficult for anyone who does
not live next to the ground to appreciate the invasive character of these events,
especially in terms of noise. Even with the noise restrictions that are proposed in
the conditions attached to this application, we shall find our living-rooms shaking
with the bass beat and that the volume of noise will be quite unignorable. Up to
three such events a year is the normal maximum: as residents we accept that
number for the good of the Rugby Club. But this application goes well beyond that
in terms of major events, and also proposes an unlimited number of so-called
lesser events, the character of which is unspecified but could potrentially be very
disruptive. That is quite unacceptable, so | strongly urge that the licensing sub-
committee reject this application in this form.

25 - Roger Paulin - 45 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge CB<2 SEE

As a resident of Fulbrooke Road | endeavour to preserve good relations with the
Cambridge Rugby Club and to support the good work it does. | am also aware
of the financial difficulties with which it at present confronted.

| do not however believe this gives the Cambridge Rugby Club the right to inflict
gross disturbance on the residents of Fulbrooke Road through events on club
grounds. In both 2003 and 2004 | was subjected to functions on the club grounds
that involved very intrusive noise, large crowds (in excess of a thousand) and

12

Page 56



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

antisocial behaviour in adjacent areas. | was forced to retreat indoors for the
duration of the events and even then was unable to block out the sound. | would
even consider vacating our house for the duration of such events in the future. |
was shocked to hear of the extent of unacceptable behaviour as crowds dispersed
into neighbouring streets.

The Rugby Cub has now applied for pemmission to hold such huge events on three
days this summer. It has in addition (but without informing local residents) in effect
increased that number to seven. It proposes as well to hold unlimited ‘small
events’ that may well generate disturbance throughout the whole year.

| believe that such events, as well as being in a residential area, are incompatible
with regulations on noise, antisocial behaviour and public nuisance. For these
reasons | urge you to reject these applications.

26 - Simon Pattison — 79 Selwyn Road, Cambridge CE2 SEA

My main concerns are about Public safety of the participants of the event. -
CRUFC is locked in between the fields and narrow residential streets with high
density parking and multiple use (vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians). These streets
are not wide enough and are not suitable to accommodate crowds of several
thousand people (or even several hundreds) some of them drunk, all leaving the
venue at the end of an event either on foot or by car. - If there was any Kind of
panic in the midst of this crowd there will be multiple casualties. - If a critical
incident did occur, access for emergency vehicles in any emergency involving
multiple casualties will be severely hindered. | know this because taxies could not
reach people leaving the event last year as the roads were completely blocked by
people. The event was for 2449 people, classed as ‘Medium’ by CRUFC. Taxies
had to wait in Barton Road for a good 20-30 minutes before getting access to
Selwyn and Grantchester Roads. 20-30 minutes is too long for somebody having a
cardiac arrest. They will die before an ambulance can reach them. - The more
such events are hosted, the higher the probability of any adverse events occurring
and therefore the overall risk of severe consequences goes up. - As the people
have left CRUFC by then, the responsibility for casualties will be shared by the
City Council. The probability of such occurrence is between Remote and Probable
and the hazard iIs Severe. - Any emergency plans CRUFC can draw will not
change the limitations of its geographical position - The infrastructure around
CRUFC is just not fit or safe for such events. No amount of major incident plans
promised to be submitted by CRUFC will mitigate this. Whilst the rugby field can
certainly host up to 4999 people and probably more, the venue has essentially one
access point through Grantchester road. The crowd of several thousand people is
going to exist CRUFC at the end of any event onto Grantchester road and all of
them are going to walk down Grantchester road towards the city centre. They are
unlikely to turn right to hike towards Grantchester village along the narrow unlit
road with no pedestrian provision. Last year | watched as the crowds dispersed at
the end of Sausage and Cider festival. There was a sea of people walking down
Grantchester Road. It took them a good 1.5 hours to disperse after the event
finished at 11pm. For most of the stretch of Grantchester Road the crowd is locked
between two rows of houses with cars parked either side of the road narrowing it
down further. Given a certain amount of illegal parking on that particular night

13
Page 57




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

there were a lot more cars than usual. I'm fairly certain that if there was incident
that triggers a panic it would have been a stampede and given how drunk most
people were, there probably would have been injuries. Several exit points from the
venue would mitigate this risk substantially but alternative exists don't exist and
cannot be created because on two sides the CRUFC is blocked by the fields and
on the 3rd side, by a residential street. Even if CRUFC opened up an alternative
exit from CRUFC people will still all move along Grantchester Road towards
Barton Road because this is the only direction towards city centre, buses and
taxies.

27 - Tim Marchant — 27 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB2 SEE

| would like to register my objection to licence application 266981 because of the
public nuisance, noise and traffic congestion it will inflict on local residents. There
are two main areas of concern.

The first is that the application includes the option to hold an unlimited number of
events throughout the year of up to 1000 people, which would clearly have a
tremendous negative impact on local residents.

CRUFC is a great sporting amenity for the community and sporting events should
be and are welcomed. Frequent small non-sporting events - especially those with
loud music and the sale of alcohol - are not appropriate for this quiet residential
area.

Fulbrooke Road and the surrounding neighbourhood is a quiet, semi-rural

area. Music events already cause enormous disturbance to our quality of life in
terms of disruption, anti-social behaviour, and noise and light pollution. If this type
of activity was allowed week-in-week-out, it would destroy the quiet residential
nature of the area.

The second concern is the proposal to increase currently licensed medium events
(up to 2500 people) from one to four days per year and large events (up to 5000
people) from two to three per year.

Granting a licence for further such events not only goes against the guidelines in
the nationally agreed Code of Practice (1-3 events per year) but would further
damage the quality of life of local residents, especially during the summer months
when people should be able to relax in their homes and gardens.

Last year in June there was a two-day music festival (Friday and Saturday) for
25000 people. These two days caused very real distress for some local residents;
apparently a third consecutive day (Sunday) is to be added this year; although no
licence application has been submitted, the event is being advertised and tickets
sold.

Over recent years, CRUFC has held a plethora of non-sporting events, which
already have a significant negative impact on local residents. Every week there are

14
Page 58



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

business conferences and several times a year, film crews are based on the
grounds.

We have no objection to the Club using its grounds to raise funds, providing it
does 50 without causing unnecessary discomfort and disturbance to local
residents; and we would ask that CRUFC restrict these events to those which are
in keeping with the intended sporting use of the grounds and the quiet, residential
neighbourhood.

In conclusion, loud music events are wholly inappropriate for such a quiet, green-
belt location and the surrounding access and infrastructure is insufficient to cope.

28 - Boleslaw Kempski -15 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CBS SEE

I am writing to submit a representation in objection to the application by
Cambridge Rugby Football Club Limited (CRUFC) dated 29th March 25 for a
Premises Licence to hold licensed events at their grounds at Grantchester Road.
The licence application reference is PRECAM 000975. The grounds for my
objection are that the licence would breach at least three of the statutory licence
objectives: The prevention of public nuiscance. Public safety The prevention of
crime and disorder | am a resident of Fulbrooke Road and our house, and hence
garden, directly backs on to the Rugby Club and | have therefore directly
experienced the impact from the two weekend events run in previous years at the
Rugby Club in 2023 (7th and 8th July) and 2024 (2nd and 3rd Aug). Following
several complaints about the high level of noise endured in 2023, we understand
that for 2024 the noise was monitored and limited to 65 decibels at our garden
boundaries. It is not possible to be in the garden when music at this level is being
played. Even in the house the music can be heard clearly. This means that for two
whole days we were unable to use our garden space and felt trapped in the house.
The licensing Team needs to understand that there are several elderly and
vulnerable residents for whom the garden brings comfort and solace. Several of
these residents are not familiar with modem technology in order to communicate
their concems and to convey the enormous anxiety caused to them as a
consequence of these events. Additionally, there are working families with babies
and young children who only have the weekends to relax and enjoy their gardens.
They, myself and all my neighbours have a right to peace and tranquility. This is a
clear and significant public nuisance and so in breach of that licensing objective.
We are aware from conversations with neighbours that there was substantial traffic
chaos on Grantchester Road including taxis dropping of passengers, doing three-
point turns on the road to avoid getting locked into one-way system. Likewise, in
the evening, there were problems when the events were ending with taxis trying to
collect groups of drunken people and drive away from the organised one-way
system. Although stewards were attempting to control and coordinate traffic flow,
they had no legal power to enforce and implement the one way system. This is a
direct public safety issue and breach of that licensing objective. We are also aware
of reports of people urinating in alleyways and back gardens on the way home
along Selwyn Road including vandalism to cars and bins. This in breach of the
licensing objective requiring the prevention of crime and disorder. This licensing
application is deeply worrying and marks a significant escalation in the number of

15
Page 59



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

events that will cause immense suffering and distress to families .and especially to
the vulnerable and elderly residents and should not be granted for the reasons
stated above.

29 -

| am writing to object to a licensing application that has been made on behalf of
Cambridge Rugby Club with the reference above for a premises license.

I live in _3} and my house backs directly onto the Rugby

club. Generally, | support the Rugby Club, however, | don't think its executive is
acting in a reasonable manner regarding its plans for development. Its chairman,
Tim Hague says plans will be developed in consultation with residents on
Fulbrooke Rd, instead, there have been a number of different applications being
submitted at the last moment without any consultation.

Events at the Rugby Club have a direct impact on Fulbrooke Rd’s quality of life
and particularly the houses, like mine, that back directly onto the grounds.

| am concemed about the scale and scope of the events that the club would like to
run throughout the year. In particular, large events with many thousands of
people. The problems that arise from this type are:

The chaos around parking and traffic flow
Urination, basically along the perimeter of my back garden. And litter that
does not get picked up around the perimeter of the grounds.

o« Large crowds of drunk people spilling out in an anti-social and sometimes
intimidating manner

= The noise. There is no sound barmer to the music and the bass is
particularly disturbing to sleep and any sort of relaxation.

« My cats have to be locked up as | would worry for their safety and all
windows have to be shut — which is unpleasant in summer heat.

* |ntrusive tannoys continuing beyond the end of the event.

| understand that the Rugby club has to make money, however request this is
done in a way that works with the concemns of its local community and not in spite
of it.

1a

Page 60



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

<0 - Traute Paulin — 45 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge CB3 9EE

As a resident of Fulbrooke Road | endeavour to maintain good relations with the
Cambridge Rugby Club and to support the good work it does. | am also aware of
the financial difficulties in which it at present finds itself.

| do not however believe that this gives the Cambridge Rugby Club the right to
inflict gross disturbance on the residents of Fulbrooke Road through events on
club grounds. In both 2023 and 2024 | and my family were subjected to functions
on the club grounds that involved very intrusive noise, large crowds (in excess of a
thousand) and antisocial behaviour in adjacent areas. We were forced to retreat
indoors in summer weather for the duration of the events, and even then were
unable to block out the sound. We would even consider vacating our house for the
duration of such events in future.

We were shocked to hear of the extent of unacceptable behaviour, as crowds
dispersed into neighbouring streets.

The Rugby Club has now applied for permission to hold such huge events on three
weekends this summer. It has in addition (but without informing local residents) in
effect increased that number to seven. It proposes as well to hold unlimited "small”
events that may well generate disturbance at weekends throughout the whole
year.

| believe that such events, as well as being in a residential area, are incompatible
with regulations on noise, antisocial behaviour, and public nuisance.

For these reasons | urge you to reject these applications.

<1 - Jennifer Warburton — 37 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge

| am writing to submit a representation in objection to the application by the
Cambridge Rugby Football Club { CRUFC) dated 29th March 2025 for a premises
licence to hold licensed events at their grounds in Grantchester Road. The
reference is PRECAM 000975.

The grounds for my objection are that the licence would breach 3 of the statutory
licence objectives, namely:

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance

| am a resident of Fulbrooke Road and my house and garden face the rugby club
grounds. | have experienced the consequences of two previous weekend events
(7/8th July 2023 and 2/3rd August 2024) and | am quite fearful that the distress
and disruption caused by proposed events ( should this licence be granted) will be
similarly experienced.

17
Page 61



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

On these previous occasions it was guite impossible to have a conversation in the
garden or even to have a conversation of normal volume within the house itself. |
was powerless to do anything about it and retreated to a very small utility room in
the house in order to complete a piece of work. This room has no windows and
two insulating doors but the noise still penetrated. The windows in the back of the
house vibrated with the noise. | felt trapped inside the house.

MNoise at this level has a damaging effect and this was certainly the case on these
two occasions. It was extremely distressing and | was reduced to tears at one
point, not knowing how to stop it.

At the start of a previous event (7/8th July 2023) | was actually trapped in Selwyn
Road by crowds surging along the street (dropped by coaches on the Barton road)
trying to reach the rugby club grounds. A taxi driver couldn’t turn and was also
trapped so had no choice but to drive very slowly and carefully through these
crowds but he did have to drive the wrong way down a one-way street. | was
pushing my bike as it was impossible to cycle. He suggested that | might be safer
walking by the side of his taxi. He kindly waited until he saw that | was safely away
from the crowds. It was a frightening journey. | felt threatened and unsafe as many
of the crowd had cbviously been drinking and some were drinking from cans and
glass bottles, even on arrival at the event.

Regrettably, the rugby club appears to have submitted this new application without
any consultation with residents, despite a recent reassuring letter sent by the
chairman, Tim Hague.

We are all aware that the club needs to generate income by holding fund- raising
events. We are supportive of this and are keen to have good relations with our
neighbours. We have previously been encouraged and impressed by Tim Hague's
response during friendly and informative meetings.

Thank you for reading this email. As residents, we all hope that the licensing
committee will consider our genuine concerns and that you will think carefully
about which licence it is appropriate to grant to premises that are located so close
to a quiet residential area.

<2 - Nick Warburton - Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge

| am writing to object to the application made on 29t March 25 by the Cambridge
Rugby Union Football Club. The reference for this is ...

PRECAM 000975

| object on the grounds of prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of
public nuisance. The noise caused by previous events at the Rugby Club has been
invasive and distressing. | am a resident of Fulbrooke Road and my home is also
my place of work. | frequently have to work in the evening and at weekends and
resent the fact that this should be made impossible by these events.

33 - Jean Glasberg - Clir for Newnham

18
Page 62



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

| am writing to object to the application for these very large scale music events at
the Rugby Club on the following grounds:

(b) public safety

There is only one exit directly on to Grantchester Road and no way that such large
numbers of pedestrians would be able to safely access and exit the site. Vehicle
parking on and off the site has led to considerable disruption in the surrounding
narrow streets, especially at the start and end of events, and has meant that
residents are unable to park nearby.

(c) the prevention of public nuisance

Very loud, rhythmic music with a pulsating beat played for hours over several days
at summer weekend is harmful to residents' health and well-being and prevents
their right to the peaceful enjoyment of their homes and gardens. There are no
barriers to the noise travelling, and it is heard at a very disruptive level over a wide
area - | live in Newnham Croft, and it sounded as if it was in the next street.

Apart from the traffic and noise issues residents living nearby have also given
examples of anti-social behaviour including attendees urinating in gardens,
throwing cans, bottles and other litter in the streets and gardens and drunken
shouting from large groups as they leave. Noise and disruption extends well before
and after the hours specified in the application, as the site set up and sound-
testing starts early and people are arriving well before 9 am. They are also
dispersing long after the 11 pm end of the event.

(d) the protection of children from harm

The hearing of young children is particularly sensitive, and it is not good for them
to be exposed to this level of noise for so many hours and days on end. | have
had complaints from residents that their children are unable to sleep or study for
important exams.

While many local residents wish to support the Rugby Club in their efforts to raise
funds, and are willing to put up with disturbance from other activities at the Club,
this type of event is simply not suitable for a site with such limited access
immediately adjacent to a densely built-up residential area.

| hope that members of the committee will consider the risks to those attending
and the very detrimental impact these events would have on thousands of
residents not just in the in the neighbouring streets but the whole area.

<4 - Margaret Smith — 2 Grantchester Road, Cambridge CBJ 9ED

| STRONGLY OBJECT to the application made by Gobrands UK Holdings Lid for
a premises licence at CAMBRIDGE RUGEBY UNION CLUB, Grantchester Road,
Newnham, CAMBRIDGE, Cambridgeshire, CB3 9ED to supply alcohol and run
events including Live Music, Recorded Music, Plays, Film and Dance
performances.

19
Page 63




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

My objections are based on the following:
Noise, Disruption, Security and Increased Pollution

| live very close to the Rugby Club together with other elderly people, families and
children; and share the same postcode as the rugby club.

| do not welcome the increased footfall and potential noise from people walking
past my home particularly late at night after alcohol consumption. In essence
creating opportunity for a public nuisance.

Mor the increased lines of traffic at night trying to access Barton road from
Grantchester Road with long queues pumping out their fumes and enging noise.
(This is seen regularly in the morning rush). | would be interested to know how it is
anticipated that large events (capacity 4999 people) and Medium events (capacity
2499 persons) can be safely accommodated on these small single way roads

without causing disturbance? How migh this impact public safety in a quiet
residential area?

The increased foot and vehicle traffic, noise disturbance and pollution is a hazard
and creates an imbalance in the environment and does not assist the physical or
mental well being and security of individuals within our community .

Please give this matter serious consideration and | very much hope you will
decide NOT to grant the licence.

o5 -

| am concemed about the potential for Public Muisance arising from Cambridge
Rugby Club hosting open air music events, late in the evening and at weekends,
particularly with respect to noise pollution. Cambridge Rugby Club is
approximately 0.5 miles due west of Millington Road where | live and therefore
noise from the proposed events will be carried to my house, detracting from my
enjoyment of my property, particularly in the summer months when | prefer to
leave bedroom windows open at night, wish to be able to relax quietly in my
garden and to host family and friends without being disturbed by amplified music. |
note the licensing application does not contain any specific limits on noise level,
but merely describes a process for determining them in which | have no voice. |
strongly object to having to potentially suffer three day events. The limit should be
to only single day events. | object strongly to events being allowed to continue until
2300 at night. 2100 is a more reasonable curfew for events adjacent to a
residential area. | would strongly prefer medium and large music events not to
oCcur on Sundays. Sunday is a traditional day of rest and one on which to enjoy
peace and quiet and to be able to entertain guests in my home without the
intrusion of amplified music. | also have concems for Public Safety on Barton Road
as large numbers of people atiempt to arrive or depart from the Rugby Club before |

20
Page 64



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

and after events and the potential for Public Muisance in my neighbourhood arising
from excessive alcohol consumption and possible substance abuse. | do not
believe the Rugby Club is a suitable venue for medium and large music events
given its proximity to otherwise peaceful residential areas. | am disappointed that
the Rugby Club has chosen not to consult its neighbours in this matter, it suggest
they do not have much concern for what the impact of their plans will be.

wE -

This application represents a significant increase in the number of days permitted
for entertainment at this venue - already disturbing to the community - and has
been made without consultation with local residents or City Councillor. | object to
the application on grounds of public nuisance, of potential disorder and
implications for public safety, including that of children

<7 = John Drew, 10 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB3 SEE

This letter is by way of objection to the application by the Cambridge Rugby
Football Club Limited of 29" March2025 for a Premises Licence to hold licensed
events at their grounds at Grantchester Road. The licence application reference is
PRECAM 000975.

As residents of Fulbrooke Road, we live in a area of small, quiet streets and lanes
that nonetheless accommodates non-residents, mostly on bike and foot, coming to
share the leisure amenities of college sports grounds, a tennis club, a model
railway, and a scattering of allotments. Hitherto this social pattern has included our
good neighbours at the Rugby Club.

This application, however, made without the usual consultation with neighbours
and coming on top of our experience of weekend events during the past couple of
years, has set alarm bells ringing. That the Rugby Club might wish to have
occasional non-sporting events in support of the club is understandable. What is
worrying to residents is the prospect that Grantchester Road, sited not so much on
a road as a small lane, might morph into an Events Venue that includes a winter of
rugby fixtures.

Unless an application adequately limits the number of people and cars streaming
down our streets on any one occasion, limits the number of such occasions

and limits the noise caused by the music and other sound systems, we believe it
should be amended if not rejected.

In our view, this particular application fails to make adequate provision for public
safety and the prevention of public nuisance. A sports club has a Duty of Care to
its neighbours.

21
Page 65



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

As neighbours, we too care for the club and wish to see it flourish as a Rugby Club
s0 long as any expansion is done in an orderly fashion in keeping with the
ambience of the whole area. In the case of this particular application, we would
urge you not to grant this license unless and until there is substantial amendment
to its terms and conditions.

additional information submitted 25/04/25

We wish to object to the licence application from the Cambridge Rugby Football
Club PRECAM 000975 as it is unlikely to comply with or promote the following
licensing objectives:

The prevention of crime and disorder — our neighbours have reported visitors
to previous events at the Rugby Club urinating in their gardens and down
alleyways when leaving plus other vandalism to cars and bins. There have also
been reports of drug dealing along Selwyn Road at convenient corners and people
“pre-loading” with spirits on their way into the event hence the knock-on effects
and resulting low level crime and disorder along the roads leading away from the
club. This scale of events with such potentially huge numbers is likely to cause
more crime and disorder in our neighbourhood.

FPublic safety —during ingress and egress, Grantchester Road has been
blocked with cars and taxis arriving, drivers trying to do three point turns to turn
round to avoid the blocked traffic. This is a clear risk to public safety.

The prevention of public nuisance — music at 62db and more {(as we have had
before in2023 and 2024 from large music events at the Rugby Club for long
periods over two successive days at a weekend) hitting the back gardens of
residents on Fulbrooke Road is a clear and tangible public nuisance. People
cannot sit out in their back gardens and have to retreat indoors. It disturbs families
with young children and causes distress to elderly residents and those who are
susceptible to noise triggered health concerns such as migraines.

<8 — Carol Patton, 43 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB3 SEE

Licensing application number: 288981 This is an objection to Licensing Application
number 288981 submitted by Cambridge Rugby Football Club Limited (CRUFC)
dated 29th March 2025 for a Premises Licence to hold licensed events at their
grounds at Grantchester Road. With regard to the recent number of applications,
both licensing and planning, submitted to Cambridge City Council by Cambridge
Rugby Union Club, it would seem that the Club is attempting to expand the
intended use of the grounds beyond the simple meaning of "Rugby Club”.
Unfortunately for the Club, the location and site are fundamentally unsuitable for
holding music/drinking/dancing/other events which seek to draw in crowds of up to
5000 people. Firstly, mindful that the licensing applicant must prevent the
occurrence of public nuisance, and based on our experience of similar events held
on this exact site over the past 26 years, it seems to have been extremely difficult
for organisers not to cause a noise nuisance to those living nearby, despite the

22
Page 66



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

terms of their licences. COur house in Fulbrooke Road backs on to the grounds and
we are therefore very familiar with all the events occurring in the premises. This is
a quiet residential semi-rural environment surrounded by farmland and college
playing fields. Background noise is usually low. However, the landscape is
completely flat around here, there are few trees or hedges, and any sound travels
very clearly from eg events on Grantchester Meadows, Haggis Farmm, or the May
Balls in the city centre. Events which take place on the Rugby Club land and held
either on an open stage or under canvas sound like they are in our back garden.
The distance from, say, the far end of their main playing field to our house makes
no difference to the volume experienced inside or out of the house. There is
nothing to stop the noise travelling. In addition, the noise from events such as
those held last year was s0 loud and repetitive that it was uncomfortable to be in
the garden for any length of time. Bass sounds and low frequency sounds
reverberate very strongly, often | can feel them vibrating inside the house as well
as hear them. Sound checks start early in the day and the music then plays
continuously at volume throughout. It is impossible to concentrate or to work (I am
self-employed and often have to work at weekends). | feel particularly sorry for
anyone trying to sleep, our elderly neighbours, the unwell, and families trying to
put their young children to bed. There is no escape. Whilst the licence application
refers to noise limits and the applicant’s intentions (paras 31 — 59) those
paragraphs do not reflect our lived experience. Monitoring on the day depends
entirely on being able to make contact with the ‘nominated person’, and relying on
them to take appropriate action. Whilst volumes may be tumed down for a few
minutes, they usually return to former levels when the track changes.
Responsibility for noise levels is not taken seriously by those running the events,
and consequently this means that | am monitoring their event for them, unpaid.
The Council's own webpage headed “What is noise” states “everyone’'s perception
of noise, or unwanted sound, is different. It's not just a question of sound levels in
decibels, but of what is acceptable to the average person — and what one person
considers acceptable may not seem unreasonable to somebody else.” Given the
context of the local environment and on the balance of probabilities, it is more
likely than not that a reasonable person would find that the levels of music played
continuously at events held on Rugby Club premises are unacceptable. Further, as
the Council no longer operates a noise monitoring service, there is no means of
independent verification on the day. Residents cannot seek help and advice from
anyone else. The Council's own webpage states: “Follow these steps if there is a
noise issue you wish to resolve. 1. Try to resolve the problem informally 2.
Consider using the neighbourhood resolution panel scheme 3. Check what noises
you can and can't report to us 4. Report the noise using our online form 5. As a
last resort you could take legal action through the courts” The Council will respond
to a form submitted online within three working days. In other words, there is no
effective means of enforcement if agreed sound levels are exceeded and cause a
public nuisance. It is quite likely that the applicant is already aware that there will
be no sanctions administered for any breach of a licence granted other than the
unlikely possibility of a review of the licence occurring. Taking all the above into
consideration we urge you to refuse the application in order to prevent any public
nuisance occurring. Secondly, there is a serious risk to public safety with regard to
the management of the motorised and pedestrian traffic aftracted by these events.
There is only one, single width, access/egress point into the site, directly onto a
narrow country road. It is dangerous and irresponsible to attract so much traffic to

23
Page 67



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

the location. Stewards/marshals employed by the licensees have no legal powers
to enforce suggestions that drivers of cars should leave in the direction of
Grantchester, implement a ‘one way system on Grantchester Road’ (para 61) or
enforce any ‘No Parking' signs they might put up in the surrounding streets. They
cannot direct pedestrians as if they are sheep. They have no teeth whatsoever.
Taxi drivers caused considerable chaos (ie road blocks) in the area in 2024 by
dropping off and collecting people, and doing U turns back up to the Barton Road.
Stewards have absolutely no powers to control that sort of situation. It would not
have arisen in a properly managed event held in a suitable location. Furthermore,
also in 2024 and due to the poor access to the site, it took almost an hour for
customers to leave, particularly those who were walking as they were under no
pressure whatsoever, and they contributed significantly to public nuisance
occuming beyond the permitted licensing hours and beyond after midnight. There
I5 no easy way for significant numbers of people to disperse from the area safely
and quickly and without causing significant public nuisance to surrounding

properties. The Rugby Club has submitted this application without any consultation

with local residents. Such behaviour does not help to build good relations. Based
on years of previous events held on their premises there is no confidence or trust
that they or their licensees are capable of running events competently. This
application is asking for permission to run events for three consecutive days on at
least 7 occasions, potentially every fortnight ie every other weekend. This
application is totally disproportionate and unreasonable in its scope. | respectiully
ask the Licensing Sub Committee to take into account all relevant considerations
and my representations, and to refuse the application.

<9 — Christopher & Carolyn Ash, 23 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB2 SEE

We write to object to licence application PRECAMO00975, submitted
by Cambridge Rugby Football Club Limited (CRUFC) on 29% March 2025 for a
Premises Licence to hold licensed events at their grounds at Grantchester Road.

In our view this licence would produce a public nuisance through the sustained
noise levels.

We live at 23 Fulbrooke Road and our home and garden back onto the Rugby
Club grounds. In both 2023 (7"-8"July) and 2024 (2™-3™ August) we were
adversely impacted by the high and intrusive noise levels, both on the Friday
evening and on much of the Saturday.

This level of music not only makes the garden a miserable place, but also throbs
right through the house. We tried retreating to the front of the house. But, even
there, the noise reflects strongly from the houses the other side of the street. My

wife was struggling with migraines and this noise level was very distressing to her.

And it was not possible to rest or fo sleep during the conceris.

Weare very supportive of the Rugby Club and want it to thrive. We recognise they
need to have adequate income. But I'm afraid we don't think that this location— so

very close to residential streets — is appropriate for these large and loud music
events.

Page 68

24



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

The thought of the number of these events increasing significantly fills us with
alarm. We hope you will not grant this licence and that other ways can be found for
the club to gain sufficient income to thrive.

40 -

| object most strongly to the application in all categories. The greatly increased
number of events and, crowd sizes together with full day alcohol licenses will make
the likelihood of transgressions in all categories all the more probable. Fulbrook,
Grantchester and Selwyn Roads constitute a residential area completely
unsuitable for these sizes of events which are more usually situated a long way
outside of towns and villages.

The application therefore warrants refusal.

1. The prevention of crime and disorder:
Prevention on site but not on Fulbrook, Grantchester and Selwyn Roads. Previous
events include loud and drunken behaviour along these roads, urination and
vomiting in front gardens and alleyways plus damage to cars with rubbish and
bottles/broken glass left for residents to clear up.

2. Public safety:
Public safety is likely to be threatened because of anti-social behaviour as in item
1. above.
Access for emergency vehicles and those of residents on Fulbrook, Grantchester
and Selwyn Roads is very probable as previously but more so because of the
arrival and departures of the large numbers of attendees. Taxi drivers and other
drivers also as previously will ignore the one-way drop off and collect system on
the club grounds with drop off early and three point turns in the middle of
Grantchester Road. There is no traffic management plan for these roads.

3. The prevention of public nuisance:
Prevention of public nuisance is highly unlikely; see items 1. and 2.
The levels of music and disruption with increased numbers of events and
attendees are likely to increase the disturbance to residents. The type of music to
be played will be highly disruptive to children and the elderly. Unreasonably,
neighbours, especially the elderly, will be forced to re-locate — if they can.

4. The protection of children from harm:
It is very difficult to comprehend how seriously these events will impact young
children who are likely to be prevented from settling for sleep around 19.00-20.00.
It is impractical and unreasonable to disturb children by moving them to another
bedroom — if one Is available.

41 -

25
Page 69



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

| object to the application on public nuisance grounds. The events staged there are
extremely loud and the sound carries to the surrounding area including Selwyn
Road. The rest of the time this is a very quiet residential area. Also, when the
crowds of people leave on foot they are noisy and drunk causing a disturbance
walking along Selwyn Road in the middle of the night. On one occasion one of
these people defacated at the side of my house. | do not want my name and
address published on the council website.

42 — Henrietta Ryan, 4 Grantchester Road, Cambridge, CB3J 9ED

| am purchasing no. 47 Fulbrooke Road, CB3 9EE, and will be adjacent to the
Rugby Club. The proposal significantly increase noise and nuisance (especially
the large amount of litter that is always left after matches).

43 -

| strongly object to this application on the grounds of prevention of Public
MNuisance, Crime & Disorder and Public Safety. The public nuisance that will
inevitably be caused by an unlimited number of events with up to 1,000 people any
night of the week throughout the year to our quiet semi-rural neighbourhood would
be significant. People attending the events will inevitably use our quiet road for
parking and as a thoroughfare if this application is allowed, and this will cause
significant disturbance. The application seeks permission for events to take place
throughout the day and late into the evening (9am to 11pm), with no limit on the
number of events for up to 1,000 people in any given year. By way of comparison,
when the Cambridge & District Model Engineering Society - neighbours of the
Rugby Club - hold their Public Open afternoons from 1.30pm-5pm ten times a
year, for far fewer than 1,000 people, Selwyn Road becomes a constant stream of
people and parking becomes very difficult. This is the same when the Rugby Club
holds its sporting events. Fortunately these events occur during day time hours,
are typically for far fewer than 1,000 people and attendees are generally well-
behaved families. The impact on the tranquility and safety of our road if we were to
be subjected to a steady stream of people exiting events late at night and being
rowdy would be very harmful. When the Rugby Club has hosted late night events
in the past, and particularly those involving music, hundreds of very loud, often
drunk, attendees have made their way into town down our road over many hours,
often using the comer of Selwyn Road and King's Road (observable from our
house) as a convenient place to stop and urinate (Crime and Disorder). Drug
selling has occurmred on our road and is at risk of increase, depending on the
events being hosted, and the Public Safety measures taken by the organisers. The
houses of Selwyn Road are small & narrow, many with no or very small front
gardens, and the disturbance and public nuisance caused by people talking loudly
and singing on our road late at night, particularly in summer when windows are
often left open, is considerable. If this license is granted the detrimental effect on
all that live on Selwyn Road will be significant, and that is without even discussing
the direct harm that would be caused by noise from amplified or live music,

26

Page 70



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

potentially non-stop throughout the day and late into the evening. The applicant
has made no reference to permissible noise levels and there has been a complete
lack of consultation with the community, so it is not possible to have any sense of
what they are actually planning. | urge the committee to reject this application.

44 — Wesley Dignan, 4 Selwyn Road, Cambridge, CB3 9EB

| absolutely object to this application. | have supported the Rugby Club in the past
with an application to extend on the side of the main stand for the better of the
club. However. Having endured the noise all day and night long at the last event.
People were still passing my house near midnight drunk as lords. | also got caught
up in the traffic outside of the Rugby Club in my vehicle trying to get home. The
traffic was at a standstill from Barton Road towards the Rugby Club/Grantchester
both ways. The marshalling was nothing short of an absolute shambles. The
following day the surrounding area was strewn with bottles, plastic bottles and
other rubbish. This is a residential area and should remain so. The application
submitted by the Rugby Club is, | believe an insult to the local community who
have supported them in the past and would give them the right to inflict the local
residents whenever they felt like doing so. Please reject this application out of
hand. (a resident less than one minutes walk from the Club)

45 - Simon Redhead, 2 Selwyn Road, Cambridge, CBJ 3EB

This isn't an application for an entertainment licence; it amounts to a change of
use from sports field to an entertainment venue on an unprecedented scale
exceeding even town-centre facilities such as The Light. The security management
plan includes bag searches, body-cams, facial recognition etc, so the applicant is
clearly expecting trouble. We do not want this in our neighbourhood. Existing
problems with events, which will all be increased, are: - loud rowdy people with
concert-deafness waking residents in residential area at unsociable hours,
congregating on street comers, swearing, shouting, even urinating; - amplified
music noise carries and is already a nuisance as far away as Kings Road; -
excessive road traffic at an existing pinch-point (Grantchester Road/Fulbrooke
Road) already a nuisance. New problems created: - The traffic infrastructure will
not cope. - An emergency evacuation for 2500-5000 people would not be possible.
- Ejecting intoxicated persons from the premises is given as a condition for the
sale of alcohol (clause 41). How are residents expected to cope with such
intoxicated ejected persons? - The introduction of more intoxicated persons
(whether ejected, or simply leaving just before midnight), into a small residential
area can only lead to great public nuisance, disorder and even crime. - The detail
for every condition relating to noise is missing (deferred) and thus outside the
licence approval process. This lack of scrutiny makes the application undemocratic
and is open to abuse.

46 — Anna Busch, 35 Grantchester Road, Cambridge, CB3 9ED

27
Page 71



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

| wish to object to this License Application The Cambridge Rugby and Football
Club in its location - should be just that - a Rugby Club with possibly occasion
festive events. | should not be allowed to become a large scale entertainment
venue for potential events held on any day, any time during the year. To quote
from the application: “Amplified recorded music to include open air concerts,
bandstand style concerts, smaller concerts and performances, concerts staged
inside marquees, military music, performances of church music etc . Non Rugby
use including but not limited to Charity Events, Outdoor Cinemas, Historical Re-
enactments, Music Events, Food & Drink Events, Art Festivals, University and
similar Balls. Non-Rugby: Small Event — No limit - Capacity up to 999 persons —
Small Event 4 days per annum - Capacity 1000-2499 persons — Medium Event 3
days per annum - Capacity 2500-4999 persons — Large Event Licensing hours —
seven days a week from 10.00am to 23.00pm." | have grave concems on public
safety grounds, The Cambridge Rugby Football Club’s site is an unsuitable
location for such an entertainment events venue. It is not safe as potentially
thousands of people have to access the site only via two narrow residential roads:
Grantchester Road, (from CRFC’s site towards Cambridge) where two cars can't
pass each other without one pulling into a vacant space. (Revellers are unlikely to
head into the opposite direction into the unlit country lane towards Grantchester.)
Selwyn Road, a single lane, narrow one way street shared with cyclist permitted to
ride in the opposite direction. The junction of these two roads is very busily used
by cyclist and pedestrians — both for children and adults to go to their homes, but
also extensively by other Cambridge residents to reach the Cocks and Hens
Tennis Club located behind the Rugby Club. Past events at the Cambridge Rugby
Football Club have shown quite clearly how unsuitable the site is. Loud music and
loutish behaviour by the intoxicated attendees frighted local residents and the
sheer number of late night, often drunken, revellers streaming past was very
intimidating. Front gardens were used as latrines and door steps were vomited on
- creating a health hazard for adults and children. The granting of such an
extensive licence for an event venue surely denies local residents the right to
peacefully and safely enjoy the amenity of their home and garden. The noise /
music at previous events not only prevented residents from being in their gardens,
it penetrated though double glazed windows. These events are not held in a
‘Wembley type stadium’ but outdoors or in a marquee. Surely residents also have
a right to a peaceful life in a residential area like Newnham | fear that if this licence
was to be granted life in this part of Newnham would become pretty intolerable on
a very regular basis. | would like to ask the licensing committee to refuse this
licence.

47 - Ali Chandkee, 39 Grantchester Road, Cambridge, CB3 SED

As a resident with 50 yards distance to the exit to the Cambridge Rugby and
Football club, | have grave concerns about the safety aspect of sheer amount of
people that might enter and exit the site if permission is granted to hold that many
event in an unsuitable location. My own guality of life would be severely
compromised and | felt extremely threatened and unsafe by the sheer number
revellers exiting the venue, including people throwing drinks glasses at my car

28

Page 72



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

windscreen, when the car was parked in front of my house on the private drive.
Likewise, people urinating onto garden fences and gates, | consider a health
hazard. Vomiting, defecating and general antisocial behaviour should be
something we should not have to tolerate. This residential area with no alternative
access is highly unsuitable to increase the number of functions and events at the
Rugby Club. We already have a number of very noisy function at the Rugby Club
each year which the locals accept with great reservations. To increase the
frequency would be totally unacceptable and not appropriate for the site and its
location. This is a quiet residential area with residents of a mixed ages. Many
young families and also older people reside here. Such events have a real
disruptive effect on their lives and the worry and concern affects their mental
health. | strongly object.

I'm objecting on the grounds of Public nuisance from loud noise. According to UK
environmental Agency, people’'s homes are classed as noise sensitive locations
(NSL). Noise limits set at NSLs in the UK are typically 55 dB(A) during the day and
45 dB(A) at night averaged over a period of generally either 15 minutes or 30
minutes. Typical sound levels at music festivals in outdoor settings can reach 80-
100dB. Prolonged exposure to sound levels above 85 dB can cause permanent
hearing loss. The risk increases with the volume level and the duration of
exposure. People’s homes in the streets immediately adjacent to the CRFC such
as Fulbrooke road and Grantchester road and the top end of Selwyn road will
experience prolonged exposure to noise levels in exceeds of 50dB during the
events described in CRFC application. The geographical location of CRFC and the
fact it's an open field means they have no means of controlling the noise levels.
Sounds will travel freely in all directions. Compounded with that, the length of the
events, as described in the CRFC licence application, in excess of 12 hours, will
have sever effect on residents even if the noise levels are lower than 50 dB. Being
in a noisy environment for an extended period can lead to increased stress levels
and fatigue, both of which can have adverse effects on people’s overall well-being.
| work full time and only have evenings and weekends to rest and recover from a
busy week. If | have to be constantly subjected to loud music every weekend and
possibly most evenings in spring and summer then | will have no quality of life in
my own home. CRFC held a number of live events last year, some of them can be
classed as ‘small’ and some as ‘medium’ and ‘large’ such as Sausage and Cider
festival. 5o there is a reliable body of evidence to draw upon. Each of these events
went on for at least 5-6 hours, some lasted all day from 11 am till 11 pm and some
went well into the night such as smaller student events during May Ball week.
During each of these events the effects of noise on the people living near CRFC
were severe. It was impossible to sit in the garden without being subjected to very
loud music and even when inside the house with windows closed the noise was
still excessive. It is particularly difficult to cope with low base notes which deliver a
constant thumping noise. After several hours it starts to drive you mad. |
developed severe headache and felt that the noise will never stop and I'm unable
to escape it anywhere in my own home. We eventually left the house on the
evening of that event and did not return home until after midnight. We wanted to

29

Page 73



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

get back at 11 pm when the music stopped but were prevented from getting back
home until well past midnight because our street was completely blocked by
crowds of people leaving the event. What CRFC is proposing now is a multitude of
such events held not just at the weekends but during the week too. Proposed
CRFC events will go on until 11 pm and as we will be unable to sleep, we will have
to alter our lives to suit it. Mot being able to go to sleep until late at night on a
regular basis in summer months will have detrimental effects on our health and
quality of life in our own homes.

49 = Nicholas Whitehead, 32 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB3 SEE

| note the licensing application to increase the number of events at the Rugby Club
to which | wish to object, as | believe that it is likely to create a risk to public safety
and a public nuisance. It is clear that CRUFC are looking for additional income
streams to fund their sporting ambitions, however this should be achieved through
leveraging their supporters, not sacrificing the safety and amenity of local
residents. The only reason that this site is being discussed is because of CRUFC’s
ownership of it; it is not suitable for large events for any other reason and the
licensing application should be refused. In particular: Noise nuisance: |
experienced the noise generated by one of the events last year and, while not
directly impacted, it was exceptionally disturbing for many local residents; this
would indicate that permitted noise levels were set too high. This level of nuisance
should not be repeated and should certainly not be increased. In particular, it
cannot be acceptable that young people living nearby with important exams
coming up (GCSEs, A levels etc.) should be disturbed; many families with children
live in houses close to the Rugby Club. To this end, if licencing is granted, then
conditions should be imposed to protect them, such as: 1/ the permitted noise level
must be reduced to a level compatible with sleep at 9pm; and/or 2/ no events can
take place during any period of state or university examinations, or for 1 -2 months
before them. It is completely unacceptable that large, noisy social gatherings are
allowed to jeopardise young people’s futures and education/career ambitions by
disturbing exam preparation and/or crucial sleep. Crowd control Last year the
crowds of people coming out onto Grantchester Road and down Selwyn Road late
at night were excessive and made those roads extremely intimidating for
pedestrians and effectively impassable for vehicles. The snapshot of the crowds |
experienced were not particularly unruly, although many were clearly drunk,
however | saw no security or crowd control presence to take control if there were a
problem. | would have been very concemed for the safeguarding of
unaccompanied young people in the street with them. | note the proposed
safequarding condition 28. If the license is granted, then this needs to be extended
off-site, or else the police must have a permanent presence in neighbouring
streets. | note (condition 46) that security is proposed outside the site; once again
this would need to be coordinated with the police as it is not acceptable that local
residents and visitors are subject to private security forces when performing their
normal daily/nightly activities. Traffic Grantchester Road is already recognised to
be dangerous with frequent complaints to the Council. In several places at the
Barton Road end it is only one vehicle wide meaning that drivers have to be
attentive and reasonable, which is not always the case. Recently, even on normal

30
Page 74



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

match days, cars exiting left from the Rugby Club have, by force of numbers, and
ignoring the right of way, blocked the cars heading towards Grantchester and
created gridlock. During last year's event the uncontrolled chaos created by
pedestrians streaming to and from the site created a public nuisance on the roads
and meant that residents’ and others’ vehicular movements were seriously
compromised. Given the underlying problems with the road and the inappropriate
location of the site, nothing that the organisers do can make this safe. | note a
suggestion in condition 61 on road management that this issue will be addressed,
however, as mentioned above, it cannot be. If the licence is granted, no event
traffic should be allowed to turn left out of the Rugby Club as it simply exacerbates
the problems caused by the pedestrians exiting in that direction. Clearly a right exit
from the club would mean that there was less conflict with the pedestrians,
however the road to Grantchester is poor and twisty and becomes again one
vehicle wide in Grantchester where cars are parked outside the Blue Ball. The
benefit of this route is that there is no conflict with the mass of pedestrians, it is not
that it is safe.

50 -

| strongly object to this application for three reasons:-

The road is too narrow to allow for events there is total disregard for congestion
and road safety when you get the best part of 1000cars trying to drop people off,
pick people up, get the event, get away from the event. It was difficult to get to and
from my house on Fulbrooke road, cars were becoming frustrated at not moving
and therefore once taxis had dropped people off they were doing u-turns in the
middle of the road. In an already very narrow and congested road (Grantchester
Road) this lead to a near fatal accident as a reversing taxi neary hit 2 children
trying to get away with their parents from an already chaotic scene.

There is insufficient event staff at the end of the event again its not only traffic
congestion its guest of the event leaving inebriated urinating in all of the gardens

along the way, starting fights, shouting singing until the early hours of the morning
total antisocial behaviour. | believe there were insufficient bathroom facilities which

exacerbated the situation

The sound of the music comes and goes in waves into ones house making my
mother who is suffering from the onset of dementia even more confused, my
mother moved to Fulbrooke road to enable her to live in a safe and calm
environment which | fear will be totally ruined by the events that have been applied
for.

Thank you for listening to my objections.

M-

31
Page 75



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

| am writing to formally object to the licence application number 288981 submitted
by the Cambridge Rugby Football Club for the hosting of music and large-scale
events on the Rugby Club field.

We live on Grantchester road, near the rugby club, and we find the licence
application in its current form is excessively broad, lacks detail, and fails to
provide adequate safeguards to protect the local community. It falls short of
meeting all four Licensing Objectives and opens the door to further unacceptable
levels of disruption, risk, and harm.

The scope of the application is highly conceming. If granted, it would allow a wide
range of entertainment activities—including plays, films, live and recorded music,
and dance performances—along with the sale of alcohol across the entire Rugby
Club field from:

« Monday to Saturday: 09:00 — 23:00
« Sunday: 10:00 — 22:00

This broad application raises significant issues under the Licensing Objectives
defined by the Licensing Act 2003. Specifically, | wish to object on the grounds that
the following four conditions are not being adequately addressed:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder — Antisocial Behaviour

A particularly serious concern is the potential for antisocial and criminal
behaviour, based on past experience. Last years event held on August 3rd,
2024, at the Rugby Club, was a deeply distressing and disruptive event for the
local community.

Despite being a one-day event, it resulted in:
« Excessive noise and loud music lasting for hours, well into the evening.
Thousands of intoxicated attendees flooding the neighbourhood.

Groups of individuals urinating in residents’ front gardens and alleys in full public
view.

Verbal abuse and aggression toward locals who attempted to engage or simply
pass through the area.

Driveways being blocked, making it difficult or impossible for residents to enter or
exit their properties.

Obstructed roads, which posed a serious risk for emergency services being unable
to access homes If needed.

3z
Page 76



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

This level of disruption and danger was intolerable and demonstrated a complete
lack of crowd control, oversight, or accountability. The absence of meaningful
mitigation or follow-up following that event gives us no confidence that future
events will be any better managed, especially if this licence were to be granted
without restriction.

Public Safety

The application includes no clear plan for ensuring the safety of event
attendees or local residents. For events that may host hundreds or even
thousands of people, there is no mention of:

« Crowd management strategies

« Medical support or first-aid facilities

« Traffic control or parking arrangements
« Emergency access routes

Without detailed and enforceable provisions for public safety, the risk of injury,
accidents, or emergency incidents cannot be responsibly managed.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

There is no reference in the application to permissible noise levels, sound
monitoring, or noise mitigation measures, whether for Rugby-related or non-
Rugby events, and regardless of the size of the event. The potential for repeated
disturbance to the peace and quiet of the neighbourhood is high, especially if
music and alcohol are allowed up to 11 PM six days a week.

Moreover, the application makes no meaningful distinction between the type or
size of events, nor does it indicate how frequent large gatherings will be. While
non-Rugby events are limited to seven per year for crowds over 1,000 people,
there is no limit for events with smaller crowds or any Rugby-branded activity,
which could be used as a loophole to bypass restrictions.

The Protection of Children from Harm

The broad permissions being sought for alcohol sales, combined with a lack of
oversight and control over crowd behaviour, pose a significant risk to the welfare
of children. The previous event demonstrated that children in the neighbourhood
were exposed to drunkenness, public urination, swearing, and intimidating
behaviour, all of which are incompatible with the Licensing Objective of protecting
children from harm. There is no indication in the application of how children will be
safequarded, either during or after events held on the field.

Additional Concerns: Lack of Consultation

33

Page 77



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

It is also extremely disappointing that this application appears to have been
developed and submitted without any meaningful consultation with local
residents. As the people most directly affected by noise, disruption, and safety
concemns, the community’s voice should be heard and respected. The current
approach gives the impression that local concerns have been disregarded entirely.
On behalf of local residents, | urge the Licensing Authority to refuse this
application unless significant restrictions and enforceable conditions are added—
particularly in relation to crowd size, frequency of events, noise control, alcohol

management, and community engagement.
Thank you for your attention to this important matter.

52 — Noelle Lhommedieu, 37 Grantchester Road, Cambridge, CB3 3ED

| live at 37 Grantchester Rd near the rugby club. | wished to object to extension of
permission for events at the rugby club in our residential neighbourhood.

Last summer there was a weekend of parties which blocked Grantchester Rd. This
was public disorder and a danger to public safety and nuisance. There were
children in the road in the Sunday. | could not move my car to go to friends as
planned. No car could come down the road to collect me. The road to
Grantchester had cars parked all along it. Two cars couldn’t get through. No
emergency vehicle could have got through. Grantchester rd was full of people for
most of two days. | saw people peeing in my garden and others did too.

There was a lot of noisemaking it impossible to sit in the garden. Once a year is
one thing but unlimited events in a residential neighbourhood will ruin a quiet
neighbourhood and affect our house prices. There is no limit stated on noise levels
or size of gatherings.

| cannot fill in the form because I'm in Addenbrookes but | hope you will consider
the points | have raised in this email

53 — Joyce Cade & Martin Good, 29 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge

VWe are objecting to the application from the Rugby Football Club Limited
(CRUFC)dated 29" March 2025 for a Premises Licence to hold licensed events at
their grounds at Grantchester Road (ref. PRECAM 000975%)

34

Page 78



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

The grounds for our objection are that the licence would breach these statutory
licence objectives covering public safety and the prevention of public nuisance.

Weare longstanding residents of Fulbrooke Road. Our house and garden(no.29)
directly face the Rugby Club. We have experienced the negative impact from the
two weekend events at the Rugby Club in July 2023 and August 2024. In both
years we were subjected to over six hours on the Friday and nine hours on the
Saturday of high-level music volumes.

We were deprived of our right to enjoy our home. It is impossible to be in the
garden with this level of music. In the house the music can clearly be heard and
the bass reverberates and booms so there is no escape. On both occasions we
had to leave our house for several hours. We felt completely at a loss as to know
what to do.

Traffic to and from the events was truly chaotic. Granchester Street, Selwyn Road
and Fulbrooke Road are narrow streets. The unacceptable number of cars and
taxis was compounded by inaccurate sat nav directions. Local residents who cycle
and walk and those with children are at significant risk.

The CRUFC’s grounds are not suitable for public entertainment / leisure events on
this scale. They are located on the edge of an important residential zone of the
City of Cambridge. Fulbrooke Road and adjacent roads (Grantchester, Selwyn and
King's) are impacted badly by the sound at 65 decibels. The location is flat so
there are no barriers to prevent the sound travelling into our gardens and houses.

We understand that the Licensing sub-committee granted a third day event for
2025but for a single year only making a total of three day events for this year in
line with maximum in the Code of Conduct for Control of Moise at Concerts but this
application seems to go beyond the Code of Conduct and seeks seven days a
year. Three days per year is unacceptable and seven days per year is way beyond
unacceptable.

The Rugby Club submitted the application without any consultation with residents
or neighbours. Also gives no details of the proposed noise volumes for these
events. It is also not clear what is being proposed under the "Rugby’events
heading. This all appears to be contrary to the intentions set out in the letter to
residents from the club's Chairman, Tim Hague, which was circulated to residents
recently.

While we understand the need of the Rugby Club to balance its books. The
staging of large scale music events throughout the summer next to a closely
packed residential community with all the knock-on impact on traffic and low level
crime and disorder is not accepiable.

We hope the licensing committee will listen to our concerns as residents and not
grant this licence or only grant it with substantial amendment and constraints.

35
Page 79



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

‘ 54 — Huih & Elizabeth Jane Clough, 13 Fulbrooke Road, Cambridge, CB3 SEE

| have tried to set out the history and background to the current application below
and also (as previously advised) to cover as many of the points | will wish to make
at the hearing.

Ve live on the south side of Fulbrooke Road, next to the Rugby field. So 1 am
writing to object to this licence application both as residents and also as a City
Councillor for Newnham Ward having received a significant number of emails from
residents who are also concerned and objecting to this application.

All licence applications must comply with 4 licensing objectives including:
= the prevention of crime and disorder.

= public safety.
= the prevention of public nuisance.
= the protection of children from harm.

| believe that the application will not comply with aspects of the first three of
the licensing objectives.

Firstly it is necessary to make clear that there are already four licences in
operation at the Rugby Club:

1. Club Premises Licence Wk/201412247 - licence holder Cambridge Rugby
Union Club

2. Club Premises Licence CLUBCAM 000026 — licence holder Cambridge Rugby
Union Club

3. Premises Licence PRECAM 000926 — licence holder — Live Tour Promotions
Ltd

4. Premises Licence PRECAM 000972 — licence holder — London Road Event
Hire Services

The first two licences are Club licences which means that the licensable activities
are for members of the Rugby Club or their bone fide guests. Live music and
recorded music is permitted indoors between 19:00 and 23:00 (23:30 Friday, 24:00
Sat, 22:00 Sunday). | believe these two licences are not of current concern to
neighbours. Essentially because the noise impact is limited being generated
indoors.

However licences 3 & 4 are real concern because they allow large scale outdoor
music events which cause noise driven distress and public nuisance to both close
neighbours on Fulbrooke and Selwyn Roads and also the wider neighbourhood of
Newnham and also the Broadway in Grantchester.

Licence 4 which was granted following the Licensing hearing on 27% January is
only for one year and has not happened yet. Residents concerns expressed in

36
Page 80



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

representations about that application and the 27 January hearing were based on
the impacts from the Live Tour Promotions events in 2023 and 2024.

While it is understood that if the current licence application is granted, licences 3 &
4 will be surrendered. The current replacement licence is far more wide ranging
permitting up to seven large scale music events in the year

Reasonable linkage to previous events

Residents concems about the large scale music events that would be permitted
under this new licence are extensive. It is entirely reasonable for them to link their
experiences in 2023 and 2024 to this new licence application by the site owners,
the Rugby Club especially if the club will be using the same operators (ex Live
Tour Promotions) to operate events for them.

Scale of objections
There was a significant volume of objections to Licence 4 which were submitted in

early January. There were 23 objections as well mine. These show at pages 39-56
of reports pack for the 27" January subcommittee hearing.

The history of the Live Tour Promotion events including our household’'s
experience of the events is as follows:

Licence 3 - Live Tour Promotions Ltd — Ibiza Orchestra plus Sausage & Cider
- history
They have run their combined Ibiza Orchestra and Sausage & Cider weekend

event twice: Friday 7th and Saturday 8" and Friday 2™ August and Saturday 3™
August 2024.

July 2023 There was a leaflet drop before the first occasion but only during day on
T July. This was clearly late and should have been done a month before.
Residents had no idea that any licence had been applied for because no
information had been circulated out to them at the time. And a small A4 blue notice
on the Rugby Club gate would not have noticed. In 2023 the level of music on the
first night was quite loud in our garden but acceptable (to us) inside the house.
However the following night 8™ — the level was totally unacceptable. Even
inside our house through the double glazed doors, it was very loud and disturbing.
| called the contact number provided on the letter but heard nothing back. | also
made complaint to Environment health and was given the reference number
381065 and wrote with my concemns to the Rugby on 9™ July. We were promised
copies of the noise records by Ashley (Ash) Ramian but they never arrived.

There was also chaos and acute traffic congestion on Grantchester Road around
11pm 7% July when | took my mother home from a visit to see relatives who were
staying with us for that week.

August 2024 (this was after | had been elected to the Council in May 2024) so
when we received the letter notifying that there was to be another event weekend,
| followed up the email trail with Environmental Health as a "councillor concern”

37

Page 81



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

and also re-emailed the Rugby Club. Environmental health were in contact with
Ash to discuss residents concemns.

My email to the Rugby Club resulted in a zoom call on Monday 29 July during
which it was agreed that we would attend the sound test on the Friday afternoon.
Ash had told us that the sound had to be limited to 65 decibels which is the
permitted limit.

The sound test took place at a number of place but more relevantly for us at two
places along the fence boundary next our house (no.13) and near to no.27 where
Lori Cunningham lives who was the other principal street contact with the Rugby
Club.

We had previously downloaded the “Decibel Meter” app onto our phones. The
sound engineer from F1 Acoustic came to those locations and watching the
display on his professional grade unit against the readings on our mobile apps
showed very similar results.

During the first evening, Ibiza Orchestra, we monitored the noise volume in our
gardens and when the level started to go above 65bd after 10pm, a recording was
started. | managed to download a segment of data for 17 minutes in CS3V format
which | was able to pivot table into a layout which showed how the Average peak
volume exceeded the 65db maximum in 8 of 17 minutes. This was emailed to Ash
the following day but there was no response and also the promised copy of the
sound recording was not supplied after the event. Though the acoustic
consultant's report submitted as final papers for the 27" January hearing is that
information.

We continued to monitor the sound on the following evening with the decibel app

and they kept to within (just below) the 65db limit during the event so far as we
were able to determine.

Consultant’s readings versus “Decibel Meter” app

Comparing the readings in the consultant's report shows 64.2 decibel compared
with the pivot table 64.47 decibels for the 15mins recorded on 2™ August. This
suggests that this mobile phone apps is well able to be used as tool for monitoring
the noise and as an evidence base going forward. Though equally I'm sure
residents will, if this problem continues, be prepared to fund the acquisition of
professional equipment in order to gather their own evidence base of the noise
nuisance from the club.

MNo relief / summer windows open

The problem with music at 65 decibels at the house boundary is that it is totally
dominating of our garden spaces. This is happening in the summer so windows
need to be open for cooling so there is little relief other than to move to the rooms
in the house on the far side of the house. But even then the music can gain access
by travelling over and being bounced back from the houses on the north side of
the road.

38

Page 82



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

Type of music / Length
Also it depends whether you actually enjoy listening the type of music being

played. Being subjected to music one doesn't enjoy for two days at 65 decibel
volume is simply unacceptable.

Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts

We had discovered on the web and also the Environmental Health team sent us
the Code of Practice for noise control at concert events produced by the Noise
Council which is attached. Table 1 on Page 6 makes it clear that noise should not
exceed 65 decibel and that there should only be 1 to 3 concerts at this level of
noise during the year.

Other noise impacts during this last year 2024

= Earlier in the summer, the Rugby Club rented out the middle of the field to a
student organisation. Marquees were erected and there was some music
and evening disturbances. But the main problem was dispersal. Some
students clearly remained on site making noise into the early hours. | do not
know under which licence this was run. The Rugby Club have advised us
that this type of event will not be repeated going forward

* The Club has erected some permanent marquee spaces on the north side
of the main built club house. At the end of the summer possibly on match
days, there has been a small combo playing and a number of people
“Jigging” about. This music travel across the space to the gardens and
disrupts the peace of a late summer weekend afternoon in the garden.

« The Club also hires out its hard standing to film production companies.
There have been problems with noise and fumes from the generators
reported by some residents.

Misuse of our back lane

During the dispersal phase on the last LTP weekend in 2024, we found people
using our back access lane as a toilet.

THE NEW APPLICATION

Cumulative impact / outside Code of Practice

It is clear that the number of large scale events proposed in this new application -
seven will exceed the 1-3 events stated in the Code of Practice. Moreover there
are other lower key outdoor music event happening at the club which need to be
considered as part of the cumulative impact on residents. In terms of the film crew
generators, we have not yet attempted to measure or diarise this impact — but it is
there and needs to be included in the process.

F1: Acoustics — Cambridge Day Festival 2025 — Noise Management Plan

As part of the papers submitted immediately prior to the 27™ January hearing, the
proposed sound management plan prepared by the sound consultants
F1:Acoustics retained by the applicant included at page 4 Para 2.2 details of the

39

Page 83



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

Code of Practice. Thereby confirming its importance and applicability in this type of
location and for this type of music event.

Decision notice — endorsed code-of-practice
At page 5 (para 2 on that page) of the Record of Decision for the 27™ January, the

Code of Practice was also referenced and endorsed by the subcommittee —
specifically the limit of only 3 annual events and the 63 decibel limit.

Excessive hours and days
The scope of the licence in terms of days and hours is completely unreasonable

would give the Rugby Club the opportunity to effectively generate noise at any
hour of the day apart from night time.

No information or controls over volume of evernts

There is no information about the intended volume of small scale events or Rugby
events. Having a Rugby branding with music would allow the club to escape any
controls. This is unreasonable.

Openness of site

It is important that the openness of the site is clearly understood. There are no
sound barriers between the location of the stage at the southem end of the Rugby
Club field and housing. It is not merely Fulbrooke Road and Selwyn Road who are
impacted. The sound travels directly to affect Millington Road, South Green Road
and the Broadway in Grantchester. And indeed people in Newnham report feeling
as if the music was being generated in Millington Road it was so loud.

Lack of consultation - disingenuous approach

Sadly the club’s management is not operating in consultative manner with the
community. There was meeting on 11March with a representative from Fulbrooke
Road and South Newnham Neighbourhood Forum to discuss recent planning
applications submitted by the club. At this meeting there was no reference
whatsoever to this licence application. Though clearly this must have been in the
process of discussion with the Environmental Health team prior to submission
around 27/28™ March.

Without being alerted by the email circularisation to Councillors from Licensing,
there is no prospect that the community would have had any knowledge of this
licence application. Without any objections the application would have been
automatically approved.

Yesterday (24" April) at 3.45pm barely 24hrs hours before the deadline for
objections, the Chairman of the Rugby emailed our contact on the road with a
residents update letter which contained reference to the licence application. This is
not right and proper and does ask the question about how the club would use the
licence if it was granted. The residents are quite right if they were to feel aggrieved
by this type of after-the-fact consultation.

Monitoring device on lamppost — Background noise?

40
Page 84




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

A month or so back, a noise monitoring device appeared strapped to a lamppost
on Fulbrooke Road. This was at a high level so likely to pick up any other road
noise. On ringing the contact number the company admitted that they were
working for the Rugby Club. After being contacted the company promptly
volunteered to remove the unit — so they may have realised that they had
incormrectly attached their unit to a public utility’s equipment.

There had been no request or information from the club about this sumeptitious
attempt at recording.

However it should be noted that there is very little background noise in the gardens
of Fulbrooke Road. Recently using the decibel app, | did a quick test and noted
that a range of 40-43 decibels was being indicated.

Neighbouring roads - notified
Fortunately we have been able to provide briefing a email about this licence
application on our Fulbrooke Road email group and this has been forwarded to

Grantchester Road and some residents on Selwyn Road for whom we have email
addresses.

Copies of residents’ emails with concerns

| have yet again received a substantial number of emails expressing concern and
also been copied into objections to this latest application. People have mostly set
out their concemns with the previous events and are deeply worried that the new
licence will increase their discomfort.

Issues raised before (for the hearing on 27™ January) and current complaints
include:
1. Blocked traffic and disruption along Selwyn Road and Grantchester Road.
2. Taxi drivers and other drivers refusing to go into the one-way drop off and
collect system on the club grounds. Dropping off early and doing three point
turns in the middle of Grantchester Road
3. Loud, drunken behaviour along Selwyn and Grantchester Road, urinating in
front gardens and alleyways.
4. Damage to cars on Selwyn Road and bottles/broken glass left for residents
to clear up.
5. Unacceptable levels of music and disruption.

6. Concerns about the type of music which may be played at the DJ set 80s
90s — which may be heavy beat electronic dance/rave music.

7. Impact on young children with parents not being able to seftle down their
children down for sleep at the normal 7-8pm slot. It is not practical to move
children to other bedrooms — or indeed why should they have to?

&. Impact on elderly neighbours who are not able to rearrange their schedules
and go away on a music event weekend.

9. Reported instances of drug dealing on a corner on Selwyn Road, pre-
loading with spirits on the way into the site

In terms of the licencing objectives ... complaints 1 to 8 above apply as follows
(i.e contrary to or failing to promote the licensing objective)

41
Page 85




REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

= the prVEﬂtiﬂﬂ of crime and disorder: 3, 4.9
« public safety: 1,2,3.4
= the prVEﬂtiﬂﬂ of pul::li{: nuisance: 356,78

Support for the Rugby Club

We, as a household, understand the need for the Rugby Club to run events which
help them balance their books. We were prepared to accept a single two day
music event as for 2023 and 2024, But the planned expansion to seven events is
unacceptable. The ad hoc music making in the late summer afternoon is also
unreasonable given the handful of people involved. It is fine for the club events
within the clubhouse ... but everything done on the field has to be balanced
against the impact on residents.

\We are keen to support the Club and appreciate the neighbourly help they have
given to us in past — such as allowing us to access our back garden during
extension works and rent car parking space for our daughter's wedding.

Support for residents — Environmental health team

Having exchanged last year detailed emails with the Environmental Health team, it
has become clear to me that a number of enhancements to the existing system
should be made to help support residents facing this type of situation. These could
be addressed on the City Council's website and after discussion and agreement —
and also added into the standard conditions for this type of event.

* invite ward councillors and RA / street representatives to attend the
Safety Advisor Group (SAG) meetings at which the event
organisers/Rugby Club present their plans ... and also have sets of the
plans circulated beforehand

« provide a copy of the Code of Practice on the website along with a notice
that council subscribes to this industry standard document. [This already
happens on the websites of a number of other councils — which is how we
found it originally ]

s require event organisers to employ a professional sound monitoring
consultant and provide copies of their post event reports to Ward
councillors and RA / street representatives. And also require them to invite
RA / Street reps to attend the pre-event sound tests.

+« confirm the 65 decibel or lower limits and specify no more than three
events at this level of noise per year in the licence conditions

« provide details of the recommended decibel monitoring phone app that
residents can use for monitoring an event. (We understand that the council
has already tested and use such an app for Statutory Muisance where
residents have to gather evidence out-of-hours when the Environmental
Health team cannot attend due to staffing constraints.)

Conclusion
We personally are opposed to the granting of this licence to the Rugby Club due
cumulative impact and on the prevention of public nuisance grounds.

42

Page 86



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

There is considerable objection to this application among residents as summarised
above and | expect that many of these will already have been provided as formal
objections and will appear in the officers report.

First and foremost we would like to reiterate our wish to support and to continue to
support and entertain a good relationship with our neighbours, the Cambridge
Rugby Football Club.

As residents of a house that directly backs onto the Cambridge Rugby Football
Club, we have direct experience of all rugby use and non-rugby use events. As
such, we are directly impacted by any activity and in particular any event that
produces high noise levels, such as, for example, the Ibiza Orchestra Experience
and the Cider& Sausage Festival held on 2 consecutive days in the Summer for
the past two years. Last year, the high noise levels and their duration during the
Ibiza Orchestra Experience and the Cider & Sausage Festival prevented us from
spending the time we wished to spend in our garden and in our house too.

The Cambridge Rugby Club are proposing to run on an annual basis,

an unlimited number of small events (up to 1000 persons) as well as 4 days of
medium events (up to 2499 persons) and 3 days of large events (up 04999
persons) that may be of a noise causing nature. These events may take place
between 9.00 and 23.00 except on Sundays being between10.00 and 22.00 over
a 7 day week. These events may take place over a 7 months' period (1st April to
30th October), which is the time when residents can make full use of their property
that includes their garden. Potentially, we could be faced during that period with an
average of one event per month of a noise causing nature, of a medium to large
size and this is excluding small events which are unlimited. This is not acceptable.

Fulbrooke Road is a cul-de-sac with the road access to/from Grantchester Road
only. From no. 38Grantchester Road to no. 50 Grantchester Road/the entrance of
Cambridge Rugby Football Club, the road is narrow and operates as a single lane
traffic. This is of great concern as the increase in traffic on Grantchester Road from
vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians during events reduces the access to Fulbrooke
Road by its residents as well as emergency services. With regard specifically to
the Ibiza Orchestra and Sausage & Cider Festival last year, reports were made of
road blocks by taxi drivers dropping off and collecting people and doing U turmns to
head back to Barton Road. We are concerned that the single pavement that runs
parallel to no. 38 Grantchester Road to no. S0Grantchester Road/the entrance of
Cambridge Rugby Football Club might not have been suitable for the high
pedestrian footfall. The use of this part of Grantchester Road to enter the
Cambridge Rugby Football Club is question able certainly when planning to run
large and medium size events as there is a risk to public safety. Re-directing the
traffic down the narrow country road that leads to Grantchester would also seem to
be a questionable option.

43
Page 87



REPRESEMTATIOMNS RECEIVED: Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Grantchester Road, Cambridge

The number of days of non-rugby usage will not only inevitably create increased
traffic from vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians but also increase the risks of
disorderly behaviour. Disorderly behaviour due to drunkenness has been reported
with incidents of people urinating in the back lane that leads to our back garden
during last year's Ibiza Orchestra and Cider & Sausage &Festivals. This is most
distressing and extremely offensive.

The overall proposed frequency, duration and the potential risk to the public and
risk of disorderly behaviour as well as the noise inducing nature of certain non-
rugby events is unacceptable. The Cambridge Rugby Football Club, which is
located in close proximity to a tightly packed residential community, is not a
suitable venue. We therefore oppose their application dated 29th March 2025 for a
Premises Licence (application reference PRECAM 00975) to hold licensed events
at their ground sat Grantchester Road.

We do understand and appreciate the need for the Cambridge Rugby Football
Club to find additional sources of revenue to support their ongoing
existence/development and hope that solutions acceptable to both the Cambridge
Rugby Football Club and the local residential community can be found

44
Page 88


http://www.tcpdf.org

1 — Usage of this Premises License will be categorised as the following: Rugby Use
& Non-Rugby Use.

2 — Rugby Use shall be classified as specifically Rugby-focussed business and
events, including but not limited to Rugby Matches, Training Sessions, Tournaments.
3 — Non-Rugby Use shall be classified as non-rugby focussed business and events,
including but not limited to Charity Events, Outdoor Cinemas, Historical Re-
enactments, Music Events, Food & Drink Events, Art Festivals, University and similar
Balls.

3 — Non-Rugby Use will be sub-categorised as the following: Capacity up to 999
persons — Small Event Capacity 1000-2499 persons — Medium Event Capacity 2500-
4999 persons — Large Event

4 — The number of days usage per annum by category: Rugby Use — No limit Small
Event — No limit Medium Event — 4 days per annum Large Event — 3 days per annum
5 — There will be no more than 3 consecutive days use for Medium & Large Events.
These periods will be at a maximum of 1 per calendar month, with a minimum of 2
clear weeks in between.

6 — All existing Premises Licenses for events will be surrendered following the
granting of this Premises License.

7 - The Holder of the Premises Licence, The Designated Premises Supervisor or
responsible person over the age of 18 years nominated by them in writing, hereby
referred to as ‘Relevant Person’, shall be in charge of and remain at the Licensed
Premises during any event where licensable activities take place. The person in
charge shall not be engaged in any duties that will prevent them from exercising
general supervision of the premises. They shall be responsible for maintaining good
rule and order within the premises under this licence, taking charge of emergency
situations and the summoning of emergency services.

8 — All Non-Rugby Use of the Premises License shall be notified in writing to the
Local Authority no less than 28 days prior to use of the Premises License.

The following conditions will apply to all usage for Medium & Large Events

9 — All Medium & Large Events shall submit no later than 2 months prior, ideally
sooner, to usage dates a draft Event Management Plan (EMP) to the Safety Advisory
Group (SAG) (or other body nominated by the Licensing Authority) for comment and
discussion. The Draft EMP shall contain, but not be limited to:

a. Event Management Structure

b. Event Risk Assessment

c. Operational Management Plan

d. Site Plan

e. Construction Phase Plan, Risk Assessments and Method Statements
f. Fire Risk Assessment

g. Major Incident Plan (including Counter Terrorism Measures)

h. Security and Crowd Management Plan (Including Search Policy)

i. Medical Risk assessment and Plan

Page 89



j- Adverse Weather Plan

k. Children and Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding Policy
I. Traffic and Transport Management Plan

m. Alcohol Management Plan

n. Sanitation Plan

0. Waste Management Plan

p. Health & Safety Policy

g. Alcohol & Drug Use Policy

10 — The final draft of the EMP shall be submitted by the PLH, DPS or Relevant
Person to the SAG for approval 28 days before the relevant event day. Thereafter
any further changes to the EMP must be approved by the Licensing Authority.

11 - Throughout an event the PLH, DPS or Relevant Person shall establish an Event
Control to include the Event Liaison Team (ELT) comprising representatives of the
PLH, Security and nominated representatives of the Licensing Authority and
Responsible Authorities. During event days the ELT shall manage operation of the
event. Any necessary changes to the EMP may only be made with the consent of the
ELT.

12 - The PLH, DPS or Relevant Person will implement the final EMP for each event.
13 - Any authorised officer of the Licensing Authority and the Responsible
Authorities, shall have access to the licensed site at all reasonable times for the
purposes of ensuring compliance with the Premises Licence Conditions and the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

14 - The Police will be notified at the earliest opportunity by the Head of Security in
the case of any incidents of serious crime and disorder where the victim consents
and where the victim does not consent, where an intervention is required to maintain
wider public safety at the discretion of the Head of Security or PLH, DPS or Relevant
Person. 15 - All security and stewarding staff will receive a briefing, which will include
suitable information and instructions relevant to the event, from the appointed
security and crowd manager prior to each event. All security and stewarding staff will
be easily identifiable and registered Security Industry Security (SIA) shall wear
visible SIA badges at all times when on duty. The area to be used for the event,
including the public arena, and work areas will be enclosed by a secure permitter
with defined and controlled entry points and exits, including emergency exits. Details
of the secure perimeter shall be agreed with the Licensing Authority and Responsible
Authorities via the SAG prior to each event.

16 - All entry to the premises for events will be controlled and managed by SIA
security employed by the security contractor. Security staff will be briefed on the
entry conditions, search procedures and any other relevant policies, procedures or
requirements for each event.

17 - Entry conditions will be displayed at all entrances to the premises, including
entry to work areas. Patrons will not be allowed to re-enter the premises after they

Page 90



have left (unless at the discretion of the Head of Security re-entry is considered
appropriate) or after they have been ejected.

18 - Patrons, contractors, workers, volunteers, artists and their guests may be
searched on entry to the premises in accordance with the search policy and
procedure contained in the Security and Crowd Management Plan. Children will be
accompanied by a responsible adult during any search.

19 - Details of prohibited items will be included in the conditions of entry to the event,
will be available on the event’s website and will be clearly displayed at all entry
points. Patrons will not be allowed to bring glass or open bottles into the Licensed
Premises.

20 - Secure amnesty bins will be provided at designated entry points agreed with the
Police. ltems surrendered or confiscated will be held and disposed of by the security
and crowd manager in accordance with procedures agreed with the Police. A log will
be maintained of confiscation, seizures and disposals by the security and crowd
manager and will be made available for inspection by the Licensing Authority and the
Police on reasonable request.

21 — Temporary CCTV will be installed at entrance point(s) to record a clear facial
image of every person entering. Footage shall be stored for a minimum of 31 days.
In the event that images are requested from a constable or authorised officer of a
responsible authority the management will ensure a staff member who is conversant
with the operation of the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times the
premises are open to the public. This staff member shall give technical assistance to
them in the event that CCTV footage is requested for the prevention and detection of
suspected or alleged crime, or offence and be able to show a police officer or
authorised Council officer recent data or footage.

22 - Body worn video cameras will be worn by designated SIA security response
teams when responding to alleged incidents.

23 - The PLH shall ensure adequate lighting is provided throughout the premises
and within the vicinity of the premises’ footprint including public areas for entry, exit
and emergency egress routes details of which will be included on the Site Plan.

24 - Lost Property will be retained by Event Control and a log of items will be kept.
Where information about the owner is available, the customer services team will
make attempts to contact the patron concerned and return their item(s). A contact
email address for information about lost property will be provided by the PLH.

25 - A Major Incident Plan will be included within the EMP. The Major Incident Plan
will be agreed in advance with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities
prior to the first event of each year via the SAG (or other body nominated by the
Licensing Authority). The Major Incident Plan will include details of coordination with
the emergency services and how the premises will be evacuated. The EMP will
contain the contact details of those nominated by the PLH to manage any major
incident.

26 - The PLH will ensure the provision of and maintain suitable access to the site at
all times during the build, break and live events, for emergency services including the

Page 91



Police, ambulance and fire and a rescue, including during the departure and arrival
of patrons and adverse weather. Details of the emergency access routes, including
their specification, shall be contained in the Major Incident Plan within the EMP.
These routes will be designated as the ‘Blue Routes’.

27 - The PLH will agree Emergency Services Rendezvous Points with the
emergency services. Details of the Blue Routes and Emergency Services
Rendezvous Points will be detailed within the EMP and on the Site Plan.

28 - A Safeguarding of Children and Vulnerable Adults Policy will be included in the
EMP and agreed with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities prior to
each event via the SAG. All members of the Event Liaison Team will be briefed on
the safeguarding measures and all operational staff will follow the procedures set out
in the Policy.

29 - The welfare service provider will be provided for children, including lost and
unaccompanied children and vulnerable adults. Welfare provider and those with
significant access to children and vulnerable adults with be subject to a Disclosure
and Barring check. A Lost Children policy will be included in the EMP and agreed
with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities prior to each event via the
SAG.

30 - All planning for the event will be in line with recommendations laid out in the
online ‘Purple Guide’ and HSG154 Managing Crowds Safely and will be planned in
strong consultation with local authorities and licensing staff via regular meetings
starting no less than 3 months before the proposed start date of any activities on the
site.

31 - The final site layout shall be as agreed with the event health and safety advisor
and Security consultant and all statutory authorities (which includes but is not limited
to members of the council events department, licensing, highways, parking, and blue
light services.)

32 - There shall be at least one personal licence holder in the bar present whilst the
bars is in operation. Furthermore, whenever the premises are open to the public the
Designated Premises Supervisor shall be present within the licensed premises.

33 - Plastic glasses or cans will be used at the bar. Where a drink is in a bottle and
this is not plastic, the contents of said bottle will be decanted into a plastic glass.

34 - The boundaries of the licensed premises will be clearly fenced and marked so
that staff, interested parties, police and members of the public can clearly see what
areas are being used for licensable activities.

35 - No event shall take place until an Event Management Plan has been submitted
to and approved by all other relevant statutory bodies.

36 - All core event staff and personnel will be issued with a radio and will be in
contact with event control.

37 - All licensed door staff will use radios to contact each other and will wear hi-
visibility arm bands with their SIA badge clearly on display. They will also be in high
visibility jackets or similar and should be clearly identifiable as security.

38 - All stewards will wear high visibility jackets or similar and should be clearly

Page 92



identifiable as stewards.

39 — For all events, the appointed security contractor will provide SIA registered
security staff provision, including the mix of male/female staff will be based on a risk
assessment carried out no less than one month before any event.

40 - Outside the permitted hours for alcohol, all alcoholic drinks shall be secured
safely to prevent their sale or theft.

41 - Any patrons displaying signs of drunkenness or use of drugs will be ejected from
the premises where it is safe to do so or admitted to onsite welfare facilities until they
are deemed safe to be ejected. Where anti-social behaviour is observed in
connection with alcohol or drugs, the patron will be ejected when safe to do so.

42 - Refusal log books will be completed for any refusal of the sale of alcohol. There
will be one book at every bar and will be made available upon request to officers
from Cambridge City Council, Trading Standards or Cambridgeshire Constabulary.
43 - Adequate medical provision will be made available in line with calculations from
the “Purple Guide” and following a risk assessment carried out by the PLH/medical
provider.

44 - An incident book will be completed for any incident that takes place within the
licensed premises. The book will be made available upon request to officers from the
Licensing Authority, Trading Standards and Cambridgeshire Constabulary.

45 - Waste management teams, alongside event staff will be engaged to ensure the
event site is cleaned and returned to its previous condition.

The following will be valid for Medium & Large Events:

46 - Security will be posted at key locations, as identified within the EMP and agreed
with all relevant statutory authorities, around the event site to ensure the protection
of adjoining residencies and businesses.

47 - All drugs or illicit substances found or confiscated on site will be logged via radio
at the point of confiscation and then returned to the event HQ where it will be
securely stored and logged in a drugs book which shall be made available upon
request to Officers from Cambridgeshire Constabulary. All contraband along with
seizure records will be handed to Cambridgeshire Constabulary at the end of the
event.

48 - A dedicated area in the site, adjacent to the First Aid section, will be provided for
welfare provision to treat and ensure the safety of any vulnerable patrons in the
premises.

49 — All non-rugby use will be communicated with the local community, by way of
letter drop, electronic mail, through resident representatives or any other suitable
means of communication.

The following will be valid for Medium & Large Events:

50 - Attendees will be reminded of the residential location via digital media in

Page 93



advance of the event and clear signage throughout the event site will be used to
remind and inform attendees of the proximity of residential areas.

51 - Noise limits will be agreed with local authority noise management agents and
adhered to vigorously. All residents within the area will be advised, by way of a letter
drop, of any use of the premises, no less than one month before any event. A contact
number will be provided in this letter drop for residents to be able to contact the
noise management staff to ensure any complaints can be dealt with in a timely
fashion.

52 - Sufficient sanitary facilities will be made available within the premises to prevent
public urination (as per the Event Management Plan).

53 - Following discussion with Cambridge City Council Environmental Protection
team, noise limits will be set in advance. These limits will be implemented throughout
the course of the build, de-rig and live dates.

54 - The organisers will monitor on-site dB noise levels and ensure that set noise
limits will be adhered to, with regular reading to be taken and recorded.

55 - A dedicated community 'hotline' will be in place for local residents to contact the
festival organisers, enabling them to respond to noise disturbance concerns and
react accordingly.

56 — At least 3 months prior to a Medium or Large Event, the PLH, DPS or Relevant
Person shall employ a suitably qualified Noise Management Consultant.

57 — The appointed noise consultant shall produce a Noise Management Plan (NMP)
to be submitted at least 3 months prior to the event for approval by the licensing
authority. The NMP shall propose off-site Music Noise Level (MNL) limits, to include
low-frequency criteria (expressed as LCeq,T)

58 - The event organiser & appointed noise consultant shall engage and work
closely with the Local Authority Environmental Health Team in all phases of the event
to ensure compliance to the Noise Management Plan. This includes pre, during and
post event, including sharing any relevant documents and noise monitoring records
upon request. 59 — The PLH will provide a direct contact number for a named
manager, who will always be on duty at the Premises during an event and
contactable when the Premises is open (Community Hotline). All complaints will be
logged and those relating to noise will immediately be relayed to the Noise
Management Consultant with details, where provided, of the complainant’s name,
address and postcode, telephone number and a description of the disturbance. The
Noise Management Consultant will visit the complainant’s address as soon as
reasonably practicable and take a measurement. If Music Noise Levels (MNL) are
measured to be above the limit, immediate action will be taken on-site to reduce the
level from the event.

60 — The community hotline contact number will be displayed on the Premise’s
website, provided to the Licensing Authority and displayed clearly and prominently at
the entrance to the Premises.

61 — The PLH, DPS or Relevant Person will undertake an assessment and provide a
plan with regards to Traffic Management, this will include but not be limited to:

Page 94



Applying for a Temporary Traffic Restriction Order (TTRO), Implementing a one way
system on Grantchester Road, Implementing No Parking Signage on Grantchester,
Fulbrooke and Selwyn Roads, Managing a dedicated Pick Up/Drop Off area.

62 — The premises will adopt a 'Challenge 25' policy whereby any person attempting
to buy alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for photographic ID as proof
of their age. The only ID that will accepted are valid passports and UK driving
licenses with a photograph, or proof of age cards bearing the PASS mark hologram.
The list of approved ID may be amended or revised with the prior agreement of
Cambridgeshire Constabulary and the Licensing Authority without the need to amend
the actual license. 63 - All age restricted sales training undertaken by staff members
will be fully documented and recorded prior to being allowed to sell alcohol.

The following will be valid for Medium & Large events:

64 - Depending on the specific event, the site will either be restricted to people who
are 18 years or older or it will be open to all ages. When applicable, anyone under
the age of 18 will need to be accompanied by an adult. 2 people under 18 years of
age can be accompanied by one adult (exceptions due to circumstances will be
made e.g. single guardians and large family groups). Vigorous ID checks will be
carried out at the point of entry and sale for any age restricted products. The age
policy of each event will be specified within the EMP.

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



@%E‘.
Part A &
Licensing Act 2003 e

Club premises certificate CAMBRIDGE
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL
Club premises certificate number | CLUBCAM 000026

Club details

Name of club in whose name this certificate is granted and relevant postal address of club

Cambridge Rugby Union Club

Address

Grantchester Road

Newnham

Post town Post code
Cambridge CB39ED

Telephone number

If different from above the postal address of club premises to which this certificate relates, if any, or if none, ordnance
survey map reference or description

Post town Post code

Telephone number

Where the club premises certificate is time limited the dates

Qualifying club activities authorised by the certificate
Live Music, Recorded Music, Prov of Fac for Dance, Supply of Alcohol, ,,,,,, .,

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Activity Live Music - Indoors
Day Times

Sun 19:00 22:30

Mon 19:00 23:00

Tue 19:00 23:00

Wed 19:00 23:00
Thurs 19:00 23:00

Fri 19:00 23:30

Sat 19:00 00:00

Non Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

Activity Recorded Music - Indoors
Day Times

Sun 19:00 22:30

Mon 19:00 23:00

Tue 19:00 23:00

Wed 19:00 23:00

Thurs 19:00 23:00

Fri 19:00 23:30

Sat 19:00 | 00:00

Page 97




Non Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

Activity Prov of Fac for Dance - Indoors
Day Times

Sun 19:00 22:30

Mon 19:00 23:00

Tue 19:00 23:00

Wed 19:00 23:00

Thurs 19:00 23:00

Fri 19:00 23:30

Sat 19:00 | 00:00

Non Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

Activity Supply of Alcohol = Onthe Premises
Day Times

Sun 11:00 22:30

Mon 11:00 23:00

Tue 11:00 23:00

Wed 11:00 23:00

Thurs 11:00 23:00

Fri 11:00 23:30

Sat 11:00 00:00

Non Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

The opening hours of the premises

Day Times

Sun 10:00 22:30
Mon 11:00 23:00
Tue 11:00 23:00
Wed 11:00 23:00
Thurs 11:00 23:00
Fri 11:00 23:30
Sat 10:00 00:00
Non Std Timings &

Seasonal Variations

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies
On the premises

Page 98




Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1.(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on
relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible
promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a
manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and
disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children-

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to-

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within,atime limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supplyalcohol), or

(if) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other
than any promotion or discount available to-an individual in respect of alcohol for
consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);

(c) provision of free or-discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of
a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on-

(i) the outcome of arace, competition or other event or process, or

(i) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness
in any favourable manner.

2. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink
without assistance by reason of a disability).

3. Theresponsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that
an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date
of birth and a holographic mark.

5. Theresponsible person shall ensure that-

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures-

(i) beer or cider: % pint;

(if) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

Page 99



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

The prevention of crime and disorder

Public Safety

The prevention of public nuisance

1.Regulated entertainment consisting of live and recorded music, may be played
indoors between 20.00 and 23:30 on Fridays and between 20.00 and 00.00 on
Saturdays.

2.When amplified music is played, as permitted in 1. above, sound levels shall be
controlled by means of a noise limiter, installed by an acoustic specialist and set to a
level to be agreed by the Environmental Protection Manager.

3.Until a noise limiter has been installed and set, as in 2. above, amplified music shall
not be played in the premises.

4.Whenever amplified music is played, the doors and windows of the building shall be
kept shut, with the exception of the main door used for access and egress, which shall
be kept shut so far as reasonably practicable.

5.Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits, requesting
customers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the
area quietly.

6.Bottles and refuse shall not be disposed of outside the premises between 23.00 and
07.00

The protection of children from harm

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after'a hearing by the/licensing authority

Annex 4 - Plans

See attached

This licence was granted on: 15" December 2005

This licence was varied on: 29t August 2013

Page 100



Premises licence number

Fart 1 — Premises details

Part A

Licensing Act 2003
Format of premises licence
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

| PRECAM 000926

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Cambridge Rugby Football Club, Volac Park, Grantchester Road

Post town FPost code
Cambridge CB39ED
Telk ne number

NIA

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Licensable activities authorised by the licencs
Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carmying out of licensable aclivifies

Activity Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance - Outdoors
Day Times

Sun

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thurs

Fri 14:00 | 23:00

Sat 14:00 | 23:00

Mon Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

Licensable activities limited for one weekend per annum. The licensee will
notify the local responsible authorities no less than two months prior to any
event.

Activity

Supply of Alcohol

Day

Ti

Sun

Mon

Tue

Wed
Thurs

Fri

14:00 | 23:00

Sat

Mon Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

14:00 | 23:00

Licensable activities limited for one weekend per annum. The licensee will '
notify the local responsible authorities no less than two months prior to any
event.

Day

The apening hours of the premises

Times

sSun

Mon
Tue

Wed

Thurs

Fri

14:00 | 23:15

Sat

Mon Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

14:00 23:15 |
Licensable activities limited for one weekend per annum. The licensee will
notify the local responsible authorities no less than two months prior to any
event.

Page 101



Where the cence authonises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and! or off supplies
| On the premises only

Part 2

Mame, {registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence

Live Tour Promotions Limited
Larch House

Parklands Business Park
Denmead

Hampshire

POT 6XP

Reqgistered mumber of holders, for example company number, charnty number (where applicable)
11392652

| MName, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohaol

| Personal licence number and issuimg authorty of personal icence held by designated premises supenvisor where the
premises licence authornises for the supply of alcohol

Page 102



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person
who holds a personal licence.

3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcehol for consumption on the premises—

(a) games or other activities which reguire or encourage, or are designed to reguire or
encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on
the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised
to sell or supply alcohol), or

(if) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in @ manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a8 manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

4 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(27 The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is camied on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must reguire individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures—

(i) beer or cider: 'z pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 mi;

(b) these measures are displayed in 3 menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the guantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

7. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

8. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 7—

(&) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqguor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—

Page 103



P=D+{DxV)
Where -

(i1 P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(ili) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence—

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(if) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(ili) the personal licence holder who makes or authonses a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person® means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “valued added tax™ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994,

8. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph & would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
10. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph & on a day (‘the first day™) would be different from the permitted price on the next
day (“the second day™) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(21 The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

11. Door Supervisors must;

(@) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security
Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

Mo adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children shall be permitted in
the premises at any time.

General

1. A draft Event Management Plan (EMP) will be submitted by the PLH to the Safety Advisory
Group (SAG) (or other body nominated by the Licensing Authority) for comment and discussion

at least 2 months prior to the relevant event day or such lesser period agreed by the SAG. The
draft EMP shall contain, but not be limited to:-

a. Event Management Structure

b. Event Risk Assessment

c. Operational Management Plan

d. Site Plan

e. Construction Phase Plan, Risk Assessments and Method Statements
f. Fire Risk Assessment

. Major Incident Plan (including counter terrorism measures)

h. Security and Crowd Management Plan (including search policy)
i. Medical Risk Assessment and Flan

J. Adverse Weather Plan

k. Children and Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding Policy

|. Traffic and Transport Management Plan

Page 104



m. Alcohol Management Plan
n. Sanitation Plan

0. Waste Management Plan

p. Health and Safety Policy

Q. Alcohol and Drug Use Policy

2. The final draft of the EMP shall be submitted by the PLH to the SAG for approval 28 days
before the relevant event day. Thereafter any further changes to the EMP must be approved
by the Licensing Authority.

3. Throughout an event the PLH shall establish an Event Control to include the Event Liaison
Team (ELT) comprising representatives of the PLH, Security and nominated representatives of
the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorties. During event days the ELT shall manage
operation of the event. Any necessary changes to the EMF may only be made with the consent
of the ELT.

4. The PLH will implement the final EMP for each event.

5. Any authorised officer of the Licensing Authority and the Responsible Authorities, shall have
access to the licensed site at all reasonable times for the purposes of ensuring compliance with
the Premises Licence Conditions and the promotion of the licensing objectives.

6. The Police will be notified at the earliest opportunity by the Head of Security in the case of
any incidents of serious crime and disorder where the victim consents and where the victim
does not consent, where an intervention is required to maintain wider public safety at the
discretion of the Head of Secunty or PLH.

7. All security and stewarding staff will receive a briefing, which will include suitable information
and instructions relevant to the event, from the appointed security and crowd manager prior to
each event. All security and stewarding staff will be easily identifable and registered Security
Industry Security (SIA) shall wear visible S1A badges at all times when on duty. The area to be
used for the event, including the public arena. and work areas will be enclosed by a secure
permitter with defined and controlled entry points and exits, including emergency exits. Details
of the secure perimeter shall be agreed with the Licensing Authority and Responsible
Authorities via the SAG prior to each event.

8. All enfry to the premises for events will be controlled and managed by S1A security employed
by the security contractor. Security staff will be briefed on the entry conditions, search
procedures and any other relevant policies, procedures or requirements for each event.

9. Entry conditions will be displayed at all entrances to the premises, including entry to work
areas. Patrons will not be allowed to re-enter the premises after they have left (unless at the
discretion of the Head of Security re-entry is considered appropriate) or after they have been
gjected.

10. Fatrons, contractors, workers, volunteers, artists and their guests may be searched on entry
to the premises in accordance with the search policy and procedure contained in the Security
and Crowd Management Plan. Children will be accompanied by a responsible adult during any
search.

11. Details of prohibited items will be included in the conditions of entry to the event, will be
available on the event's website and will be clearly displayed at all entry points. Patrons will not
be allowed to bring glass or open bottles into the Licensed Premises.

12. Secure amnesty bins will be provided at designated enfry points agreed with the Police.
ltems surrendered or confiscated will be held and disposed of by the securty and crowd
manager in accordance with procedures agreed with the Police. A log will be maintained of
confiscation, seizures and disposals by the security and crowd manager and will be made
available for inspection by the Licensing Authority and the Police on reasonable request.

13. CCTV will be installed at entrance point(s) to record a clear facial image of every person
entering. Footage shall be stored for a minimum of 31 days. In the event that images are
requested from a constable or authonised officer of a responsible authority the management will
ensure a staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be on
the premises at all times the premises are open to the public. This staff member shall give
technical assistance to them in the event that CCTV footage is requested for the prevention
and detection of suspected or alleged crime, or offence and be able to show a police officer or
authorised Council officer recent data or footage.

14. Body worn video cameras will be worn by designated SIA securnty response teams when
responding to alleged incidents.

15. The PLH shall ensure adequate lighting is provided throughout the premises and within the

Page 105



vicinity of the premises’ footprint including public areas for entry, exit and emergency egress
routes details of which will be included on the Site Plan.

16. Lost property will be retained by Event Control and a log of items will be kept. Where
information about the owner is available, the customer services team will make attempts fo
contact the patron concerned and return their item(s). A contact email address for information
about lost property will be provided by the PLH.

17. A Major Incident Plan will be included within the EMP. The Major Incident Plan will be
agreed in advance with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities prior to the first
event of each year via the SAG (or other body nominated by the Licensing Authority). The Major
Incident Plan will include details of coordination with the emergency services and how the
premises will be evacuated. The EMP will contain the contact details of those nominated by the
PLH to manage any major incident.

13. The PLH will ensure the provision of and maintain suitable access to the site at all times
during the build, break and live events, for emergency semnvices including the Police, ambulance
and fire and a rescue, including during the departure and arrival of patrons and adverse
weather. Details of the emergency access routes, including their specification, shall be
contained in the Major Incident Plan within the EMP. These routes will be designated as the
‘Blue Routes’.

19. The PLH will agree Emergency Services Rendezvous Points with the emergency services.
Details of the Blue Routes and Emergency Senvices Rendezvous Points will be detailed within
the EMP and on the Site Plan.

20. A Safeguarding of Children and Vulnerable Adults Policy will be included in the EMF and
agreed with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities prior to each event via the
SAG. All members of the Event Liaison Team will be briefed on the safeguarding measures
and all operational staff will follow the procedures set out in the Policy.

21. The welfare service provider will be provided for children, including lost and unaccompanied
children and vulnerable adults. Welfare provider and those with significant access to children
and vulnerable adults with be subject to a Disclosure and Barring check. A Lost Children policy
will be included in the EMP and agreed with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities
prior to each event via the SAG.

22_ All planning for the event will be in line with recommendations laid out in the online ‘Purple
Guide” and HSG154 Managing Crowds Safely and will be planned in strong consultation with
local authorities and licensing staff via regular meetings starting no less than 3 months before
the proposed start date of any activities on the site.

23 The final site layout shall be as agreed with the event health and safety advisor and Security
consultant and all statutory authorities (which includes but is not limited to members of the
council events department, licensing, highways, parking, and blue light services.)

24 There shall be at least one personal licence holder in the bar present whilst the bars is in
operation. Furthermore, whenever the premises are open to the public the Designated
Premises Supervisor shall be present within the licensed premises.

25_ Plastic glasses or cans will be used at the bar. Where a drink is in a bottle and this is not
plastic, the contents of said bottle will be decanted into a plastic glass.

26. The boundaries of the licensed premises will be clearly fenced and marked so that staff,
interested parties, police and members of the public can clearly see what areas are licensed.
27. No event shall take place until an Event Management Plan has been submitted to and
approved by all other relevant statutory bodies.

28. All core event staff and personnel will be issued with a radio and will be in contact with event
control.

29. All licensed door staff will use radios to contact each other and will wear hi-visibility arm
bands with their SIA badge clearly on display. They will also be in high visibility jackets or similar
and should be clearly identifiable as security.

30. All stewards will wear high visibility jackets or similar and should be clearly identifiable as
stewards.

The prevention of crime and disorder
31. The appointed security contractor will provide SIA registered security staff provision,

including the mix of male/female staff will be based on a risk assessment cammied out no less
than one month before any event.

Page 106



32. Outside the permitted hours for alcohol, all alcoholic drinks shall be secured safely to
prevent their sale or theft.

33. Any patrons displaying signs of drunkenness or use of drugs will be ejected from the
premises where it is safe to do so or admitted to onsite welfare facilities until they are deemed
safe to be ejected. Where anti-social behaviour is observed in connection with alcohol or drugs
the patron will be ejected when safe to do so.

34. Refusal log books will be completed for any refusal of the sale of alcohol. There will be one
book at every bar and will be made available upon request to officers from Cambridge City
Council, Trading Standards or Cambridgeshire Constabulary.

Public Safety

35. Security will be posted at key locations, as identified within the EMF and agreed with all
relevant statutory authorities, around the event site to ensure the protection of adjoining
residencies and businesses.

36. All drugs or illicit substances found or confiscated on site will be logged via radio at the point
of confiscation and then returned to the event HQ where it will be securely stored and logged
in & drugs book which shall be made available upon request to Officers from Cambridgeshire
Constabulary. All contraband along with seizure records will be handed to Cambridgeshire
Constabulary at the end of the event.

37. A dedicated area in the site, adjacent to the First Aid section, will be provided for welfare
provision fo treat and ensure the safety of any vulnerable patrons in the premises.

38. Adequate medical provision will be made available in line with calculations from the “Purple
Guide™ and following a risk assessment carried out by the medical provider.

39. An incident book will be completed for any incident that takes place within the licensed
premises. The book will be made available upon request to officers from the Licensing Authority,
Trading Standards and Cambridgeshire Constabulary.

40. Waste management teams, alongside event staff will be engaged to ensure the event site
is cleaned and returned to its previous condition.

The prevention of public nuisance

41. Attendees will be reminded of the residential location via digital media in advance of the
event and clear signage throughout the event site will be used to remind and inform attendees
of the proximity of residential areas.

42 Moise limits will be agreed with local authority noise management agents and adhered to
vigorously. All residents within the area will be advised, by way of a letter drop, of any use of
the premises, no less than one month before any event.

A contact number will be provided in this letter drop for residents to be able to contact the noise
management staff to ensure any complaints can be dealt with in a timely fashion.

43 Sufficient sanitary facilities will be made available within the premises to prevent public
urination (as per the Event Management Plan).

44 Following discussion with Cambridge City Council Environmental Protection team, noise
limits will be set in advance. These limits will be implemented throughout the course of the build,
de-rig and live dates.

45_ The organisers will monitor on-site dB noise levels and ensure that set noise limits will be
adhered to, with regular reading to be taken and recorded.

46. A dedicated festival "hotline’ will be in place for local residents to contact the festival
organisers, enabling them to respond to noise disturbance concerns and react accordingly.

The protection of children from harmm

47 Depending on the specific event, the site will either be restricted to people who are 18 years
or older or it will be open to all ages. When applicable, anyone under the age of 18 will need to
be accompanied by an adult. 2 people under 18 years of age can be accompanied by one adult
(exceptions due to circumstances will be made e_g. single guardians and large family groups).
Vigorous ID checks will be carried out at the point of entry and sale for any age resfricted
products.

43. All age restricted sales fraining undertaken by staff members will be fully documented and
recorded prior to being allowed to sell alcohol.

Page 107



49 The premises will adopt a ‘Challenge 25" policy whereby any person attempting to buy
alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for photographic D as proof of their age. The
only ID that will be accepted are valid passports and UK driving licences with a photograph or
proof of age cards bearing the ‘PASS" mark hologram. The list of approved ID may be amended
or revised with the prior agreement of Cambridgeshire Constabulary and the Licensing
Authority without the need to amend the actual licence.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Annex 4 - Plans

See attached - 265725

This licence was granted on: 6% January 2023

Page 108


http://www.tcpdf.org

Part A

Licensing Act 2003 DGE

Format of premises licence Eﬁ%‘gg‘&”m L
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

Premises licence number ] PRECAM 000972

FPart 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance sundey maE reference or description

Cambridge Rugby Football Club

Granchester Road

Post town Fost code

Cambridge CB3 9ED

Telephone number

Where the icence is time limited the dates

50 July 2025

Licensable activities suthorised by the licencs

Live Music, Recorded Music, Perform Dance, Supply of Alcohol

The times the icence authonses the camying out of licensable activifies

Activity Perform Play, Live Music, Perform Dance — Outdoors

Day Times

sun

Maon

Tue

Wed

Thurs

Fri

Sat 12:00 23:00

Mon Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

Activity Supply of Alcohol

Day Times

Sun
Man

Tue

Wed

Thurs

Fri
Sat 12:00 | 22:30

Mon Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

The opening howrs of the premises

Day Times

aun 10:00 02:30
Maon 10:00 02:30
Tue 10:00 02:30
Wed 10:00 02:30
Thurs 10:00 02:30
Fri 10:00 03:30
Sat 10:00 08:30

Mon Std Timings &
Seasonal Variations

Page 109




Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohaol whether these are on and’ or off supplies
On the premises only

Part 2
Mame, (regisierad) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence

London Road Event Hire Services Limited
Unit 13 London Road Studios

London Road Industrial Estate

Baldock

Hertfordshire

SGT 6NG

Reqistered number of holders, for example company numibier, charity numbsr (where apolicable)
14425721

Mame, address and telephone number of designated premises supenasor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcabhaol

sames whenman, |

Personal licence number and issuing authonty of personal icence held by designaled premises supenvisor whers the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Page 110



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not camry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a) games or other activities which reguire or encourage, or are designed to reguire or
encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on
the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised
to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a8 manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner,;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises cerfificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carmied on in accordance with the age verification
policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 138

years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures—

(i) beer or cider: 2 pint;

(if) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(i) still wine in a glass: 125 mi;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the guantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

7. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

Page 111



8. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 7—
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—
P=D+(DxV)
Where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(if) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(ili) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence—

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(if) the designated premises supernvisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(ili) the personal licence holder who makes or authonses a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person® means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994,

8. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph & would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
10. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 8 on a day (“the first day™) would be different from the permitted price on the next
day (“the second day™) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2] The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

Mo adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children shall be permitted in
the premises at any time.

General

1. A draft Event Management Plan (EMP) will be submitted by the PLH to the Safety Advisory
Group (SAG) (or other body nominated by the Licensing Authority) for comment and
discussion at least 3 months prior to the relevant event day or such lesser period agreed by
the SAG. The draft EMP shall contain, but not be limited to:- a. Event Management Structure
b. Event Risk Assessment c. Operational Management Plan d. Site Plan e. Construction
Phase Flan, Risk Assessments and Method Statements . Fire Risk Assessment g. Major
Incident Plan (including counter terrorism measures) h. Security and Crowd Management
Plan {including search policy) i. Medical Risk Assessment and Plan j. Adverse Weather Plan
k. Children and Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding Policy |. Traffic and Transport Management
Plan m. Alcohol Management Plan n. Sanitation Plan o. Waste Management Plan p. Health
and Safety Policy q. Alcohol and Drug Use Policy

2. The final draft of the EMP shall be submitted by the PLH to the SAG as to allow its
approval no less than 28 days before the relevant event day. Thereafter any further changes
to the EMP must be approved by the Licensing Authority.

3. Throughout an event the PLH shall establish an Event Control to include the Event Liaison
Team (ELT) comprising representatives of the PLH, Security and nominated representatives

Page 112



of the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities. During event days the ELT shall
manage operation of the event. Any necessary changes to the EMP may only be made with
the consent of the ELT.

4. The PLH will implement the final EMP for each event.

A Any authorised officer of the Licensing Authority and the Responsible Authorities, shall
have access to the licenced site at all reasonable times for the purposes of ensuring
compliance with the Premises Licence Conditions and the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

6. No event shall take place until an Event Management Plan has been submitted to and
approved by all other relevant statutory bodies.

Prevention of crime and disorder

7. The Police will be notified at the earliest opportunity by the Head of Security in the case of
any incidents of serious crime and disorder where the victim consents and where the victim
does not consent, where an intervention is required to maintain wider public safety at the
discretion of the Head of Security or PLH.

8. All security and stewarding staff will receive a briefing, which will include suitable
information and instructions relevant to the event, from the appointed security and crowd
manager prior to each event. All security and stewarding staff will be easily identifiable and
registered Security Industry Security (S1A) shall wear visible S1A badges at all times when on
duty. The area to be used for the event, including the public arena, and work areas will be
enclosed by a secure permitter with defined and controlled entry points and exits, including
emergency exits. Details of the secure perimeter shall be agreed with the Licensing Authority
and Responsible Authorities via the SAG prior to each event.

8. All entry to the premises for events will be controlled and managed by SIA security
employed by the security contractor. Security staff will be briefed on the entry conditions,
cearch procedures and any other relevant policies, procedures or requirements for each
event.

10. Entry conditions will be displayed at all entrances to the premises, including entry to work
areas. Patrons will not be allowed to re-enter the premises after they have left (unless at the
discretion of the Head of Security re-entry is considered appropriate) or after they have been
gjected.

11. Patrons, contractors, workers, volunteers, artists and their guests may be searched on
entry to the premises in accordance with the search policy and procedure contained in the
Security and Crowd Management Plan. Children will be accompanied by a responsible adult
during any search.

12 Details of prohibited items will be included in the conditions of entry to the event, will be
available on the event's website and will be clearly displayed at all entry points. Patrons will
not be allowed to bring glass or open bottles into the Licenced Premises.

13. Secure amnesty bins will be provided at designated enfry points agreed with the Police.
ltems sumendered or confiscated will be held and disposed of by the securty and crowd
manager in accordance with procedures agreed with the Police. A log will be maintained of
confiscation, seizures and disposals by the security and crowd manager and will be made
available for inspection by the Licensing Authority and the Police on reasonable request.

14. CCTV will be installed at entrance point(s) to record a clear facial image of every person
entering. Footage shall be stored for a minimum of 31 days. In the event that images are
requested from a constable or authorised officer of a responsible authority the management
will ensure a staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be
on the premises at all times the premises are open to the public. This staff member shall give
technical assistance to them in the event that CCTV footage is requested for the prevention
and detection of suspected or alleged crime, or offence and be able to show a police officer or
authorised Council officer recent data or footage.

15. Body worn video cameras will be worn by designated SlA security response teams when
responding to alleged incidents.

16. The PLH shall ensure adequate lighting is provided throughout the premises and within
the vicinity of the premises’ footprint including public areas for entry, exit and emergency
egress routes details of which will be included on the Site Plan.

17. Lost Property will be retained by Event Control and a log of items will be kept. Where
information about the owner is available, the customer services team will make attempts to

Page 113



contact the patron concerned and return their item(s). A contact email address for information
about lost property will be provided by the PLH.

13. A Major Incident Plan will be included within the EMP. The Major Incident Plan will be
agreed in advance with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities prior to the first
event of each year via the SAG (or other body nominated by the Licensing Authority). The
Major Incident Plan will include details of coordination with the emergency services and how
the premises will be evacuated. The EMFP will contain the contact details of those nominated
by the PLH to manage any major incident.

19. The PLH will ensure the provision of and maintain suitable access to the site at all times
during the build, break and live events, for emergency services including the Police,
ambulance and fire and a rescue, including during the departure and armrival of patrons and
adverse weather. Details of the emergency access routes, including their specification, shall
be contained in the Major Incident Plan within the EMP. These routes will be designated as
the ‘Blue Routes’.

20. The PLH will agree Emergency Services Rendezvous Points with the emergency

services. Details of the Blue Routes and Emergency Services Rendezvous Points will be
detailed within the EMF and on the Site Plan.

21. A Safeguarding of Children and Vulnerable Adufis Policy will be included in the EMP and
agreed with the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities prior to each event via the
SAG. Al members of the Event Liaison Team will be briefed on the safeguarding measures
and all operational staff will follow the procedures set out in the Policy.

22 The welfare service provider will be provided for children, including lost and
unaccompanied children and vulnerable adults. Welfare provider and those with significant
access to children and wulnerable adults with be subject to a Disclosure and Barring check. A
Lost Children policy will be included in the EMP and agreed with the Licensing Authority and
Responsible Authorities prior to each event via the SAG.

23. There shall be at least one personal licence holder in the bar present whilst the bars is in
operation. Furthermore, whenever the premises are open to the public the Designated
Premises Supervicor shall be present within the licenced premises.

24_ Plastic glasses or cans will be used at the bar. Where a drnink is in a bottle and this is not
plastic, the contents of said bottle will be decanted into a plastic glass.

25_ The boundaries of the licenced premises will be clearly fenced and marked so that staff,
interested parties, police and members of the public can clearly see what areas are licenced.
26. All core event staff and personnel will be issued with a radio and will be in contact with
event control.

27 All licenced door staff will use radios to contact each other and will wear hi-visibility arm
bands with their S1A badge clearly on display. They will also be in high visibility jackets or
similar and should be clearly identifiable as security.

28. All stewards will wear high visibility jackets or similar and should be clearly identifiable as
stewards.

29. The appointed security contractor will provide SIA registered security staff provision,
including the mix of male/ffemale staff will be based on a risk assessment carmied out no less
than one month before any event.

30. Outside the permitted hours for alcohol, all alcoholic drinks shall be secured safely to
prevent their sale or theft.

31. Any patrons displaying signs of drunkenness or use of drugs will be ejected from the
premises where it is safe to do so or admitted to onsite welfare facilities until they are deemed
safe to be ejected. Where anti-social behaviour is observed in connection with alcohol or
drugs, the patron will be ejected when safe to do so.

3Z2. Refusal log books will be completed for any refusal of the sale of alcohol. There will be
one book at every bar and will be made available upon request to officers from Cambridge
City Council, Trading Standards or Cambridgeshire Constabulary.

33. Security will be posted at key locations, as identified within the EMFP and agreed with all
relevant statutory authorities, around the event site to ensure the protection of adjoining
residencies and businesses.

34. All drugs or illicit substances found or confiscated on site will be logged via radio at the
point of confiscation and then returned to the event HQ where it will be securely stored and
logged in a drugs book which shall be made available upon reguest to Officers from
Cambridgeshire Constabulary. All contraband along with seizure records will be handed to

Page 114



Cambridgeshire Constabulary at the end of the event.
35. All customer facing staff will be provided with Welfare and Vulnerability Training, including

Ask for Angela Scheme.
Public safety

36. All planning for the event will be in line with recommendations laid out in the online ‘Purple
Guide” and HSG154 Managing Crowds Safely and will be planned in strong consultation with
local authorities and licensing staff via regular meetings starting no less than 3 months before
the proposed start date of any activities on the site.

37. The final site layout shall be as agreed with the event health and safety advisor and
Security consultant and all statutory authorities (which includes but is not limited to members
of the council events department, licensing, highways, parking, and blue light services.)

38. A dedicated area in the site, adjacent to the First Aid section, will be provided for welfare
provision fo treat and ensure the safety of any vulnerable patrons in the premises.

39. Adequate medical provision will be made available in line with calculations from the
“Purple Guide™ and following a risk assessment carried out by the medical provider.

40. An incident book will be completed for any incident that takes place within the licenced
premises. The book will be made available upon request to officers from the Licensing
Authority, Trading Standards and Cambridgeshire Constabulary.

Prevention of public nuisance

41. Waste management teams, alongside event staff will be engaged to ensure the event site
is cleaned and returned to its previous condition.

42 Attendees will be reminded of the residential location via digital media in advance of the
event and clear signage throughout the event site will be used to remind and inform attendees
of the proximity of residential areas.

43. Moise limits will be agreed with local authority noise management agents and adhered to
vigorously. All residents within the area will be advised, by way of a letter drop, of any use of
the premises, no less than one month before any event. A contact number will be provided in
this letter drop for residents to be able to contact the noise management staff to ensure any
complaints can be dealt with in a timely fashion.

44 Sufficient sanitary facilities will be made available within the premises to prevent public
urination {as per the Event Management Plan).

45 Following discussion with Cambridge City Council Environmental Protection team, noise
limits will be set in advance. These limits will be implemented throughout the course of the
build, de-rig and live dates.

46. The organisers will monitor on-site dB noise levels and ensure that set noise limits will be
adhered to, with regular reading to be taken and recorded.

47 A dedicated festival "hotline’ will be in place for local residents to contact the festival
organisers, enabling them to respond 1o noise disturbance concerns and react accordingly.

Protection of children from harm

43. Depending on the specific event, the site will either be restricted to people who are 18
years or older or it will be open to all ages. When applicable, anyone under the age of 18 will
need to be accompanied by an adult. 2 people under 18 years of age can be accompanied by
one adult (exceptions due to circumstances will be made e.g. single guardians and large
family groups). Vigorous |D checks will be carried out at the point of entry and sale for any
age restricted products.

49_ All age restricted sales training undertaken by staff members will be fully documented and
recorded prior to being allowed to sell alcohol.

50. The premises will adopt a ‘Challenge 25' policy whereby any person attempting to buy
alcohol who appears to be under 25 will be asked for photographic 1D as proof of their age.
The only ID that will accepted are valid passports and UK driving licences with a photograph,
or proof of age cards bearing the PASS mark hologram. The list of approved ID may be
amended or revised with the prior agreement of Cambridgeshire Constabulary and the
Licensing Authority without the need to amend the actual licence.

Page 115



Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing of the licensing authority

1. The licence is limited to single day use on Saturday 5% July 2025 with a maximum capacity
of 2,499 people.

2. The Premises Licence Holder will provide a direct contact number for a named manager,
who will always be on duty at the Premises during the event and contactable when the
Premises is open (the community hotline). All complaints will be logged and those relating to
noise will immediately be relayed to the Sound Control Consultant with details, where
provided, of the complainants name, address and postcode, telephone number and a
description of the disturbance. The Sound Control Consultant will visit the complainants
address as soon as reasonable practicable and take a measurement. If MML are measured to
be above the limit immediate action will be taken on-site to reduce the level from the event.

3. The community hotline contact number will displayed on the Premises’ social media (if
available), Premises’ website (if available), and provided to the Licensing Authority and
prominently at the entrance to the event.

4. The appointed noise consultant shall produce a Moise Management Plan (MMF) to be
submitted at least 3 months prior to the event for approval by the licensing authority. The
MMPF shall propose off-site Music Moise Level (MML) limits, to include low-frequency criteria
(expressed as LCeq,T)

h. The event organiser & appointed noise consultant shall engage and work closely with the
Local Authority Environmental Health Team in all phases of the event to ensure compliance to
the Moise Management Plan. This includes pre, during and post event, including sharing any
relevant documents and noise monitoring records upon request

6. The Premises Licence Holder will obtain a Temporary Traffic Restriction Order for access
roads into the premises and instigate a 1-way traffic control system for the event

Annex 4 — Plans

285771
This licence was granted on: 27T January 2025
This licence was varied (minor) on: 22™ March 2025

Page 116


http://www.tcpdf.org

	Agenda
	4 Cambridge Rugby Club Hearing Report
	Appendix 1 - Application
	Appendix 1a - Site Map
	Appendix 2 - Representations
	Appendix 3 - Proposed Conditions
	Appendix 4 - CLUBCAM 000026
	Appendix 5 - PRECAM 000926
	Appendix 6 - PRECAM 000972


